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subject to such filing requirements for the pastf@s. Yesx No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥bsite, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRiie 405 of Regulation S-T during the precediBgrbnths (or for such shorter period
that the registrant was required to submit and pash files).

YES x NO ~
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Act.

Large accelerated filer’ Accelerated filer x Non-accelerated filer” Smaller reporting company’
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Actyes © No x

The aggregate market value of the voting and ndimga@ommon equity held by non-affiliates of thgisdrant, computed by reference to the
last sales price of such stock, as of the clogeadfng on June 30, 2011, was $639,546,766.

Shares of common stock outstanding at Februar@®: 34,515,397
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for i 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filednoor prior to April 29, 2012, are
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Table of Contents

PART |

Iltem 1.
Item 1A.
Item 1B.
Item 2.
Iltem 3.
Iltem 4.

PART Il

Item 5.
Item 6.
Iltem 7.
Item 7A.
Item 8.
Item 9.
Item 9A.
Item 9B.

PART IlI

Item 10.
Item 11.
Iltem 12.
Item 13.
Iltem 14.

PART IV

Item 15.
Signatures

CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
2011 FORM 10-K
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Business

Risk Factors

Unresolved Staff Commen
Properties

Legal Proceeding

Mine Safety Disclosure

Market for Registra’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters asddsPurchases of Equity Securil
Selected Financial Da

Managemer's Discussion and Analysi“MD&A ") of Financial Condition and Results of Operati
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarRisk

Financial Statements and Supplementary |

Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants @moudating and Financial Disclosu

Controls and Procedur

Other Informatior

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goveos

Executive Compensatic

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners Mahagement and Related Stockholder Mat
Certain Relationships and Related TransactionsParettor Independenc

Principal Accounting Fees and Servi

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedt

Page

11
19
19
19
20

25

30
49
51
87
87
87

87
87
88
88
88

88
89



Table of Contents

PART |

ltem 1. Business
Overview

CSG Systems International, Inc. (the “Company”, G Sor forms of the pronoun “we”) is one of the Wibs largest and most established
business support solutions providers primarily s@rthe communications industry. Our proven appincaed solutions are based on our bi
and deep experience in serving clients in the comications industry as their businesses have evdhosd a single product offering to a
highly complex, highly competitive, multi-produarsice offering. Our approach has centered on usiadpest technology for the various
functions required to provide world-class solutions

Our solutions help service providers streamline sacade operations, introduce and adapt productsarvices to meet customer demands,
address the challenges and opportunities broughitdly change. Our broad suite of solutions helpscbents improve their business
operations by creating more compelling productriifgs and an enhanced customer experience throogh malevant and targeted
interactions, while at the same time, more effitiemanaging the service provider’s cost struct@eer the years, we have focused our
research and development (“R&D”) and acquisitiorestments on expanding our solution set to addhesever expanding needs of
communications service providers to provide a difftiated, real-time, and personal experiencehfeir consumers. This extensive suite of
solutions includes revenue management, contentgeamant and monetization, customer interaction memagt, as well as analytics and
intelligence.

On November 30, 2010, we completed our acquisitiod.K.-based Intec Telecom Systems PLC (“Intetfie(“Intec Acquisition”).Intec is ¢
recognized global business support systems leadeefail billing, mediation, and wholesale busmesanagement, serving the majority of
world’s top 100 communications service provideiise Tntec Acquisition transformed our company frofdath American-centric business
serving primarily cable and satellite providershagiur outsourced service offerings, to a globabigier of software and services to the much
broader telecommunications industry and other e&@rtnarkets. As a result of the Intec Acquisitiove, were able to diversify and expand our
client base, industry markets, geographic marketd,our delivery capabilities, illustrated as falk

* In 2010, we had four clients that each individualtgounted for greater than 10% of our total reesnwhich in the aggregate,
were 64% of our total 2010 revenues. In 2011, weevable to reduce our client concentration prirgaa# a result of our overall
larger revenue base. For 2011, we had only thiestslthat each individually accounted for gretttan 10% of our total revenus
which in the aggregate, were 42% of our total 2@Enues. In addition, we added over 400 clients r@sult of the Intec
Acquisition.

* In 2010, approximately 85% of our revenues camm ftioee North American cable and satellite markett) the remaining 15%
coming from a variety of other verticals. For 201/, reflected greater industry diversification waghproximately 60% of our
revenues coming from the North American cable atdllite markets, approximately 30% coming fromekive and wireless
communication providers, and the remainder comiamfa variety of other markets, such as finanaabises, logistics, and
transportation

e For 2011, we had a greater geographic presenceraery 10% of our revenues from the Europe, MidgHst and Africa region,
and 5% of our revenues from the Asia Pacific regaampared to nominal amounts from those regior29i(’' s full year results

» We have expanded our delivery capabilities gengga@b% of our revenues from software and relatedaes in 2011, as
compared to only 9% during the prior ye

While our more diversified revenue and client biage introduced greater risk and variability in business, we believe this added
diversification provides us with greater opportigstfor future growth with a broader customer bas# expanded product portfolio as a
leading global software and services provider.
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Our principal executive offices are located at 98 oon Circle, Englewood, Colorado 80112, andtéhephone number at that address is
(303) 200-2000. Our common stock is listed on tASPAQ Stock Market LLC (“NASDAQ") under the symbaCSGS”. We are a S&P
Small Cap 600 company.

Industry Overview

BackgroundWe provide business support solutions to the weiigading communications service providers, as agetilients in several
complex and highly competitive industries. Our $olus coordinate and manage many aspects of aceguudvider’'s customer interactions,
from the initial activation of customer accountsthie support of various service activities, arrdulgh the presentment, collection, and
accounts receivables management of monthly custstagzments. While our heritage is in serving tlettNAmerican communications
market, through acquisition and organic growth hage broadened and enhanced our solutions to eaterzlisiness both globally and to a
number of other industries including financial seeg, healthcare, utilities, entertainment, andeandistribution.

Market Conditions of the Communications IndusiOver the past few years, the global marketplaceekpsrienced a significant economic
downturn, with certain countries and regions abguoeeiencing political instability, which has negaly impacted a broad number of
industries, including the global communicationsusigly that we serve. The impact of these challehgssesulted in cautiousness and in
some cases, a delay in decision making. Compaoigiaed to have an increased focus on controiogis, streamlining operations and
investing in those solutions and services that lsagtemonstrable short-term return on investmeraggd.transformational projects have been
side-lined while operators continue to monitor blusiness environment in which they operate.

We believe that our recurring revenue and predietehsh flow business model, our sufficient souafdijuidity, and our stable capital
structure lessen the risk of a significant negaitimgact to our business if the current economic gawtpolitical conditions linger into future
periods. However, these market conditions couldltés continued tight client spending and/or exted sales cycles which could impact our
revenues related to our clients’ discretionary sipemfor such things as special project work, mankgactivities, new product sales, and
software and professional services projects, ans, thinder our ability to grow our revenues anchie@s.

Market Trends of Communications IndusThe communications industry is undergoing a drarrtedginsformation. Consumers have more
choices for content, devices, and providers tham before. Operators continue to invest heavilgdgtworks to handle the exponential
increase of data and content that is being digeiband consumed over their networks. Mobile datfidi¢ is estimated to increase tenfold in
the coming years, while the revenues that opergimsrate from that network traffic are currentby expected to increase at a commensurate
rate. As a result, it is expected that service jpierg will need to evolve their business modelsriter to better monetize the traffic that goes
across their network.

In addition, relatively new content providers liMetflix, Hulu, and YouTube, as well as new devisash as the iPad, the iPhone, and
GoogleTV, have created an increased sense of urdentraditional service providers to be more tinezin their approaches to rolling out
new products and services, and enhancing the cestexperience. These new competitors and new témies have created a
disintermediation in the marketplace, enablingablesumer to now receive content on a variety déckht devices, over different networks
any time. While this development poses challengegatitional service providers, it also provideswith an opportunity to service the needs
of this evolving market. With the proliferation méw services, devices and content, operators neliseda consistent, personalized and
differentiated service experience while closely aging their revenues and costs.

As the lines of distinction between service provédeontinue to blur, and competition for the samescimer increases between the traditional
cable, wireless, and telecom provider as well astraditional players, more emphasis is being plame providing a superior customer
experience. This experience includes the types of
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content and products operators offer as well as éngry interaction between the operator and thswoer is handled. This dynamic has
resulted in an opportunity for us to continue ttptaur clients be successful in new ways. As altese historically have invested a
significant amount of our revenues in R&D annualhd have acquired companies that have enabledexpémd our offerings in a more
timely and efficient manner.

Overall, these market trends drive the demanddalable, flexible, and cost-efficient customer ratdion management solutions, which we
believe will provide us with revenue opportuniti#ghile we recognize that operators may choose ¥eldp their own internal solutions or
utilize a competitor’s solution, we believe that gaalable, modular, and flexible solutions combimgth our rich domain expertise provide
the industry with proven solutions to improve thgiofitability and customers’ experiences.

Business Strategy

Our goal is to be the most trusted provider of d«mlhss software and services to service provideysnd the world who depend upon the
timely and accurate processing of complex, high#ra transactions to operate their business andedelisuperior customer experience. We
believe that by successfully executing on this geakcan grow our revenues and earnings, and therefeeate long-term value, not only for
our clients and our employees, but for our shaddrslas well. Our strategic focus to accomplisé goal is as follows:

Create Recurring Relationships Within Our Core Camioations Industry Our relentless, relationship-driven, customefsxl
business approach is built on a foundation of retsjretegrity, and collaboration. As a result, wgoy long-term relationships with
many of the world’s leading service providers basea true partnership aimed at helping providaebk sustainable growth, create
efficiencies, and deliver differentiated servicesheir customers.

Expand Our Product and Services Portfolio Througintthuous InnovatioWe believe that our product technology and pregirgted
suite of software solutions gives service providecompetitive advantage. We continually add neleviant capabilities to what we do
as a company, both in terms of our people and autisns. By doing this, we build very strong retog relationships which are
difficult for our competitors to displace.

Increase Our Value Proposition Through Continuaupiovement and Urgencis discussed earlier, the demands of consumers are
significantly increasing as devices and network#iooe to feed an insatiable appetite for contiefioymation, and entertainment. In
order to continue to help providers better comfreten environment in which network consumptionuspacing revenue generation, we
continue to focus on being cost efficient in deling our solutions, while helping our clients efiotly and effectively manage their
business.

Deliver On Our Commitment&ur products and services are business criticalh@e our clients manage the entire customer lfkgy
from acquisition to servicing to billing for thedind customers. As a result, it is imperative thatdeliver on our commitments. For over
25 years, we have been helping global, blue-chippanies manage periods of explosive and sustaiagkietgrowth and change—
helping them drive revenues, improve their profligh and deliver positive customer experiencear @ack record of doing what we
say we are going to do has enabled us to becomedstet in our clients’ operations and be a trustiibar and integral member of
their teams.

Bring New Skills and Talents to Markét.order to help our clients manage the pace ofighawe invest in our people so that they are
prepared to bring the highest quality technicalskinterpersonal skills, and managerial skilloto business and our clients.

In summary, all of our efforts are aimed at helping clients compete more effectively and succdlysfuan ever-changing market.

5
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Description of Business

Key Clients. We work with the leading communication providlersated around the world. A partial list of thogevéce providers as of
December 31, 2011 is included below:

AT&T Oi

America Movil Optus

Bharti Reliance Communicatior

Charter Communications, In¢“Charte”) Telefonica

Comcast Corporatior*Comcas”) Time Warner, Inc.“Time Warne”)
DISH Network Corporation“DISH") Verizon

HCPT Virgin Mobil

Hutchinson 3C Vodafone

MTN

The North American communications industry has egpeed significant consolidation over the pastadie; resulting in a large percentag
the market being served by a limited number ofisergroviders with greater size and scale. Consistéh this market concentration and our
heritage in serving the North American cable andlb® markets, a large percentage of our hisébrievenues have been generated from our
four largest clients, as shown in the table bellients that represented 10% or more of our revefme2011 and 2010 were as follows (in
millions, except percentages):

2011(1) 2010
Amount % of Revenues Amount % of Revenues
Comcast $ 13¢ 1% $ 131 2%
DISH 92 13% 98 18%
Time Warnel 74 10% 65 12%
Charter N/A <1C% 55 10%

(1) The decrease in percentages between 2010 dddr@lates primarily to our larger revenue andntltease as a result of the Intec
Acquisition.

See the Significant Client Relationships sectionwfMD&A for additional information regarding obusiness relationships with these key
clients.

Research and Developme. Our clients around the world are facing compatitirom new entrants and at the same time, aredieg new
services at a rapid pace and dramatically incrga$ie complexity of their business operations. &f@e, we continue to invest heavily in
R&D to ensure that we stay ahead of our clientgdseand advance our clients’ businesses as wellraswvn. We recognize these challenges
and believe our value proposition is to providaisohs that help our clients ensure that each custaénteraction is an opportunity to create
value and deepen the business relationship. Asudt If our R&D efforts, we have not only broademen footprint within our client base

with many new innovative product offerings, but @also found traction in penetrating new markets wortions of our suite of customer
interaction management solutions.

Our total R&D expenses were $111.1 million and $#8illion, respectively, for 2011 and 2010, or appmately 15% and 14% of total
revenues for each year, with the increase refleaithe 2011 full yeas development efforts related to the acquired Ibtesiness. In the ne
term, we expect that our R&D investment activitigh be relatively consistent with that of 2011 tiwithe level of our total R&D spend higt
dependent upon the opportunities that we see imaukets.

There are certain inherent risks associated wighifitant technological innovations. Some of thasks are described in this report in our
Risk Factors section below.
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Products and ServiceOur products and services help companies with cexnmpansaction-centric business models manageppertunities
and challenges associated with accurately captumagaging, generating, and optimizing the reveaaseciated with the immense volumes
of customer interactions and then manage the at&rinature of those customer relationships. Ouangy product solutions include the
following:

» Cable and Satellite Care and Billing: Our billingdacustomer care and business optimization plat{@wvanced Convergent
Platform (“ACP")) is the premier system for cabledesatellite providers in North America. ACP, a-pregrated platform
delivered in an outsourced service bureau enviromnierelied upon every single day by almost 50iom consumers of voice,
video, and data services, and is used by morebA00 of our clients’ customer service agents,261800 of our clients’ field
force technicians, dispatchers and rout

e Convergent Rating and Billing: Our Singleview sytevides an integrated customer care, billing @adtime rating and chargir
solution for the global marketplace. This solutism@ real-time charging, billing, and customer czokition designed from the
ground up for convergent markets. Singleview inhdyemproves support and promotes optimizatiom assult of the single view
of the customer across all services and transactis a result, the capabilities of the Singlevieite extend beyond the
communications industry to other transac-intensive markets including financial services,istigs, and transportatio

* Mediation and Data Management: Our Total Servicelisteon (“TSM”) provides a comprehensive frameweriabling network
operators to achieve maximum efficiency with thedst cost for all interactions between the netwatdt other business support
solution applications and related processes. Thé frf@mework supports offline and real-time mediatrequirements as well as
service activation. Recognized for its high perfante and exceptional throughput, TSM provides #emeprocessing foundation
to manage tod¢s exploding network traffic

* Wholesale Settlement and Routing: Our market-lgatlifnolesale Business Management (“WBM?”) Solutioa isomprehensive
and powerful settlements system. It handles evieny &f traffic — from simple voice to the most adead data and content
services—in a single, highly-integrated platfortrhélps operators around the globe improve prafitset strict regulatory and
audit compliance requirements, and comply withitf@adest range of global standal

e Customer Interaction Management: Our customeract&m management solutions help deliver a unigaesonal and relevant
quality experience across all customer touch peintdether that be text,mail, web, print, or other communications methdtle
are an industry leader in interaction managemdatiens, processing more than one billion intersetroice, SMS/text, print, e-
mail, web, and fax messages each year on behaliraflients.

» Analytics & Intelligence: Our suite of analyticschimtelligence services delivers a comprehensiyeageh to improving the
customer experience, increasing sales opportunéres optimizing busines

» Content Management & Monetization: Our Content Etisolutions help manage, deliver, and monetizeéerario help build bran
loyalty and create differentiated offerings forwetk operators, content aggregators, or contengldpers. Our Content Direct
solutions enable content providers to manage siltlesqureferences and offer digital content anytiemejwhere, to any device
through a variety of mode—direct, subscriber or subsidize

In addition, we have expanded the delivery modgle/hich we can help our clients execute on thegitess objectives. Today, we now offer
high-volume transaction processing and statemeyation, complemented with world-class applicatisnftware and customized software
solutions, allowing us to offer one of the most poehensive, flexible, pre-integrated products arglises solutions to the communications
market.

We believe this pre-integrated approach and meltiglivery model allows our clients to bring neveqluct offerings to market quickly and
provide high-quality customer service in a coseetii’e manner. While our

7
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primary value proposition to our clients is thedsfth and depth of this integrated offering, we hewalved many of our product solutions to
be more modular-based to allow clients to utilizeta&in of our products as independent point sahstio

We license certain software products (e.g., WBMuBoh, TSM, and Singleview) and provide our profesal services to implement,
configure, and maintain these software products.

Historically, a substantial percentage of our togégkenues have been generated from ACP and Custotesaction Management solutions.
These products and services are expected to praviage percentage of our total revenues in theséeable future as well.

Business AcquisitionAs noted above, our strategy includes acquiringtasand businesses which provide the technologyeatuhical
personnel to expedite our product development &ffprovide complementary products and servicesease market share, and/or provide
access to new markets and clients. Consistenttiiglstrategy, we have acquired the following besges over the last several years:

Intec.In November of 2010, we acquired Intec to expandomsiness support solutions footprint and cap@sli With this acquisition,
we added the leading mediation and wholesale illimlution to our product suite, as well as a miljpost-paid convergent customer
care and billing solution. In addition, the acqtiisi increased our presence, as well as our doegiartise, in the wireless and wireline
industries worldwide. The addition of Intec enahisgo support flexible delivery models, from otesoftware delivery to outsourced
processing models, supported by complementarycafferings. See the “Overview” section for aiddial discussion of the benefits
to our business from the Intec Acquisition.

Quaero.In December of 2008, we acquired Quaero CorpordtiQnaero”), a marketing services provider with exjse in customer
strategy, analytics, and marketing performance igamant. This acquisition broadened our solutioteswith powerful customer
intelligence capabilities that further assist oligrits in maximizing the value of their custometeiractions. The Quaero acquisition has
also allowed us to further diversify our revenuséband extend our reach into new industry verticalsiding financial services,
pharmaceutical/healthcare, media/publishing, traespitality, consumer, and high tech.

DataProse. In April of 2008, we acquired DataProse, IncD4taProse”) to further our objective of helping clients maximize every
customer interaction by both strengthening anddeoang our portfolio of print solutions capabilgieAdditionally, this acquisition has
allowed us to diversify our client base into thiitigs, financial services, and telecommunicatiomsrkets, and add clients in the non-
profit sectors of healthcare and higher education.

Prairie. In August of 2007, we acquired Prairie Voice Seesidnc. (“Prairie”) to extend our suite of produand solutions that help our
clients maximize the value of their interactionshatheir customers. Prairie provides inbound antth@und automated voice, text/SMS,
email, and fax messaging services to manage warkfocommunications, collections, lead generatiotgraated order capture, service
outage notifications, and other key business fonstiWe acquired Prairie to extend our capabilitighin our core cable and satellite
markets, while also providing an established custdoase in new industry verticals such as finarsgalices and telecommunications.

ComTecln July of 2007, we acquired ComTec, Inc. (“ComTjetd expand our Intelligent Customer Communicatitwotprint and
capabilities. With this acquisition, we added erdeghstatement production and electronic statentestptation hardware and software
technologies. In addition, the acquisition increbsar presence in our core cable and satellite etsyrkvhile also providing an
established customer base in new industry vertgiath as utilities, healthcare, home security,farahcial services markets.

Professional ServiceWe employ over 800 professional services expedaily who bring a wide-ranging expertise—includswution
architecture, project management, systems impleationt and business consultancy to every projeetayply a rigorous methodology to
each of our engagements, leveraging consistentdvetass processes, best-practice programs, anensized templates for all engagements.

8
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Client and Product Suppor©ur clients typically rely on us for ongoing supipand training needs related to our products. We lsamulti-
level support environment for our clients, whicklirde account management teams to support thedsssioperational, and functional
requirements of each client. These account teafpschients resolve strategic and business issuésemsupported by our Solution Support
Center (“SSC”) and Customer Support Services (“G38hich we operate 24 hours a day, seven dayssl.v@ients call a telephone
number, and through an automated voice responsehanie their calls directed to the appropriate 88CSS personnel to answer their
guestions. We have a full-time training staff aondduct ongoing training sessions both in the faeld at our training facilities.

Sales and MarketingVe organize our sales efforts to existing cliemtsprily within our geographically dispersed, dedted account teams,
with senior level account managers who are resptmfir new revenues and renewal of existing caetsravithin a client account. The
account teams are supported by sales support peris@ho are experienced in the various productssandces that we provide. In addition,
we have dedicated staff engaged in selling ourymrtsdand services to prospective clients.

Competition.The market for business support solutions prodaistsservices in the converging communications itrguas well as in other
industries we serve, is highly competitive. We cetepwith both independent outsourced providersiabuse developers of customer
management systems. We believe that our most gigntfcompetitors in our primary markets are Amdoiasited, Comverse Inc.,
Convergys Corporation, and Oracle Corporation; netvequipment providers such as Ericsson, Huawei Alcatel-Lucent; and internally-
developed systems. Some of our actual and potematiapetitors have substantially greater financredrketing, and technological resources
than us and in some instances we may actually graaimd collaborate with our competitors on largpasfunities and projects.

We believe service providers in our industry useftilowing criteria when selecting a vendor toyade customer care and billing products
and services: (i) functionality, scalability, fléity, interoperability, and architecture of theftsvare assets; (ii) the breadth and depth of pre-
integrated product solutions; (iii) product qualityient service, and support; (iv) quality of R&forts; and (v) price. We believe that our
products and services allow us to compete effelgtinethese areas.

Proprietary Rights and Licenses

We rely on a combination of trade secret, copyrightiemark, and patent laws in the United Statelssamilar laws in other countries, and
non-disclosure, confidentiality, and other typesafitractual arrangements to establish, maintait emforce our intellectual property rights
in our solutions. Despite these measures, any ointellectual property rights could be challengedalidated, circumvented, or
misappropriated. Although we hold a limited numbgpatents and patent applications on some of ewen solutions, we do not rely upon
patents as a primary means of protecting our rightsir intellectual property. In any event, theas be no assurance that our patent
applications will be approved, that any issued matevill adequately protect our intellectual prageor that such patents will not be
challenged by third parties. Also, much of our bass and many of our solutions rely on key techgietodeveloped or licensed by third
parties, and we may not be able to obtain or caetio obtain licenses and technologies from thase parties at all or on reasonable terms.
Our failure to adequately establish, maintain, pradect our intellectual property rights could havmaterial adverse impact on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations. &atescription of the risks associated with ougllattual property rights, see “ltem 1A—Risk
Factors—Failure to Protect Our Intellectual Prop&ights or Claims by Others That We Infringe THatellectual Property Rights Could
Substantially Harm Our Business, Financial Condigod Results of Operations.”

Employees

As of December 31, 2011, we had a total of 3,35@leyees, a decrease of 160 employees when comfmatied number of employees we
had as of December 31, 2010. This decrease is piyndae to the consolidation of our print faciii from four to three locations during 2C
and reducing resources across functions to better
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leverage and align our talent across the globam@mation. Our success is dependent upon ouryatwligttract and retain qualified employe
None of our employees are subject to a collectargdining agreement, but are subject to variowsdaremployment laws and regulatic
based on the country in which they are employed bélieve that our relations with our employeesgired.

Available Information

Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports-orm 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, proxytamals, and amendments to those
reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 18(al5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act are add free of charge on our website at
www.csgi.com. Additionally, these reports are aafalié at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100de&tNE., Washington, D.C. 20549 or
on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. Informatiorttenoperation of the Public Reference Room caobb@ined by calling the SEC at 1-
800-SEC-0330.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

A copy of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethios (Code of Conduct”) is maintained on our wehsitay future amendments to the
Code of Conduct, or any future waiver of a provisid our Code of Conduct, will be timely postedotar website upon their occurrence.
Historically, we have had minimal changes to oud€of Conduct, and have had no waivers of a prawisf our Code of Conduct.
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ltem 1A. Risk Factors

We or our representatives from time-to-time may enakmay have made certain forward-looking statésmevhether orally or in writing,
including without limitation, any such statementada or to be made in MD&A contained in our vari®EC filings or orally in conferences
or teleconferences. We wish to ensure that sutbnstants are accompanied by meaningful cautionatgrsents, so as to ensure, to the fu
extent possible, the protections of the safe hagbtablished in the Private Securities Litigatieafd®m Act of 1995.

Accordingly, the forward-looking statements areliiga in their entirety by reference to and are@mpanied by the following meaningful
cautionary statements identifying certain importask factors that could cause actual results fi@idmaterially from those in such forward-
looking statements. This list of risk factors lgely not exhaustive. We operate in rapidly changingd evolving markets throughout the world
addressing the complex needs of communicationeseprioviders, financial institutions, healthcarevyiders and many others, and new risk
factors will likely emerge. Further, as we entewnaarket sectors such as healthcare and finareailces, as well as new geographic
markets, we are subject to new regulatory requirggnat increase the risk of non-compliance aedthtential for economic harm to us and
our clients. Management cannot predict all of thpartant risk factors, nor can it assess the imany, of such risk factors on our business
or the extent to which any risk factor, or combioatof risk factors, may cause actual results ffedmaterially from those in any forward-
looking statements. Accordingly, there can be uace that forward-looking statements will beusate indicators of future actual results,
and it is likely that actual results will differdm results projected in forward-looking statemeantd that such differences may be material.

We Derive a Significant Portion of Our Revenues Froa Limited Number of Clients, and the Loss of tBeisiness of a Significant
Client Could Have a Material Adverse Effect on O&inancial Position and Results of Operations.

Over the past decade, the worldwide communicaiiohsstry has experienced significant consolidatiesulting in a large percentage of the
market being served by a limited number of serpiciders with greater size and scale. Consistdtht this market concentration, we
historically have had approximately two-thirds of eevenues generated from four clients, which(ewerder of size) Comcast, DISH, Time
Warner and Charter, that each individually accodifde approximately 10% or more of our total reveswuAs a result of the additional
revenues from the Intec Acquisition, in 2011, we taree of these clients, Comcast, DISH, and Tinzen&fr, that individually accounted for
over 10% of our total revenues. This resulted ipragimately 40% of our total 2011 revenues comimgf these three clients. See the
Significant Client Relationships section of MD&Arfkey renewal dates and a brief summary of ourrass relationship with these clients.

There are inherent risks whenever a large percertaptal revenues are concentrated with a limitgchber of clients. One such risk is that a
significant client could: (i) undergo a formalizprbcess to evaluate alternative providers for sesvive provide; (ii) terminate or fail to ren
their contracts with us, in whole or in part folyaeason; (iii) significantly reduce the numbercastomer accounts processed on our solus
the price paid for our services, or the scope pfises that we provide; or (iv) experience sigrafit financial or operating difficulties. Any
such development could have a material adversetedfeour financial position and results of openasi and/or trading price of our common
stock.

Our industry is highly competitive, and while weeatly have succeeded in gaining customers atdpense of competitors and entered in
long term renewal with our second largest custothere is no guarantee that this success will nastilt is possible that a competitor could
increase its footprint and share of customers msER at our expense or a provider could develdpdha internal solutions. While our
clients may incur some costs in switching to ounpetitors or their own internally-developed solaspthey may do so for a variety of
reasons, including: (i) price; (i) if we do notopide satisfactory solutions; or (iii) if we do nm&intain favorable relationships.
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Variability of Our Quarterly Revenues and Our Faite to Meet Revenue and Earnings Expectations Wobllelgatively Affect the
Market Price for Our Common Stock.

Variability in quarterly revenues and operatingutessare inherent characteristics of the softwauek grofessional services industries. Comi
causes of a failure to meet revenue and operatipgatations in these industries include, amongrethe

« The inability to close and/or recognize revenu@pa or more material transactions that may hava batcipated by managem
in any particular perioc

« The inability to renew timely one or more matesaftware maintenance agreements, or renewing syrelements at lower rates
than anticipated; an

* The inability to complete timely and successfultyimplementation project and meet client expectatialue to factors discussed
in greater detail belov

With the acquisition on Intec in November 2010 wafe license, professional services, and softweaaimtenance services revenues have
become an increasingly larger percentage of oaf tevenues, and this mix of revenues is expectedtinue in the future. As our total
revenues grow, so too does the risk associatedmettting financial expectations for revenues dérivem our software licenses,
professional services, and software maintenanegcssrofferings. As a result, there is a proposiefy increased likelihood that we may fail
to meet revenue and earnings expectations of tlesiment community. Should we fail to meet anadygtectations, by even a relatively
small amount, it would most likely have a disprdmmrately negative impact upon the market pricewfcommon stock.

We May Not Be Successful in the Integration of OAcquisitions.

As part of our growth strategy, we seek to acqag®ets, technology, and businesses which will geothie technology and technical
personnel to expedite our product development stfprovide complementary solutions, or provideeasdo new markets and clients.

Our recent acquisition of Intec provides us withhgapportunities and challenges. Intec represesigrdficant increase in revenue, adds
approximately 1,500 employees, and gives us op@rmtn 24 countries where we did not previouslyehaperations. Integrating this many
people, processes, and operations presents nestoishe business that must be managed careffiitpt,lit could have a material impact on
operations and cause results to differ signifigafitdm expectations.

Acquisitions involve a number of risks and diffites, including: (i) expansion into new markets &odiness ventures; (ii) the requirement to
understand local business practices; (iii) the io& of management’s attention to the assimilatibacquired operations and personnel;

(iv) being bound by client or vendor contracts witifavorable terms; and (v) potential adverse &fen a company’s operating results for
various reasons, including, but not limited to, tbiéowing items: (a) the inability to achieve fineial targets; (b) the inability to achieve
certain operating goals and synergies; (c) cosisird to exit current or acquired contracts oivéis; (d) costs incurred to service any
acquisition debt; and (e) the amortization or imm&nt of intangible assets.

Due to the multiple risks and difficulties assoethwvith any acquisition, there can be no assurtvateve will be successful in achieving our
expected strategic, operating, and financial gfmalany such acquisition.

The Delivery of Our Solutions is Dependent on a &ty of Computing Environments and Communicationetworks Which May Not
Be Available or May Be Subject to Security Attacks.

Our processing services are generally deliveresltiir a variety of computing environments operateddy which we will collectively refer

to herein as “Systems.” We provide such computimgrenments through both outsourced arrangemeunt$, as our current data processing
arrangement with Infocrossing, as well as integnafierating numerous distributed servers in geducafly dispersed environments. The end
users are
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connected to our Systems through a variety of pubid private communications networks, which wé edgllectively refer to herein as
“Networks.” Our solutions are generally considet@the mission critical customer management systgnwur clients. As a result, our clients
are highly dependent upon the high availability andompromised security of our Networks and Systentenduct their business
operations.

Our Networks and Systems are subject to the rigiha#xtended interruption or outage due to manypfasuch as: (i) planned changes to our
Systems and Networks for such things as schedudedtemance and technology upgrades, or migratmoshier technologies, service
providers, or physical location of hardware; (iij)pnhan and machine error; (iii) acts of nature; amdifitentional, unauthorized attacks from
computer “hackers.”

In addition, we continue to expand our use of titerhet with our product offerings thereby permitifor example, our clients’ customers to
use the Internet to review account balances, @aelices or execute similar account managementiéunsc Allowing access to our Networks
and Systems via the Internet has the potentiad@ase their vulnerability to unauthorized ac@sbscorruption, as well as increasing the
dependency of our Systems’ reliability on the aaility and performance of the Internet and endsisefrastructure they obtain through
other third party providers.

The method, manner, cause and timing of an exteimdiextuption or outage in our Networks or Systemresimpossible to predict. As a result,
there can be no assurances that our Networks astdr8y will not fail, or that our business contigiyptans will adequately mitigate the
negative effects of a disruption to our Network$Sgstems. Further, our property and business inéon insurance may not adequately
compensate us for losses that we incur as a mefssilich interruptions. Should our Networks or Syste(i) experience an extended
interruption or outage, (ii) have their securitgdéched, or (iii) have their data lost, corruptedtherwise compromised, it would impede our
ability to meet product and service delivery obligas, and likely have an immediate impact to thsiess operations of our clients. This
would most likely result in an immediate loss toafisevenue or increase in expense, as well as giagnaur reputation. An information
breach in our Systems or Networks and loss of dential information such as credit card numbersratated information could have a
longer and more significant impact on our busirgssrations than a hardware-related failure. The ddsonfidential information could result
in losing the customers’ confidence, as well asdsition of fines and damages. Any of these evemttdchave both an immediate, negative
impact upon our financial position and our shortrteéevenue and profit expectations, as well adang-term ability to attract and retain new
clients.

The Occurrence or Perception of a Security Breachisclosure of Confidential Personally Identifiall Information Could Harm Our
Business.

In providing processing services to our custom&esprocess, transmit, and store confidential amdgmelly identifiable information,
including social security numbers and financial &edlth information. Our treatment of such inforimatis subject to contractual restrictions
and federal, state, and foreign data privacy lawgsragulations. We have implemented measures tegiragainst unauthorized access to :
information, and comply with these laws and redafet. These measures include standard industryigeacsuch as periodic security reviews
of our systems by independent parties, networkvaiks, procedural controls, intrusion detectiontsyss, and antivirus applications. Because
of the inherent risks and complexities involvegintecting this information, these measures mdydaadequately protect this information.
Any failure on our part to protect the privacy @rgonally identifiable information or comply witkai privacy laws and regulations may
subject us to contractual liability and damagess lof business, damages from individual claimdimss, penalties, criminal prosecution, and
unfavorable publicity. Even the mere perceptioma security breach or inadvertent disclosure ofqreally identifiable information could
inhibit market acceptance of our solutions. In #ddj third party vendors that we engage to perfeervices for us may unintentionally
release personally identifiable information or othise fail to comply with applicable laws and reafidns. The occurrence of any of these
events could have an adverse effect on our busifieaacial position, and results of operations.
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We May Not Be Able to Respond to Rapid Technolog€hanges.

The market for business support solutions, suctus®mer care and billing solutions, is characsetizy rapid changes in technology and is
highly competitive with respect to the need fordlynproduct innovations and new product introdutdioAs a result, we believe that our
future success in sustaining and growing our regemiepends upon: (i) our ability to continuouslgtgd modify, maintain, and operate our
solutions to address the increasingly complex anodiving needs of our clients, without sacrificifgetreliability or quality of the solutions;

(i) the integration of the Intec assets and itdedy distributed, complex worldwide operations; diiijl the integration of other acquired
technologies such as rating, wholesale billing, @aith analytics, as well as creating an integrsitée of customer care and billing solutions,
which are portable to new verticals such as wsitfinancial services, and content distributionaddition, the market is demanding that our
solutions have greater architectural flexibilitydainteroperability, and that we are able to meetdemands for technological advancements to
our solutions at a greater pace. Attempts to niesstet demands subjects our R&D efforts to greatks ri

As a result, substantial R&D will be required tointain the competitiveness of our solutions in tierket. Technical problems may arise in
developing, maintaining and operating our solutiagshe complexities are increased. Developmeifggsocan be lengthy and costly, and
may be subject to changing requirements, programualifficulties, a shortage of qualified personraeid/or unforeseen factors which can
result in delays. In addition, we may be respomsibi the implementation of new solutions and/er ithigration of clients to new solutions,
and depending upon the specific solution, we may bk responsible for operations of the solution.

There is an inherent risk in the successful devalt, implementation, migration, and operationwf golutions as the technological
complexities, and the pace at which we must delivese solutions to market, continue to increabe.risk of making an error that causes
significant operational disruption to a client,results in incorrect customer or vendor billingotegdtions we perform on behalf of our clients,
increases proportionately with the frequency andmlexity of changes to our solutions and new dejivveodels. There can be no assurance:
(i) of continued market acceptance of our solutidiilsthat we will be successful in the developrmnehenhancements or new solutions that
respond to technological advances or changingtatieeds at the pace the market demands; or @iwe will be successful in supporting the
implementation, migration and/or operations of emdeaments or new solutions.

Our International Operations Subject Us to AdditiahRisks.

We currently conduct a portion of our businessidetthe United States. We are subject to certaksrassociated with operating
internationally including the following items:

* Product development not meeting local requireme

» Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange ratesmoich a natural or purchased hedge does not existineffective;
» Staffing and managing foreign operatio

» Longer sales cycles for new contrar

» Longer collection cycles for client billings or aemts receivable, as well as heightened clienectitin risks, especially in
countries with highly inflationary economies and#ith restrictions on the movement of cash outhefd¢ountry

» Trade barriers
e Complying with varied legal and regulatory requients across jurisdiction
» Reduced protection for intellectual property rigimsome countries
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» Inability to recover value added taxes and/or ganttservices taxes in foreign jurisdictio

» Political instability and threats of terrorism; @

» A potential adverse impact to our overall effeciiveome tax rate resulting from, among other thi
. Operations in foreign countries with higher tavesathan the United State
. The inability to utilize certain foreign tax cregtitand
. The inability to utilize some or all of losses geated in one or more foreign countri

One or more of these factors could have a mataediadrse effect on our international operationsctvitould adversely impact our results of
operations and financial position.

Our International Operations Require Us to ComplyitlV Applicable U.S. and International Laws and Relgions.

Doing business on a world-wide basis requires ourgany and its subsidiaries to comply with the lawd the regulations of the U.S.
government and various international jurisdictiofiisese regulations place restrictions on our opersttrade practices and trade partners. In
particular, our international operations are subjed).S. and foreign anti-corruption laws and dagans such as the Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act (“FCPA"), the U.K. Anti-Bribery Acthal economic sanction programs administered by t&e Department of the Treasury,
Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”"). The FCR#ohibits us from providing anything of value twréign officials for the purposes of
influencing official decisions or obtaining or rating business. As part of our business, we refyutieal with state-owned business
enterprises, the employees of which are considereiyn officials for purposes of the FCPA. In alth, some of the international locations
in which we operate lack a developed legal systedhheve higher than normal levels of corruptiororieamic sanctions programs restrict our
business dealings with certain countries and inldizis. From time to time, certain of our foreigihsidiaries have had limited business
dealings with entities in jurisdictions subject@&AC-administered sanctions. These business dsalivigich represent an insignificant
amount of our consolidated revenues (less thanatfbincome, generally consist of software licermsubrelated services. As a result of the
above activities, we are exposed to a heightemsédfiviolating anti-corruption laws and OFAC regibns. Violations of these laws and
regulations are punishable by civil penalties,udahg fines, injunctions, asset seizures, debarifnent government contracts and revocations
or restrictions of licenses, as well as criminakf and imprisonment.

We have received an administrative subpoena frod@ated February 27, 2012. OFAC has requestedubgirovide documents and
information related to the possibility of directindirect transactions with or to a jurisdictiorbgct to various restrictions and/or
prohibitions. We have initiated an internal reviewdentify transactions by us involving the subjeatter of the subpoena. We cannot pre
the ultimate outcome of this matter, the total sastbe incurred in response to this subpoengdtential impact on our personnel, the effect
of implementing any further measures that may lmes&ary to ensure compliance with U.S. sanctigmslagons or to what extent, if at all,
we could be subject to fines, sanctions or othegafies.

Our Use of Open Source Software May Subject Us &t@in Intellectual Property-Related Claims or Reiget Us to Re-Engineer Our
Software, Which Could Harm Our Business.

We use open source software in connection withsolutions, processes, and technology. Companiési$ieaor incorporate open source
software into their products have, from time todjrfaced claims challenging their use, ownershii@rlicensing rights associated with that
open source software. As a result, we could beestibp suits by parties claiming certain rightsvtzat we believe to be open source software.
Some open source software licenses require usergistribute open source software as part of thafiware to publicly disclose all or part
the source code in their software and make anyal@re works of the open source code available on
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unfavorable terms or at no cost. In addition tksiselated to license requirements, use of opercea@oftware can lead to greater risks than
use of third party commercial software, as open@olicensors generally do not provide warransepport, or controls with respect to origin
of the software. While we take measures to praiactuse of open source software in our solutiopgncsource license terms may be
ambiguous, and many of the risks associated wilyei®f open source software cannot be eliminatede were found to have
inappropriately used open source software, we neagfuired to release our proprietary source amdengineer our software, discontinue
sale of certain solutions in the event re-engimeeciannot be accomplished on a timely basis, @& tdiker remedial action that may divert
resources away from our development efforts, anyto€h could adversely affect our business, finahgosition, and results of operations.

The Current Macroeconomic Environment Could Advelgémpact Our Business.

Over the past few years, major economies wherepeeate have experienced significant economic stredglifficulties within the financial
and credit markets. The timing, duration, and degfean economic turnaround are uncertain and these adverse economic conditions |
continue into the foreseeable future. The possililerse impacts to companies during these timésde@ reduction in revenues, decreasing
profits and cash flows, distressed or default debtditions, and/or difficulties in obtaining necaissoperating capital. All companies are
likely to be impacted by the current economic dawntto a certain degree, including CSG, our clieatsi/or key vendors in our supply ch
There can be no assurances regarding the perfoenmdmar business, and the potential impact toctients and key vendors, resulting from
the current economic conditions.

A Reduction in Demand for Our Key Business Supp8ulutions Could Have a Material Adverse Effect oruOFinancial Position and
Results of Operations.

Historically, a substantial percentage of our totakenues have been generated from our core oatmbprocessing product, ACP, and related
solutions. These solutions are expected to contimgpeovide a large percentage of our total revennehe foreseeable future. Any significant
reduction in demand for ACP and related solutiamda have a material adverse effect on our findnpmaition and results of operations.
Likewise, a large percentage of revenues derivem the Intec business have been derived from wal@dslling, retail billing and mediation
products which are typically associated with lairgplementation projects. A sudden downward shiftémand for these products or for our
professional services engagements for these prodoatd have a material adverse effect on our firduposition and results of operations.

We May Not Be Able to Efficiently and Effectivelyriplement New Solutions or Convert Clients onto Cawlutions.

Our continued growth plans include the implementatf new solutions, as well as converting both aew existing clients to our solutions.
Such implementations or conversions, whether theglve new solutions or new customers, have bedanreasingly more difficult because
of the sophistication, complexity, and interdeperuiles of the various computing and network envirenta impacted, combined with the
increasing complexity of the underlying businesscpsses. In addition, the complexity of the impletatton work increases when the
arrangement includes additional vendors partiaigith the overall project, including, but not liet to, prime and subcontractor relationsl
with our company. For these reasons, there iskahi we may experience delays or unexpected essticiated with a particular
implementation or conversion, and our inabilityctamplete implementation or conversion projectsrireficient and effective manner could
have a material adverse effect on our results efatjpns.

Our Business is Dependent Upon the Economic and ketrCondition of the Global Communications Industry

Since the majority of our clients operate withie tiiobal communications industry sector, the ecanatate of this industry directly impacts
our business. The global communications industs/uralergone significant
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fluctuations in growth rates and capital investreyies in the past decade. Current economic isdioggest a slow stabilization of the
industry, but it is impossible to predict whethigiststabilization will persist or be subject touté instability. In addition, consolidation
amongst providers continues as service provideis flor ways to expand their markets and increasi tevenues.

Continued consolidation, a significant retrenchnienhvestment by communications providers, or exenaterial slowing in growth (whett
caused by economic, geo-political, competitivecamsolidation factors) could cause delays or céati@hs of sales and services currently
included in our forecasts. This could cause ustheefall short of revenue expectations or hawest model that is misaligned with revenues,
either or both of which could have a material adgesffect on operations and financial results.

We expect to continue to generate a significantigroiof our future revenues from our North Americable and satellite operators. These
clients operate in a highly competitive environmé&umpetitors range from traditional wireline aneless providers to new entrants like
new content aggregators such as Hulu, YouTubeNatitix. Should these competitors be successfthair video strategies, it could threaten
our clients’market share, and thus our source of revenuegrasaly speaking these companies do not use oersetutions and there can
no assurance that new entrants will become ountslién addition, demand for spectrum, network adth and content continues to incre
and any changes in the regulatory environment coale a significant impact to not only our cliefis’sinesses, but in our ability to help our
clients be successful.

We Face Significant Competition in Our Industry.

The market for our solutions is highly competitiVée directly compete with both independent prowdamnd in-house solutions developed by
existing and potential clients. In addition, somégpendent providers are entering into stratetjanakes with other independent providers,
resulting in either new competitors, or competitoith greater resources. Many of our current anémtial competitors have significantly
greater financial, marketing, technical, and ott@npetitive resources than our company, many vigghificant and wellestablished domest
and international operations. There can be no assarthat we will be able to compete successfullly aur existing competitors or with new
competitors.

Failure to Protect Our Intellectual Property Rightsr Claims by Others That We Infringe Their Inteltgual Property Rights Could
Substantially Harm Our Business, Financial Positioand Results of Operations.

We rely on a combination of trade secret, copyrightlemark, and patent laws in the United Statessamilar laws in other countries, and
non-disclosure, confidentiality, and other typesaftractual arrangements to establish, maintait esforce our intellectual property rights
in our solutions. Despite these measures, any ointellectual property rights could be challengedalidated, circumvented, or
misappropriated. Further, our contractual arrangesnmay not effectively prevent disclosure of oanfidential information or provide an
adequate remedy in the event of unauthorized disotoof our confidential information. Others magtépendently discover trade secrets and
proprietary information, and in such cases we cowoldassert any trade secret rights against sutiegaCostly and time consuming litigation
could be necessary to enforce and determine theesmioour proprietary rights, and failure to obtaimmaintain trade secret protection could
adversely affect our competitive business positinraddition, the laws of certain countries do piitect proprietary rights to the same extent
as the laws of the United States. Therefore, itagejurisdictions, we may be unable to protect puaprietary technology adequately against
unauthorized third party copying or use, which doadlversely affect our competitive position.

Although we hold a limited number of patents anteptapplications on some of our newer solutiorsde not rely upon patents as a prin
means of protecting our rights in our intellectpadperty. In any event, there can be no assurdratetr patent applications will be approv
that any issued patents will adequately protectimtetlectual property, or that such patents wilt be challenged by third parties. Also, much
of our business and many of our solutions rely eyntechnologies developed or licensed by thirdiggrand we may not be able to obtain or
continue to obtain licenses and technologies filoesé third parties at all or on reasonable terms.
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Finally, third parties may claim that we, our cus#ss, licensees or other parties indemnified bgradnfringing upon their intellectual
property rights. Even if we believe that such ckane without merit, they can be time consuming@wudly to defend and distract
management’s and technical staff's attention asdueces. Claims of intellectual property infringerhalso might require us to redesign
affected solutions, enter into costly settlemerita@nse agreements or pay costly damage awarda¢c®ia temporary or permanent injunction
prohibiting us from marketing or selling certainafr solutions. Even if we have an agreement termuify us against such costs, the
indemnifying party may be unable to uphold its caatual obligations. If we cannot or do not licettse infringed technology on reasonable
pricing terms or at all, or substitute similar teology from another source, our business, finarmiaition, and results of operations could be
adversely impacted. Our failure to adequately distaimaintain, and protect our intellectual prapeights could have a material adverse
impact on our business, financial position, andltsf operations.

Client Bankruptcies Could Adversely Affect Our Bunass.

In the past, certain of our clients have filedfankruptcy protection. As a result of the currem@remic conditions and the additional
financial stress this may place on companies,ittheaf client bankruptcies is heightened. Compairigslved in bankruptcy proceedings pt
greater financial risks to us, consisting prindipal the following: (i) a financial loss related possible claims of preferential payments for
certain amounts paid to us prior to the bankrufitiryg date, as well as increased risk of colleatfor accounts receivable, particularly those
accounts receivable that relate to periods pridghécbankruptcy filing date; and/or (ii) the posiiyp of a contract being unilaterally rejected
part of the bankruptcy proceedings, or a cliediankruptcy may attempt to renegotiate more faverédsims as a result of their deteriorated
financial condition, thus, negatively impacting oights to future revenues subsequent to the batdydiling. We consider these risks in
assessing our revenue recognition and our abditotlect accounts receivable related to our cli¢hat have filed for bankruptcy protection,
and for those clients that are seriously threatevidda possible bankruptcy filing. We establislc@anting reserves for our estimated
exposure on these items which can materially imgpectesults of our operations in the period sederves are established. There can be no
assurance that our accounting reserves relatdiistexposure will be adequate. Should any of thiofa considered in determining the
adequacy of the overall reserves change advemselgdjustment to the accounting reserves may kessary. Because of the potential
significance of this exposure, such an adjustmeanldcbe material.

We May Incur Material Restructuring Charges in thEuture.

In the past, we have recorded restructuring chargjated to involuntary employee terminations, @asi facility abandonments, and various
other restructuring activities. We continually exate ways to reduce our operating expenses thnoegtrestructuring opportunities,
including more effective utilization of our assetmyrkforce, and operating facilities. As a restiigre is a risk, which is increased during
economic downturns and with expanded global opmnatithat we may incur material restructuring cbarig the future.

Substantial Impairment of Goodwill and Other Longvied Assets in the Future May Be Possible.

As a result of various acquisitions and the groaftbur company over the last several years, we hppeoximately $220 million of goodwiill,
and $170 million of long-lived assets other thandwill (principally, property and equipment, softwaand client contracts). These long-
lived assets are subject to ongoing assessmessfijpe impairment summarized as follows:

e Goodwill is required to be tested for impairmentamannual basis. We have elected to do our anestafor possible impairment
as of July 31 of each year. In addition to thiswmimequirement, goodwill is required to be evaddafor possible impairment on a
periodic basis (e.g., quarterly) if events occuciccumstances change that could indicate a p@ssiipairment may have
occurred

» Long-lived assets other than goodwill are requitetde evaluated for possible impairment wheneventsvor changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amouthese assets may not be recovere
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We utilize our market capitalization and/or casiwfimodels as the primary basis to estimate thesédire amounts used in our goodwill and
other long-lived asset impairment valuations. [irmpairment was to be recorded in the future, itlddikely materially impact our results of
operations in the period such impairment is recogphi but such an impairment charge would be acasih-expense, and therefore would t
no impact on our cash flows.

Failure to Attract and Retain Our Key Management drDther Highly Skilled Personnel Could Have a Matal Adverse Effect on Our
Business.

Our future success depends in large part on thénced service of our key management, sales, ptatBuelopment, professional services,
and operational personnel. We believe that ouréusuccess also depends on our ability to attratretain highly skilled technical,
managerial, operational, and marketing personnelding, in particular, personnel in the areaR&D, professional services, and technical
support. Competition for qualified personnel ataitan be intense, particularly in the areas of R&dDversions, software implementations,
and technical support. This risk is heightened withidely dispersed customer base and employedatams. For these reasons, we may not
be successful in attracting and retaining the persbwe require, which could have a material adveffect on our ability to meet our
commitments and new product delivery objectives.

Iltem 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties
As of December 31, 2011 we were operating oveea6dd sites around the world, representing ovef80Gquare feet.

Our corporate headquarters is located in EnglewBothrado. In addition, we lease office space altlnited States in Atlanta, Georgia;
Bloomfield, New Jersey; Burlington, Massachusefisarlotte, North Carolina; Chicago, lllinois; Dal|alexas; Fairfield, Connecticut; New
York, New York; Omaha, Nebraska; Oxnard, Califorftailadelphia, Pennsylvania; San Antonio, Texas; Westminster, Colorado. The
leases for these office facilities expire in thange2012 through 2024. We also maintain leasedtitiesiinternationally in Australia, Brazil,
Canada, China, France, India, Ireland, MalaysigariRh South Africa, United Arab Emirates, and th&.Urhe leases for these international
office facilities expire in the years 2012 throgfdil9. We utilize these office facilities primarfiyr the following: (i) client services, training,
and support; (ii) product and operations suppait;sfystems and programming activities; (iv) preg@nal services staff; (v) R&D activities;
(vi) sales and marketing activities; and (vii) gexi@nd administrative functions.

Additionally, we lease three statement productiod mailing facilities totaling approximately 217M86quare feet. These facilities are located
in: () Omaha, Nebraska; (i) Wakulla County, Fttaj and (iii) Coppell, Texas. The leases for tHasdities expire in the years 2013 through
2019.

We believe that our facilities are adequate foraurent needs and that additional suitable spaltéevavailable as required. We also beli
that we will be able to either: (i) extend our @ntleases as they terminate; or (ii) find alte#easpace without experiencing a significant
increase in cost. See Note 11 to our ConsolidaiteahEial Statements (“Financial Statements”) fdoimation regarding our obligations
under our facility leases.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time-to-time, we are involved in litigationa#ng to claims arising out of our operationshe normal course of business. In addition,
we have received an administrative subpoena frol@éated February 27, 2012. OFAC has requestedmbatrovide documents and
information related to the possibility of direct or
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indirect transactions with or to a jurisdiction gadi to various restrictions and/or prohibitionse Wave initiated an internal review to identify
transactions by us involving the subject mattathefsubpoena. The business dealings of our fosipsidiaries in the jurisdiction that is the
subject of the OFAC subpoena represent an insggmfiamount of our consolidated revenues (lessiB@nand income, and the business
dealings generally consist of software licensesratated services. We cannot predict the ultimateame of this matter, the total costs to be
incurred in response to this subpoena, the potentfEact on our personnel, the effect of implemegiany further measures that may be
necessary to ensure compliance with U.S. sanctemdations or to what extent, if at all, we cobklsubject to fines, sanctions or other
penalties. Thus, no reasonable estimate of thenpiatéoss is possible. Other than described abiovihe opinion of our management, we are
not presently a party to any material pending oedatened legal proceedings.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable

Executive Officers of the Registrant

As of December 31, 2011, our executive officersenreeter E. Kalan (Chief Executive Officer and Rfest), Randy R. Wiese (Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer), Jos&pRuble (Executive Vice President, General Colri3erporate Secretary and Chief
Administrative Officer), Bret C. Griess (ExecutiV&ce President and Chief Operating Officer), anatihiel J. Henderson (Executive Vice
President-Sales and Marketing).

We have employment agreements with each of theutixeofficers.

Peter E. Kalan
Chief Executive Officer and President

Mr. Kalan, 52, joined the Company in January 198as appointed as Chief Financial Officer in Octo®@00, and named an Executive Vice
President in 2004. In April 2006, he became Ex®&eutlice President of Business and Corporate Devedop. In December 2007, Mr. Kalan
was appointed Chief Executive Officer and Presidemnt elected to the Board. Prior to joining the @any, he was Chief Financial Officer at
Bank One, Chicago, and he also held various othanial management positions with Bank One in $exad Illinois from 1985 through
1996. Mr. Kalan is a member of The Cable Centerdoédirectors and is also a member of the Bo&@emsions of the Presbyterian Church
USA. Mr. Kalan holds a B.A. degree in Business Adistration from the University of Texas at Arlingto

Randy R. Wies:
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offic

Mr. Wiese, 52, joined CSG in 1995 as Controller lidr served as Chief Accounting Officer. He wamed Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer in April 2006. Prior to joing CSG, he was manager of audit and business@ghservices and held other accounting-
related positions at Arthur Andersen & Co. Mr. \Wiés a member of the AICPA and the Nebraska SooieGertified Public Accountants,

and serves as a board member for the Habitat faratity Board—©maha Chapter. He holds a B.S. degree in Accouffitimy the Universit

of Nebraska-Omaha.

Joseph T. Ruble

Executive Vice President, General Counsel, Corper&ecretary and Chief Administrative Offici

Mr. Ruble, 51, joined CSG in 1997 as Vice Presidgamt General Counsel. In November 2000, he wasimaiggoSenior Vice President of
Corporate Development, General Counsel and Comp&atretary. In February 2007,
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he was named Executive Vice President and ChiefiAidtrative Officer. Prior to joining CSG, Mr. Rubkerved from 1991 to 1997

as Vice President, General Counsel and Corporateeey for Intersolv, Inc., and as counsel to Bphg Systems, Inc. for its international
operations from 1988 to 1991. Prior to that, heesented the software industry in Washington, DrClegislative matters. Mr. Ruble holds
a J.D. from Catholic University of America and é&&Bdegree from Ohio University.

Bret C. Griess
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Offic

Mr. Griess, 43, joined CSG in 1996 as a projectagan and held a variety of positions in Operatamd Information Technology, until being
appointed Executive Vice President of Operationsdhruary 2009 and Chief Operating Officer in Ma2€i.1. Prior to joining CSG, Mr.
Griess was Genesis Product Manager with Chief Aotam Systems from 1995 to 1996, and an informasigstems analyst with the Air
Force from 1990 to 1995. Mr. Griess holds an M.égreée in Management and a B.S. degree in ManagdmenBellevue University in
Nebraska, an A.A.S. degree from the Community @ellef the Air Force, and an A.S. degree in Busidelsinistration degree fror

Brevard Community College in Florida.

Michael J. Hendersor
Executive Vice Preside-Sales and Marketing

Mr. Henderson, 54, joined CSG in 2010 as Execufiice President of Sales and Marketing to overskeeal business development,
marketing, and management of account relationgbip8SG. Prior to joining CSG, he served as Chadé$s Officer with Call Genie from
2008 to 2010, and as a partner with BVM ConsultirigZ from 2007 until 2008. Mr. Henderson was Presidfor Telcordia Technologies’
Global Solutions division from 2004 to 2007, andsved ADC'’s Software Systems division as Executiiee\WPresident of Global Sales and
Marketing from 1999 until 2004. He also was co-fdenand Chief Executive Officer of PCI, a ventuesked software company, and held
senior executive positions with Nortel, Frontiemr@aration, and Volt Delta Resources. Mr. Hendersamed an M.B.A. in Marketing and
Finance from the University of Rochester and a Br$4anagement Information Systems from the Uniigisf Arizona.

Board of Directors of the Registrant
Information related to our Board of Directors aDefcember 31, 2011, is provided below.

Donald B. Reec
Former Chief Executive Officer
Cable & Wireless Global

Mr. Reed, 67, was elected to the Board in May 2&@% presently serves as the Company’s non-exedOtiarman of the Board. He
currently is retired, having served as Chief ExeeuDfficer of Cable & Wireless Global from May 2D@ January 2003. Cable & Wireless
Global, Cable & Wireless plc’s wholly owned opeoats in the United States, United Kingdom, Europe d&apan, is a provider of internet
protocol (IP) and data services to business cusgrfeom June 1998 until May 2000, Mr. Reed se@able & Wireless in various other
executive positions. Mr. Reed’s career includey&frs at NYNEX Corporation (now part of Verizonyegional telephone operating
company. From 1995 to 1997, Mr. Reed served NYNEXpGration as President and Group Executive wispaasibility for directing the
company’s regional, national and international goweent affairs, public policy initiatives, legishat and regulatory matters, and public
relations. Mr. Reed currently is the Executive @main of Oceus Networks. Mr. Reed has also prewosesived as a director of

Intervoice, Inc., Idearc Media (formerly Verizon I\ev Pages), Bell Atlantic, St. Lawrence Cement &gdjregate Industries in London,
England. Mr. Reed holds a B.S. degree in HistasynfiVirginia Military School.
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Peter E. Kalan
Chief Executive Officer and President
CSG Systems International, Inc.

Mr. Kalan’s biographical information is includedtime “Executive Officers of the Registrant” sect&irown directly above.

Ronald H. Coopel
Former President and Chief Executive Officer
Clear Channel Outdoor Americas, Inc.

Mr. Cooper, 55, was elected to the Board in Novar2B@6. Mr. Cooper most recently served as theitRrasand Chief Executive Officer of
Clear Channel Outdoor Americas, Inc. beginningdf2 Prior to this position, Mr. Cooper was a Ppatat Tufts Consulting from 2006
through 2009. He previously spent nearly 25 yaathé cable and telecommunications industry, mexsgmtly at Adelphia Communications
where he served as President and Chief Operatifice®from 2003 to 2006. Prior to Adelphia, Mr. G held a series of executive
positions at AT&T Broadband, RELERA Data CenterSdélutions, MediaOne and its predecessor Contin€#hlevision, Inc. He has held
various board and committee seats with the NatiGadlle Television Association, California Cable &dcommunications Association,
Cable Television Association for Marketing and New England Cable Television Association. In addifiMr. Cooper is a director of the
Outdoor Advertising Association of America. Mr. Guaw holds a B.A. degree from Wesleyan University.

John L. M. Hughes
Chairman of the Boards for
Spectris plc, Telecity Group plc, and Sepura

Mr. Hughes, 60, was appointed to the Board in M&@hl. Mr. Hughes previously served as Chairmah®Board for Intec Telecom
Systems plc for nearly six years until the compamg acquired by CSG Systems International, In20it0. Mr. Hughes currently serves as
Chairman of the Board for several corporationduiting Spectris plc, Telecity Group plc, and Sepulca Spectris plc is a U.K.-
headquartered multinational leading supplier otjsien productivity-enhancing instrumentation awdtcol systems and equipment, and
Mr. Hughes has been Spectris’s Non-Executive Diaresince 2008. Telecity Group plc is a FTSE-25ttdeading provider of premium
network independent data centers with 24 locatioresght major European cities, providing co-looatand managed services, and he has
served as Chairman since 2007. Sepura plc is aseating and LSE-listed supplier of Tetra termsnfak mission-critical applications, and
he has served as Chairman since 2010. Mr. Hughmsrisntly also a director for Vitec Group plc. &mi2009, Mr. Hughes has served as
Chairman of the Board of AIRCOM International Liett, a privately-held independent global providenetfiwork management tools and
services specializing in the development and delieé end-to-end planning and optimization tools #® and cellular networks. From 2005 to
2007, Mr. Hughes also served as Chairman of theBaad then transitioned to Deputy Chairman uritil@for Parity Group plc. Mr. Hugh
has also served as a director for Nice SystemsQhthride Group plc, Global Crossing UK and Barc® NHe is also Chairman of Just Eat
Group. Prior to his multiple board positions, Miugihes served as Executive Vice President and Chgefating Officer from 2000 to 2004
for Thales Group, the leading European provideranfiplex systems for the defense, aerospace and emniatmarkets. Prior to 2000, he
served as President of GSM/UMTS Wireless Netwofksugent Technologies, and as Director, Convex @ldheld Operations and Vice
President and Managing Director of Convex Euromiyision of HewlettPackard Company. Mr. Hughes holds a B.S. degré&teictrical ani
Electronic Engineering from the University of Herfishire.

Edward C. Nafus
Former Chief Executive Officer and President
CSG Systems International, Inc.

Mr. Nafus, 71, was elected to the Board in MarcB2Mr. Nafus joined the Company in August 199&ascutive Vice President and
became the President of our Convergent ServiceSahudions Division in
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January 2002. In April 2005, Mr. Nafus assumedpibsition of Chief Executive Officer and Presidehttee Company and held that position
until his retirement in December 2007. Prior tmjog the Company, Mr. Nafus held numerous managepusitions within First Data
Corporation from 1978 to 1998. From 1992 to 19%8also served as Chief Executive of First Data Bess Limited and President of First
Data International; from 1984 to 1992, he serveBrasident of First Data International and Exe@utfice President of First Data Resources.
From 1971 to 1978, Mr. Nafus worked in sales mamag, training and sales for Xerox Corporation.nritP66 to 1971, Mr. Nafus was a
pilot and division officer in the United States yaWir. Nafus holds a B.S. degree from Jamestowite@el

Janice |. Obuchowski
President
Freedom Technologies, Inc.

Ms. Obuchowski, 60, was elected to the Board indolver 1997. She is the founder and has been Pnesidereedom Technologies, Inc., a
business that provides public policy and strategidgce to a wide range of companies in the comnatioias sector, to the United States
Department of Defense and other agencies, ancetimtérnational clients, since 1992. She was Chaairand Founder of Frontline Wireless,
Inc., a public safety network start-up in 2007 tlgbh 2008. In 2003, Ms. Obuchowski was appointe®i®sident George W. Bush to serve as
Ambassador and Head of the U.S. Delegation to thddARadio Communication Conference. She has seasdtbsistant Secretary for
Communications and Information at the Departmer@aimerce and as Administrator for the NationaETeimmunications and Information
Administration. Ms. Obuchowski currently is a dit@cof Orbital Sciences Corporation and Inmarsat. @buchowski was also a director of
Stratos Global Corporation and Qualcomm. Ms. Obudkdalso serves on several non-profit boardsyiiclg as trustee of the Federal
Communications Bar Association. Ms. Obuchowski bad].D. degree from Georgetown University andfa Begree from Wellesley
College, and also attended the University of Paris.

Bernard W. Reznicel
Consultant
The Premier Group

Mr. Reznicek, 75, was elected to the Board in Jgni897 and served as the Company’s non-executiagr@an of the Board from 2005
until 2009. He currently provides consulting seegi@s President and Chief Executive Officer of Reenterprises, and is Chairman of
Erra, Inc., a startup clean technology company.Ré&znicek previously was an Executive with Cerfitates Indemnity Company of Omaha,
a Berkshire Hathaway company, from 1997 to 2003h&ke40 years of experience in the electric utiligustry, having served as Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer of Bostondedi Company, and President and Chief Executive@ffif Omaha Public Power Distri
He also served as Dean of the College of Busir@sSreighton University. Mr. Reznicek currentlyaiglirector of Pulte Homes, Inc. (NYSE).
Mr. Reznicek has previously been a director ofeS&tteet Corporation, Stone and Webster, Guaraifesd NFOGROUP Inc. and Central
States Indemnity. Mr. Reznicek holds an M.B.A. @&egirom the University of Nebraska-Lincoln and & B.A. degree from Creighton
University.

Frank V. Sica
Managing Partner
Tailwind Capital

Mr. Sica, 61, has served as a director of the Compance its formation in 1994. He is currently amdging Partner of Tailwind Capital.
From 2004 to 2005, Mr. Sica was a Senior Advisdsdoos Private Funds Management. From 2000 ur@iB 26e was President of Soros
Private Funds Management which oversaw the dissdtastate and private equity investment activitieSoros. In 1998, he joined Soros
Fund Management where he was a Managing Direcsporesible for Soros’ private equity investments. Bica was previously Managing
Director for Morgan Stanley Merchant Banking Diwisi Mr. Sica currently is a director of JetBlueways, Kohl's Corporation, and Safe
Bulkers, Inc. Mr. Sica has previously been a doetdr NorthStar Realty
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Finance Corporation and Emmis Communications. Nira Solds an M.B.A. degree from Dartmouth Universind a B.A. degree from
Wesleyan University.

Donald V. Smith
Former Senior Managing Director
Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin, Inc.

Mr. Smith, 70, was elected to the Board in Jan2&§2. He is presently retired but continues to @¥inancial advisory services to certain
clients. Previously, he served as Senior Managiimgcior of Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin, Inc., amternational investment banking fir
with whom he has been associated from 1988 thr@008, and where he served on the board of direofdre firm. From 1978 to 1988, he
served as Principal with Morgan Stanley & Co. Imdhere he headed their valuation and reorganizatovices. Mr. Smith is also on the
board of directors for several non-profit organiaas. He previously served as director for JosBank Clothiers. Mr. Smith holds an M.B.A.
degree from the Wharton Graduate School of the &fsity of Pennsylvania and a B.S. degree from thiged States Naval Academy.

James A. Unruh
Managing Principal
Alerion Capital Group, LLC

Mr. Unruh, 71, was elected to the Board in Juneb26{& became a founding principal of Alerion Cap@aoup, LLC (a private equity
investment company) in 1998 and currently holdhquasition. Mr. Unruh was an executive with Uni§arporation from 1987 to 1997 and
served as its Chairman and Chief Executive Offiman 1990 to 1997. From 1982 to 1986, Mr. Unruhdhedrious executive positions,
including Senior Vice President—Finance and ChiefRcial Officer, with Burroughs Corporation, a geeessor of Unisys Corporation.

Mr. Unruh currently is a director of Prudential &itial, Inc., Tenet Healthcare Corporation and @gritink, Inc. He has also previously
served as a director of Qwest Communications laté@nal, Inc. Mr. Unruh holds an M.B.A. degree fréme University of Denver and a B.S.
degree from Jamestown College.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities

Our common stock is listed on NASDAQ under the sghiESGS”. The following table sets forth, for tfiecal quarters indicated, the high
and low sale prices of our common stock as repdiyeldASDAQ.

High Low
2011
First quartel $21.31 $18.3¢
Second quarte 21.5¢ 17.7C
Third quartel 19.6(C 12.3¢
Fourth quarte 15.5: 12.1:
High Low
2010
First quartel $22.2¢ $17.2¢
Second quarte 23.8¢ 18.2¢
Third quartel 21.3¢ 17.2%
Fourth quarte 20.3¢ 17.6¢

On March 9, 2012, the last sale price of our comstook as reported by NASDAQ was $16.00 per st@neJanuary 31, 2012, the numbe
holders of record of common stock was 215.

Dividends

We have not declared or paid cash dividends orcommon stock since our incorporation. We intencktain any earnings to finance the
growth and development of our business, and atithis, we do not plan to pay cash dividends inftileseeable future.

The payment of dividends are limited by the covésaii our Credit Agreement, and has certain imptctsur senior subordinated converti
contingent debt (the 2010 Convertible Notes). Set 8 to our Financial Statements for additionatdssion of our long-term debt and the
impact the payment of dividends may have on thieses.
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Stock Price Performance

The following graph compares the cumulative totatkholder return on our common stock, the Rus¥)0 Index, the S&P 500 Index, and
our Standard Industrial Classification (“SIC”) Codelex: Computer Processing and Data PreparatidiPaocessing Services during the
indicated five-year period. The graph assumes&h@0 was invested on December 31, 2006, in our camstock and in each of the two
indexes and that all dividends, if any, were rested.

5140
S120
5100
80
560
540
520
50
12/06 12407 1208 12/0% 12110 12111
—fF— C5G Systems Intermational, Inc. —#— Russell 2000
— & — S&P 500 — 89— ‘Data Preparation and Processing Services
As of December 31,
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
CSG Systems International, Inc. $100.0¢ $55.07 $65.3¢ $71.4: $ 70.8¢ $ 55.0¢
Russell 2000 Inde 100.0( 98.4: 65.1¢ 82.8¢ 105.1« 100.7¢
S&P 500 Inde» 100.0¢ 105.4¢ 66.4¢ 84.0¢ 96.71 98.7¢
Data Preparation & Processing Servi 100.0¢ 101.3: 79.0¢ 97.6¢ 111.8¢ 118.7¢

CSG is now utilizing the Russell 2000 Index rattieam the S&P 500 Index as its benchmark to morarately compare itself to companies
whose equity securities are of a comparable madgitalization.

26



Table of Contents

Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table summarizes certain informatabout our equity compensation plans as of Dece®ibe2011:

Weighted-
average
Number of exercise
securities to be price of
issued upon exercis outstanding Number of
securities
of outstanding options, remaining
options, warrants, warrants, available for
Plan Category and rights and rights future issuance
Equity compensation plans approved by securityérsld 72,53 $ 21.31 8,404,50!
Equity compensation plan not approved by secuotgdrs 30,51" 22.4¢ —
Total 103,05( $ 21.6f 8,404,50:!

Of the total number of securities remaining avaddbr future issuance, 7,681,170 shares can ke fosearious types of stock-based awards,
as specified in the individual plans, with the rémreg 723,338 shares to be used for our employaek giurchase plan. See Note 13 to our
Financial Statements for additional discussionwfexjuity compensation plans.

Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securities

The following table presents information with respi purchases of our common stock made durindotineh quarter of 2011 by CSG
Systems International, Inc. or any “affiliated pusser” of CSG Systems International, Inc., as éefim Rule 10b-18(a)(3) under the
Exchange Act.

Total Number of Maximum
Total Shares Purchaser Number of Sharet
Number of
Average as Part of Publicly that May Yet Be
Shares Price Paid Purchased Undet
Purchased Announced Plans the Plan or
Period (1) Per Share or Programs Programs
October 1—October 31 173,35¢ $ 13.21 171,78¢ 3,454,091
November —November 3( 1,21¢ 14.15 — 3,454,091
December —December 3: 12,22 14.4¢ — 3,454,091
Total 186,79! $ 13.3( 171,78¢

(1) The total number of shares purchased thatairpart of the Stock Repurchase Program represeates purchased and cancelled in
connection with stock incentive plat
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Date

The following selected financial data have beerivedrfrom our audited financial statements. Thesteld financial data presented below
should be read in conjunction with, and is quadifi®y reference to, our MD&A and our Financial Stag¢aits. The information below is not
necessarily indicative of the results of future ragiens.

Year Ended December 31,
2011(1) 2010(1) 2009 2008 2007
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Statements of Income Data:

Revenues(2)
Processing and related servii $524,66¢ $497,77! $464,97( $439,97! $382,07(
Software, maintenance and servi 210,06! 51,60 35,747 32,08 37,19:
Total revenue 734,73: 549,37¢ 500,71 472,05 419,26:
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation, sheaparately below’
Processing and related services 244,77¢ 258,63¢ 249,33! 226,34: 193,13!
Software, maintenance and servi 120,87 31,16¢ 26,34¢ 19,007 24,67
Total cost of revenue 365,65( 289,80: 275,67¢ 245,35( 217,80¢
Other operating expense
Research and developme¢ 111,14: 78,05( 70,11: 67,27¢ 58,34:
Selling, general and administrative: 128,34t 82,58¢ 59,51( 53,857 45,74
Depreciation(3’ 25,43¢ 22,42¢ 20,06¢ 16,194 12,90(
Restructuring charges(1)( 7,878 2,16¢ 59¢ 79 63C
Total operating expens: 638,44¢ 475,03 425,97( 382,75t 335,42«
Operating income(z 96,28¢ 74,34 74,745 89,29¢ 83,837
Other income (expense
Interest expense(1)(4)( (17,02¢) (6,97¢€) (5,660 (7,1372) (6,797)
Amortization of original issue discou (5,20€) (6,8979) (8,382 (9,767) (9,19¢)
Interest and investment income, net 764 754 1,19¢ 4,99¢ 16,52¢
Gain (loss) on repurchase of convertible debt sees(5) — (12,719 1,46¢ 3,351 —
Loss on foreign currency transactions — (14,027 — — —
Other, ne: 1,15¢ (817) 2 15 221
Total other (20,319 (40,669 (11,379 (8,535 75¢
Income from continuing operations before incomes& 75,97: 33,67: 63,36¢ 80,76¢ 84,59:
Income tax provisiol (33,690 (11,244 (21,507 (27,519 (29,947)
Income from continuing operatiol 42,28 22,42¢ 41,86: 53,25( 54,65(
Discontinued operations(€
Income from discontinued operatia — — — — 547
Income tax benef — — 1,471 323 61
Discontinued operations, net of t — — 1,471 323 60¢
Net income $ 42,28: $ 22,42¢ $ 43,33: $ 53,57: $ 55,25¢
Diluted net income per common sha
Income from continuing operatiol $  1.2¢ $ 0.67 $ 1.2 $ 1.5: $ 1.3t
Discontinued operations, net of t — — 0.04 0.01 0.01
Net income $  1.2¢ $ 0.67 $  1.2¢ $ 154 $ 1.3¢
Weighte-average diluted shares outstandi
Common stocl 32,83 32,82: 33,35: 33,24( 39,74:
Participating restricted stoc 18¢ 542 1,097 1,60z 1,33¢
Total 33,02: 33,36¢ 34,44¢ 34,84: 41,07:
Other Data (at Period End):
Number of ACP clien’ customers process: 48,837 48,91 48,64 45,31: 45,104
Balance Sheet Data (at Period End):
Cash, cash equivalents and s-term investment $158,83( $215,55( $198,37° $141,21° $132,83:
Working capital(1) 212,57¢ 171,08} 224,28 184,67 180,98:
Goodwill(1) 220,01: 209,16« 107,05 103,97: 60,74¢
Total assets(1 814,89° 879,69¢ 561,71: 484,77 412,12¢
Total debt(1)(4)(5 309,74« 374,68 157,44 175,78¢ 191,89:
Total treasury stock(i 714,89: 704,96: 675,62: 671,84: 667,85¢
Total stockholder equity 274,71« 237,07¢ 212,11¢( 164,68 105,70¢

Cash Flow Data:
Cash flows from operating activities( $ 60,95¢ $121,30¢ $153,05¢ $114,64" $115,37¢
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On November 30, 2010, we completed the Integuésition, and as a result, one month of Intec’sragions are included in our 2010 results and laviidlve months of Intec’s
operations are included in our 2011 results. Sete Rdo our Financial Statements and MD&A for acdission of the Intec Acquisition and its impactaam Financial Statements as
and for the year ended December 31, 2010 and J0tkloverall cost of the acquisition was approxirtya#00 million, which includes the purchase pri¢epproximately $364
million, (or approximately $255 million, net of daacquired of $109 million) acquisitiolated expenses of $26.2 million, and debt isse@osts of $10.2 million. The $26.2 milli
of acquisition-related charges consist of: (i) 1fillion of investment banking, legal, accountimy other professionals services, and are refléotselling, general and
administrative costs; (ii) $2.0 million of restrudng charges related primarily to changes in semanagement of Intec after the closing of thesaation; and (i) $14.0 million of
non-operating losses related primarily to foreigmency financial instrument transactions, whicé @flected in other income (expense). We finarthedntec Acquisition by
borrowing against the Credit Agreement, which cstssdf a $200 million, five-year term loan and &@@illion, five-year revolving loan facility, witthe remaining purchase price
satisfied by using our existing cash. As of Decen8de 2010, we had outstanding the entire $200anillerm loan and $35 million of the revolving lofatility, and as of

December 31, 2011, we had outstanding $190 mibiothe term loan and zero of the revolving loarilfigc See Note 6 to our Financial Statements fididonal discussion of our
Credit Agreement

During 2010, 2008, and 2007 we acquired sevmrsinesses as part of our growth and diversificastrategy which resulted in top line revenue dhofor 2011, 2010, 2009, 2008,
and 2007 of 33.7%, 9.7%, 6.1%, 12.6% and 9.4% ewsfely, of which almost entirely all of the 20@fowth rate, 37% of the 2010 growth rate, 57% ef2009 growth rate, 75% of
the 2008 growth rate, and 45% of the 2007 growt can be attributed to these acquired entitieth thie remaining growth in each year attributedriganic growth factors. These
acquired businesses have historically operatedat@r operating margin percentage than our legarsiness, thus, have had a slightly dilutive impaaiur operating income marg
percentage. Refer to the Business Section foriadditdiscussion regarding these acquisitic

In the first quarter of 2009, we began to tiams our outsourced data center processing ses\ficen First Data Corporation to Infocrossing. Aault, during 2010 and 2009, we
incurred $20.5 million and $15.5 million of expensespectively, related to these efforts, of wi$dl8.3 million and $13.6 million, respectively, aneluded in cost of processing and
related services and $2.2 million and $1.9 millimspectively, are included in depreciation in Statements of Income. See the Data Center Transé&otion included in MD&A fo
additional discussion of this matt

In March 2010, we completed an offering of $18illion of 3.0% senior subordinated convertibléesdue March 1, 2017 to qualified institutionayérs pursuant to Rule 144A
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Wd the proceeds, along with available cash, casivalents and short-term investments to: (i) repase $119.9 million (par
value) of our 2004 Convertible Debt Securities$&25.0 million (see Note 5 below); and (ii) repuash 1.5 million shares of our common stock for $28illion under our existing
Stock Repurchase Program (see Note 7 below). Seef\o our Financial Statements for additionatdssion of our lor-term debt

In 2010, 2009, and 2008, we repurchased $145.2omilpar value), $30.0 million (par value) and $2fnillion (par value) of our 2004 Convertible D&gcurities for $151.0 millior
$26.7 million, and $22.4 million, respectively, amtognized a gain (loss) on the repurchases & % illion, $1.5 million, and $3.4 million, resgtévely. In June 2011, holders of
$24.1 million par value of our 2004 Convertible D8ecurities exercised their put option and we plagdpar value and accrued interest to extingtistsecurities. In June 2011, we
exercised our option to call the remaining $1.Qiomil par value of our 2004 Convertible Debt Sedesitand extinguished the debt in July 2C

We sold our GSS business in 2005, and any sulesg activity related to the GSS business is c&dlit as discontinued operations for all periodseméed in our Consolidated
Statements of Income. We received approximately8$giion in net cash proceeds from the sale of thisiness, which is the primary reason for thédrignterest and investment
income in 2007

In August 1999, our Board of Directors approwed Stock Repurchase Program which authorized psitchase shares of our common stock from timivie-as business conditions
warrant. During 2011, 2010, 2009, 2008, and 200G repurchased 0.8 million, 1.5 million, 0.3 milliadh3 million, and 13.2 million shares, respectyvébr $9.9 million, $29.3
million, $3.8 million, $4.0 million, and $307.6 rdn, respectively. As of December 31, 2011, 3.8iam shares of the 35.0 million shares authorineder the Stock Repurchase
Program remain available for repurchase. See Nbte bur Financial Statements for additional disows of the Stock Repurchase Progr.

During 2011, we implemented various cost reidacand efficiency initiatives, which included a skéorce reduction to better align and allocate @msources and a consolidation of
our print facilities from four to three locatioriBhese initiatives resulted in restructuring charige2011 of $7.9 million. See Note 8 to our Finah&tatements for additional
discussion of these restructuring activiti

Our cash flows from operating activities forl20were negatively impacted by the following iterfisthe change in the monthly invoice timing fotrSM, which had a negative $20
million impact, further discussed in the Signific&lients section of MD&A; (ii) the payment of agpimately $8 million of Intec Acquisition-relategenses, that were accrued as
of December 31, 2010; (iii) the $6 million paymefideferred income tax liabilities associated viite 2004 Convertible Debt Securities that becanyalpla as a result of the debt
being retired; and (iv) changes in working capitins, to include a year-over-year increase in actoreceivable and decrease in employee compengayable, discussed in
further detail in the Liquidity section of MD&#
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Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains a number of forward-lookingteiments relative to our future plans and our egpiens concerning our business and the
industries we serve. These forward-looking statémare based on assumptions about a number of tampdactors, and involve risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual resultsfterdnaterially from estimates contained in theafard-looking statements. Some of the risks
that are foreseen by management are outlined abibhim Item 1A., “Risk Factors”. Iltem 1A. constitg an integral part of this report, and
readers are strongly encouraged to review thisasectosely in conjunction with MD&A.

MD&A Basis of Discussion

Our Consolidated Statements of Income (“Incomee8tants” or “Income Statement”) for the years endedember 31, 2011 and 2010
reflects the results of operations for Intec fa geriods from January 1, 2011 through Decembe?2®11, and December 1, 2010 through
December 31, 2010, respectively. As a result, ansguresented for prior years may not be comparaltlee 2011 and 2010 amounts. Such
comparable differences have been described belmventelevant or significant.

Management Overview

Results of OperationA summary of our results of operations for 2011 2640, and other key performance metrics are &mafsl(in
thousands, except percentages and per share amounts

Year Ended
December 31,
2011 2010
Revenues $734,73: $549,37¢
ACP customer accounts (end of peri 48,83’ 48,91:
Operating results
Operating incomi $ 96,28: $ 74,34
Operating income marg 13.1% 13.5%
Diluted earnings per shar*EP<") $ 1.2¢ $ 0.67
Supplemental dat:
Data center transition expen: $ — $ 20,48(
Intec Acquisitior-related charge:
Operating acquisitic-related expense — 12,24:
Non-operating loss on foreign currency transacti — 14,02:
Restructuring(1 7,87: —
Stocl-based compensatic 12,15: 12,33¢
Amortization of acquired intangible ass 22,72 6,20¢
Amortization of OID 5,20¢ 6,89:¢
Loss on repurchase of convertible debt secut — 12,71«

(1) Restructuring charges for 2010 primarily consfsapproximately $2 million related to changesénior management of Intec after the
closing of the Intec Acquisition. These costs amlded within the Intec operating acquisition-tethexpenses, rather than on the
restructuring line iterr

RevenuesOur revenues for 2011 were $734.7 million, an iaseeof 34% when compared to $549.4 million for 20k increase in total
revenues are almost entirely attributed to thetamdil revenues generated as a result of the lteggaisition.

30



Table of Contents

Operating Result®perating income for 2011 was $96.3 million, or3al% operating income margin percentage, compar&d4.3 million,
or a 13.5% operating income margin percentage20@0. The changes to our operating income and tipgriacome margin percentage
between years were impacted primarily by the follmpitems:

» We completed our data center transition effortsndu2010. As a result, data center transition espemeduced operating income
by $20.5 million in 2010, with no such expense20(i1.

* We incurred $12.2 million of Intec Acquisition-réda costs as part of the closing of the transadtidhe fourth quarter of 2010,
with no such expenses in 20:

* We incurred $7.9 million of restructuring chargesidg 2011 related to several efficiency and castrgs initiatives undertaken
during the year

*  We incurred $17.4 million of additional amortizatiof acquired intangible assets related to theclAgguisition in 2011, as a
result of the Intec Acquisition closing in the fduguarter of 201(

Diluted EPSDiluted EPS for 2011 was $1.28 per diluted shargclwcompares to $0.67 per diluted share for 20Mldted EPS for 2011,
when compared to diluted EPS for 2010, was impdgyeithe following items:

* $17.4 million of additional amortization of acqudrtangible assets related to the Intec Acquisjtivhich negatively impacted
diluted EPS by $0.29 per diluted she

» restructuring charges of $7.9 million incurred B2, which negatively impacted diluted EPS by $@&8diluted share; ar
» an effective income tax rate of 44% for 2011, coragdo 33% for 201(

Additionally, diluted EPS for 2010 was impactedtbg following items, for which there were no conglde amounts in 2011:

* Intec Acquisition-related charges of $26.2 milliosurred during 2010 (which includes $12.2 milliehoperating expenses, of
which $2.0 million related to restructuring, andi¥Lmillion of losses related to foreign curren@nsactions), which negatively
impacted diluted EPS by $0.52 per diluted sh

» data center transition expenses of $20.5 milliamctv negatively impacted diluted EPS by $0.40 pleited share; an

» the $12.7 million loss on the repurchase of our42G0nvertible Debt Securities, which negatively aofed diluted EPS by $0.25
per diluted share

Balance Sheet and Cash Flo\As of December 31, 2011, we had cash, cash equatgalend short-term investments of $158.8 milliam,
compared to $215.6 million as of December 31, 20h@. year-over-year decrease can be primarilybated to the following payments made
during 2011: (i) approximately $70 million of dgldyments, (ii) $22.2 million of capital expenditsyand (iii) $10 million of common stock
repurchases made under our authorized stock regmeqgirogram. Cash flows from operating activit@s2011 were $61.0 million, compared
to $121.3 million for 2010, with the decrease betwgears due to several unusual items impactingvotking capital items during 2011, as
discussed in further detail in the Liquidity seatio

Significant Client Relationships

Comcast Comcast continues to be our largest client. Bem#011 and 2010, our revenues from Comcast grewfiwe percent to $138
million, from $131 million, and represented approately 19% and 24% of our total revenues in 202010, respectively, with the
decrease in these percentages between years Oyivan larger revenue base in 2011. During 2012n€&st is expected to consolidate on
their markets, which is currently split in its usfecustomer care and billing systems between usaawmnpetitor, onto the competitor’s
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solution. As a result, Comcast is expected to desxrapproximately 800,000 customer accounts framsolution onto the competitor's
solution. This deconversion is expected to be cetaglin the second quarter, and is expected taeeour revenues from Comcast for this
matter by approximately $5 million for 2012.

Our processing agreement with Comcast, which rureaigh December 31, 2012, contains certain findieoi@mmitments associated with the
number of Comcast customer accounts that are gedes our solutions. We are currently engagedsicudsions with Comcast regarding
contract renewal terms. Although we believe ouratieg relationship with Comcast is good, there lsamo assurances around the timing
and/or the terms of any renewal arrangement atithes The Comcast processing agreement and ratadg¢erial amendments, with
confidential information redacted, are includedha exhibits to our periodic filings with the SEC.

DISH.DISH is our second largest client. For 2011 and2@dvenues from DISH were $92 million and $98 imil] respectively, representil
approximately 13% and 18% of our total revenues.

On January 15, 2011, we entered into a contraensidn with DISH to extend our relationship for gessing and related services, and for
print and mail services, through December 31, 28&7a result of this new agreement, in Februaryl20& began invoicing DISH for
processing and related services on a per-custootesat basis, to include volume-based tiered pyiciather than a monthly fixed fee. The
annual fees that we generate under the new agréelmeneased in exchange for the extended termeatdhtract and DISK migration to oL
ACP platform, which is expected to be completedrdu2012. At the time of the renewal in the firsiagter of 2011, we anticipated the
decrease in 2011 revenues from DISH related toathewal terms would be in the 10% to 15% range. él@n we provided additional
products and services to DISH such that the ade@iease in the revenues generated from DISH d@fad was approximately 5%.

Additionally, the terms of the previous DISH agresrrequired certain advance deposits and alloeemh¥oicing of monthly fees in
advance of such services. Upon execution of theageement, DISH was allowed to apply certain obéhadvance payments to its first
quarter 2011 invoices and the invoicing of montdyvices reverted back to our normal practice wabiting one month in arrears. As a res
our 2011 cash flows from operating activities weegatively impacted by approximately $20 milliontlas advance payments and invoicing
terms were brought in-line with the new agreement.

The DISH agreement and related material amendmeittsconfidential information redacted, is incladi@ the exhibits to our periodic
filings with the SEC.

Time WarnerTime Warner is our third largest client. For 200t 2010, revenues from Time Warner were $74 miliiad $65 million,
respectively, representing approximately 10% arfb 2 our total revenues. Our processing agreeméhthime Warner runs through
March 31, 2013. The Time Warner processing agreenweriains provisions establishing annual minimwstemer account levels that have
to be processed on our solutions, which we expigce Warner to exceed based on the number of Timen&/@ustomers currently on our
solutions. The Time Warner processing agreementalated material amendments, with confidentiabinfation redacted, are included in
exhibits to our periodic filings with the SEC.

Charter.Charter is our fourth largest client. For 2011 amwes from Charter were less than 10% of our tetenues. For 2010, revenues
from Charter were $55 million, representing appmeadely 10% of our total revenues. Our processimgegent with Charter runs through
December 31, 2014, and contains minimum finan@aimitments over the life of the agreement.

Data Center Transition

In December 2008, we entered into an agreementlafiticrossing LLC (“Infocrossing”), a Wipro Limitedompany, to transition our data
center computing environment used for the deliadrgur outsourced ACP customer care and billingises and related solutions from FDC
to Infocrossing. The term of the Infocrossing
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agreement runs through May 2015. We changed datargeroviders to partner with a global provideattfocuses on data center operatior
greater scale, and as their core business focus allbwed us to further improve the delivery of solutions while benefiting from an
improved cost structure.

We began our transition efforts to the new Infosiog data center in the first quarter of 2009, emigrated various computer systems and
communication networks to the new data center usingltiyear, phased approach. We finished our transitifamte to the Infocrossing da
center during the third quarter of 2010, and tinyrred no such expenses during 2011.

We tracked the expenses attributable to our detisiehange data center service providers sepgratethese expenses were not considered
reflective of our recurring core business operateggylts. These costs related primarily to ourredfto setdp, replicate, transition, and oper
the computing environment at Infocrossing, whilentaning and operating the computing environmenha FDC data center.

During 2010 and 2009, we incurred the following expes related to our data center transition effbaisare included in the following
captions in our Income Statement (in thousandsEbq@er share amounts):

2010 2009
Cost of processing and related services $18,27: $13,57(
Depreciatior 2,20¢ 1,91¢

Total data center transition expen $20,48( $15,48¢
Estimated per diluted share impact $ 0.4C $ 0.2¢

(1) This represents the estimated after-tax imfmanet income on a per diluted share basis usirmsaumed effective income tax rate of
approximately 35% and 34%, respectively, for thergeended December 31, 2010 and 2!

These costs included such things as the follow(ipg@quipment- and software-related costs; (iijpda@mmunications and data processing
costs; and (iii) labor and third-party consultireg$ for the transition team.

Additionally, during 2010 and 2009, we spent apprately $14 million and $16 million, respectivebn capital expenditures related to
network and computer equipment needed to set-upegpilidate the computing environment at the newdndssing data center location.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense
Stock-based compensation expense is included ifollogving captions in our Income Statement (inukands):

2011 2010 2009
Cost of processing and related services $ 2,58¢ $ 3,13 $ 3,65(
Cost of software, maintenance and serv 622 791 907
Research and developmt 1,63 1,63¢ 1,63¢
Selling, general and administrati 7,30¢ 6,771 6,44(

Total stocl-based compensation expel $12,15: $12,33¢ $12,63:

See Notes 2 and 13 to our Financial Statementsdditional discussion of our stock-based compenmisaikpense.
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Amortization of Acquired Intangible Assets
Amortization of acquired intangible assets is ided in the following captions in our Income Statemm@ thousands):

2011 2010 2009
Cost of processing and related services $ 3,30: $2,70¢ $4,067
Cost of software, maintenance and serv 19,41: 3,41¢ 1,92:
Selling, general and administrati 5 84 114

Total amortization of acquired intangible ass $22,72: $6,20¢ $6,104

See Note 5 to our Financial Statements for additidiscussion of our amortization of acquired igiafe assets.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our Financial Statements in @onity with accounting principles generally accepie the U.S. requires us to select
appropriate accounting policies, and to make judgsand estimates affecting the application ofetexscounting policies. In applying our
accounting policies, different business conditionthe use of different assumptions may result atemally different amounts reported in our
Financial Statements.

We have identified the most critical accountingigek that affect our financial position and theulés of our operations. These critical
accounting policies were determined by consideoimgaccounting policies that involve the most cagrr subjective decisions or
assessments. The most critical accounting polidestified relate to: (i) revenue recognition; @ljowance for doubtful accounts receivable;
(iii) impairment assessments of goodwill and otlbeg-lived assets; (iv) income taxes; and (v) besincombinations and asset purchases.
These critical accounting policies, as well asather significant accounting policies, are disctbgethe notes to our Financial Statements.

Revenue RecognitioThe revenue recognition policy that involves theshmmmplex or subjective decisions or assessmiatsitay have a
material impact on our business’ operations relatése accounting for software license arrangesent

Our software, maintenance and services revenusgigimarily to: (i) software license sales; fifbfessional services to implement the
software; and (jii) software maintenance servitesupport the software once it has been implendente

The accounting for software license arrangemesfgaally when software is sold in a multiple-eletn@rangement, can be complex and
may require considerable judgment. Key factors icemed in accounting for software license and eslaervices include the following
criteria: (i) the identification of the separatemkents of the arrangement; (ii) the determinationteether any undelivered elements are
essential to the functionality of the deliverednaedmts; (iii) the assessment of whether the softwhh®sted, should be accounted for as a
services arrangement and thus outside the scape gbftware revenue recognition literature; (hg tletermination of vendor specific
objective evidence (“VSOE”) of fair value for thedelivered element(s) of the arrangement; (v) dsssment of whether the software
license fees are fixed or determinable; (vi) theedmination as to whether the fees are considesbelktible; and (vii) the assessment of
whether services included in the arrangement reptesgnificant production, customization or mochfion of the software. The evaluatior
these factors, and the ultimate revenue recognitémision, requires significant judgments to be enlagl us. The judgments made in this area
could have a significant effect on revenues recagghin any period by changing the amount and/otithiag of the revenue recognized. In
addition, because software licenses typically Héte or no direct, incremental costs relatedhe tecognition of the revenue, these judgmr
could also have a significant effect on our resoltsperations.
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We acquired Intec on November 30, 2010. During 28&lobtained a significant portion of our softwhcense, professional services and
software maintenance revenues from the acquired kaftware products.

The initial sale of the Intec software productseyafy requires significant production, modificatior customization and thus falls under the
guidelines of contract accounting. In these sofenWimense arrangements, the elements of the amzergs are typically a software license,
professional services, and software maintenancenMre have VSOE of fair value for the software rreiance, which we generally do, we
allocate a portion of the total arrangement fethéosoftware maintenance element based on its Vi@@dir value, and the balance of the
arrangement fee is subject to contract accountsngguthe percentage-of-completion (“POC”) metho@dafounting. Under the POC method
of accounting, software license and professionalices revenues are typically recognized as théepsional services related to the software
implementation project are performed. We are ubimgrs performed on the project as the measuretéordime the percentage of the work
completed.

In certain instances, we sell software license malwpgrades, which provide our clients the righige our software to process higher
transaction volume levels. In these instance$i)ifoftware maintenance is the only undeliveremaint of the software arrangement; (ii) we
have VSOE of fair value for the software mainteraretated to the volume upgrade; and (iii) we nleetother revenue recognition criteria,
we recognize the software license revenue on fleetefe date of the volume upgrade.

A portion of our professional services revenuesadbinclude an element of software delivery (éhgsiness consulting services, etc.), and
thus, do not fall within the scope of specific aritative accounting literature for software arranmgents. In these cases, revenues from fixed-
price, professional service contracts are recoghimgng a method consistent with the proportiomafgymance method, which is relatively
consistent with our POC methodology. Under a prijpoal performance model, revenue is recognizedllmgating revenue between
reporting periods based on relative service praVideesach reporting period, and costs are genemratlygnized as incurred. We utilize an
input-based approach (i.e., hours worked) for psepmf measuring performance on these types ofasgt Our input measure is considered
a reasonable surrogate for an output measurestarioes when the work performed on fixed priceagemnts is of relatively short duration

if we are unable to make reasonably dependablmats at the outset of the arrangement, we ussthpleted contract method of
accounting whereby revenue is recognized when tir& i8 completed.

Our use of the POC and proportional performancénattt of accounting on professional services engagenmequires estimates of the total
project revenues, total project costs and the @¢rpdwours necessary to complete a project. Changesimates as a result of additional
information or experience on a project as work pesges are inherent characteristics of the PO@uambrtional performance methods of
accounting as we are exposed to various busirgssini completing these engagements. The estimptamess to support these methods of
accounting is more difficult for projects of grealength and/or complexity. The judgments and estés made in this area could: (i) have a
significant effect on revenues recognized in anyopeby changing the amount and/or the timing &f tvenue recognized; and/or (ii) impact
the expected profitability of a project, includingpiether an overall loss on an arrangement has i@xtufo mitigate the inherent risks in us
the POC and proportional performance methods adwatiing, we track our performance on projects asyaluate the appropriateness of our
estimates as part of our monthly accounting cycle.

Revenues from professional services contractsthillea time-andnaterials basis are recognized as the servicqseaf@med and as amou
due from clients are deemed collectible and cotiedly non-refundable.

Software maintenance revenues are recognized yaisabt the software maintenance service period.g0fiwvare maintenance consists
primarily of client and product support, techniopdates (e.qg., bug fixes, etc.), and unspecifiggages or enhancements. If specified
upgrades or enhancements are offered in an arrargewhich is rare, they are accounted for as aragp element of the software
arrangement.
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Revenues are recognized only if we determine tietbllection of the fees included in an arrangdri'eoonsidered probable (i.e., we expect
the client to pay all amounts in full when invoi¢eth making our determination of collectibilityfoevenue recognition purposes, we cons

a number of factors depending upon the specifieasmpf an arrangement, which may include, bubtdimited to, the following items: (i) an
assessment of the client’s specific credit worthievidenced by its current financial position/andecent operating results, credit ratings,
and/or a bankruptcy filing status (as applicak{i§)the client’s current accounts receivable status and/or iterigal payment patterns with

(as applicable); (iii) the economic condition oétimdustry in which the client conducts the majoat its business; and/or (iv) the economic
conditions and/or political stability of the countsr region in which the client is domiciled andémmducts the majority of its business. The
evaluation of these factors, and the ultimate ddteation of collectibility, requires significantggments to be made by us. The judgments
made in this area could have a significant effectavenues recognized in any period by changingutheunt and/or the timing of the revenue
recognized.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts ReceivalWe maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts ised#e based on client-specific allowances,
as well as a general allowance. Specific allowamcesnaintained for clients which are determinelawee a high degree of collectibility risk
based on such factors, among others, as: (i) ting & the accounts receivable balance; (ii) thentls past payment experience; (iii) the
economic condition of the industry in which theeali conducts the majority of its business; anddidgterioration in a client’s financial
condition, evidenced by weak financial position/@nadontinued poor operating results, reduced tratings, and/or a bankruptcy filing. In
addition to the specific allowance, we maintaireagyal allowance for all our accounts receivablétvire not covered by a specific
allowance. The general allowance is establisheddan such factors, among others, as: (i) the batlaince of the outstanding accounts
receivable, including considerations of the agiatggories of those accounts receivable; (ii) pesbty of uncollectible accounts receivable
write-offs; and (iii) the overall creditworthines$the client base. Our credit risk is heightenad tb our concentration of clients within the
global communications industry, and the fact thiarge percentage of our outstanding accountsveble are further concentrated with our
largest clients. A considerable amount of judgnmgnéquired in assessing the realizability of actsueceivable. Should any of the factors
considered in determining the adequacy of the divaiawance change significantly, an adjustmentht provision for doubtful account
receivables may be necessary. Because of the bsigaificance of our gross billed account receleatbalance ($182.2 million as of
December 31, 2011); such an adjustment could beriakt

Impairment Assessments of Goodwill and Other -Lived Assets.

Goodwill . Goodwill is required to be tested for impairmentan annual basis. We have elected to do our atesidor possible
impairment as of July 31 of each year. In additmthis annual requirement, goodwill is requiredéoevaluated for possible
impairment on a periodic basis (e.g., quarterlyviénts occur or circumstances change that codldate a possible impairment may
have occurred. Goodwill is considered impairedhéf tarrying value of the reporting unit, which s the goodwill, is greater than
estimated fair value of the reporting unit. Ifstdetermined that an impairment has occurred, aaiiment loss (equal to the excess of
the carrying value of the goodwill over its estiethfair value) is recorded.

As of July 31, 2011, we had goodwill of approxintatt202.8 million, which was assigned to a singparting unit. Since we had only
a single reporting unit, we used our public madagiitalization as our primary means to estimatedahesalue for that single reporting
unit. Since our market capitalization exceededctiveying value of our single reporting unit by gréficant margin, we concluded there
was no impairment of goodwill.

We believe that our approach for testing our gotidasi impairment was appropriate. However, if weerience a significant drop in
our market capitalization due to company perforneaaad/or broader market conditions, it may rasudtn impairment loss. If a
goodwill impairment was to be recorded in the fatut would likely materially impact our results gerations in the period such
impairment is recognized, but such an impairmeatg@h would be a non-cash expense, and thereforkl Wwaue no impact on our cash
flows, or on the financial position of our company.
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Other Longlived Assetslong-lived assets other than goodwill, which forrekates primarily to property and equipment, safty and
client contracts, are required to be evaluateghémsible impairment whenever events or changesdarostances indicate that the
carrying amount of these assets may not be recoleer& long-lived asset (or group of long-lived ets3 is impaired if estimated future
undiscounted cash flows associated with that agéthiput consideration of interest, are insuffidiémrecover the carrying amount of
long-lived asset. Once deemed impaired, even $hythe long-lived asset is written down to its faalue which could be considerably
less than the carrying amount or future undiscalintsh flows. The determination of estimated futagh flows and, if required, the
determination of the fair value of a long-lived etssre by their nature, highly subjective judgrsefhanges to one or more of the
assumptions utilized in such an analysis could riahg affect our impairment conclusions for lorigdd assets.

Income TaxesWe are required to estimate our income tax ligbititeach jurisdiction in which we operate, whidkludes the U.S. (including
both Federal and state income taxes) and numeooeigh countries. The criticality of our accountipglicies related to income taxes, and the
related estimates and judgments utilized in applyfrose policies, increased as we expanded ouatipes on a more global basis as a result
of the Intec Acquisition.

Various judgments are required in evaluating oooine tax positions and determining our provisiardricome taxes. During the ordinary
course of our business, there are certain tramgectind calculations for which the ultimate incamedetermination may be uncertain. In
addition, we may be subject to examination of mepme tax returns by various tax authorities witichld result in adverse outcomes. For
these reasons, we establish a liability associattdunrecognized tax benefits based on estimdtedether additional taxes and interest r

be due. We adjust this liability based upon chagdatts and circumstances, such as the closingaf audit, the closing of a tax year upon
the expiration of a statute of limitations, or tefinement of an estimate. Should any of the factonsidered in determining the adequacy of
this liability change significantly, an adjustmeatthe liability may be necessary. Because of titential significance of these issues, such an
adjustment could be material.

Business Combinations and Asset PurchzAccounting for business combinations and assethases, including the allocation of the
purchase price to acquired assets and assumelitiBatbased on their estimated fair values, regguurs in certain circumstances to estimate
fair values for items that have no ready markdbowhich no independent market exists. Under sticdumstances, we use our best judgr

to determine a fair value based upon inferencdhierdransactions and other data. As a resultatheunts determined by us for such items as
accounts receivable, identifiable intangible asgsdwill, and deferred revenue are not indivitjutile result of an arm’s length transaction,
but are the result of management estimates ofaih@dlue and the allocation of the purchase paeordingly, revenue recognized by us
related to fulfillment of assumed contractual oatigns under revenue arrangements is based ovelaie estimates made by us.

For larger and/or more complex acquisitions, whzatithe services of an appraiser or valuation expeassist us in the assignment of valu
individual assets and liabilities. The assumptiwesuse in the appraisal or valuation process awegfa-looking, and thus are subject to
significant judgments and interpretations by usa&ese individual assets and liabilities may bealfijprtized over their estimated useful life
(e.g., acquired software); (ii) not amortized &i{@lg., goodwill); and (iii) re-measured to faalue at a future reporting date until the
acquisition accounting is finalized and/or a cogéincy is resolved (e.g., contingent considerafiogliminary measurements of assets or
liabilities, etc.), the assigned values could hawveaterial impact on our results of operationsument and future periods.

Detailed Discussion of Results of Operations

Total Revenued.otal revenues for: (i) 2011 increased 34% to $784illion, from $549.4 million for 2010; and (ii)020 increased 10% to
$549.4 million, from $500.7 million for 2009. Thé% year-over-year increase between 2011 and 2@1bealmost entirely attributed to the
impact of the Intec Acquisition. Of the 10%

37



Table of Contents

yearover-year increase between 2010 and 2009, appadeiyn6 percentage points can be attributed tatbanic growth experienced from
our historical operations and approximately 4 petage points can be attributed to the one montlaahef the Intec Acquisition.

The components of total revenues are discussedia detail below.
Processing and Related Services ReverProcessing and related services revenues ford{i)l .hcreased 5% to $524.7 million, from $497.8
million for 2010; and (ii) 2010 increased 7% to $49million, from $465.0 million for 2009.

» Approximately 85% of the increase in processing r@hated services revenues between 2011 and 2@Becattributed to the
inclusion of Inte’s managed services revent

» The increase in processing and related servicesitms between 2010 and 2009 can almost entireditidleuted to organic grow
resulting from the continued adoption and use ofsmlutions, and conversions of customer accoumis our solutions during the
second half of 2009 from Charter and Time War

Additional information related to processing revesiis as follows:

* Processing and related services revenues for 2@lidies an eleven-month impact of the DISH conteatgnsion, which reflects
the lower annual fees, discussed earlier the inifségnt Client Relationships sectic

» Total customer accounts on our outsourced proggssilutions as of December 31, 2011, 2010, and,200& 48.8 million,
48.9 million, and 48.6 million, respective

* Amortization of the client contracts intangible ets§eflected as a reduction of processing reverfoe2011, 2010, and 2009, was
$7.5 million, $6.7 million, and $4.5 million, respively.

Software, Maintenance and Services Revermfsware, maintenance and services revenues @01l increased to $210.1 million, from
$51.6 million for 2010; and (ii) 2010 increasedtil.6 million, from $35.7 million for 2009. Theswreases are attributed to the additional
revenues generated as a result of the Intec Adipuisi

Total Operating Expense®ur operating expenses for: (i) 2011 increased 84%638.4 million, from $475.0 million; and (ii) 20 increased
12% to $475.0 million, from $426.0 million for 2009

» The $163.4 million increase in total expenses betw011 and 2010 can be mainly attributed to thieigon of the full year
impact of the Intec operations, offset to a certiegree by the $20.5 million of costs related todata center transition efforts a
$10.2 million of Intec Acquisitio-related costs, incurred in 2010 with no comparabheunts in 2011

* The $49.0 million increase in total expenses betv&840 and 2009 can be mainly attributed to thiedohg items:

. Total operating expenses for 2010 include one mohthtec operations, or approximately $20 milliaihexpense, which
includes $2.0 million of restructuring charges agsted with the acquisitio

. During 2010, we incurred $20.5 million of costsated to our data center transition efforts, as amegbto $15.5 million
during 2009 (a $5.0 million increas:

. During 2010, we incurred $10.2 million of operatigpenses related to the Intec Acquisition, whichmade up of
investment banking, legal, accounting, and othefgssional services incurred as part of the adiris
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. The remaining balance of the increase relates pilinta the additional operating expenses needeslippport the growth in
our revenues

The components of total expenses are discussedria detail below.

Cost of Processing and Related Services (Exclugilepreciation)The cost of processing and related services regetmgsists principally
of the following: (i) data processing and netwodkrenunications costs; (ii) statement productionésty., labor, paper, envelopes,
equipment, equipment maintenance, etc.); (ii)ntlgupport organizations (e.g., our client suppaftcenter, account management, etc.);

(iv) various product support organizations (e.godpict management and delivery, product maintenaetce; (v) facilities and infrastructure
costs related to the statement production and suppganizations; and (vi) amortization of acquiddiént contracts. The costs related to new
product development (including significant enhanests to existing products and services) are includdr&D expenses.

The cost of processing and related services fp20l11 decreased 5% to $244.8 million, from $258ilon for 2010; and (ii) 2010 increased
4% to $258.6 million, from $249.3 million for 200Botal processing and related services cost ofmea® as a percentage of our processing
and related services revenues for 2011, 2010, @88 ®ere 46.7%, 52.0%, and 53.6%, respectively.

Processing and related services cost, and progeasihrelated services cost as a percentage @rocessing and related services revenues,
were significantly impacted by our data centerdition expenses in prior periods, which had thefaihg effect (in thousands, except
percentages):

2011 2010 2009
% of % of % of
Amount Revenue Amount Revenue Amount Revenue
Cost of processing and related services revenlieghar $244,77¢ 46.7%  $240,36¢ 48.2% $235,76! 50.7%
Data center transition expenses (exclusive of aéguien) — — 18,27: 3.7% 13,57( 2.5%
Cost of processing and related services reve $244,77¢ 46.7% $258,63! 52.% $249,33! 53.€%

Absent the impact of the data center transitioreegps, processing and related services cost afueses a percentage of our processing anc
related services revenues would have decreaseukfcéntage points between 2011 and 2010 and Zérmiage points between 2010 and
2009. These decreases are reflective of the sealkfits we have been able to achieve from the &se@ number of customer accounts on our
systems, as a result of the customer accounts meeded onto our solutions during the second ha#089, and is also due to the operational
and financial benefits that we began to experidrmeggnning in the second quarter of 2010, followting substantial completion of our
migration efforts to the new data center locatind beginning in the third quarter of 2011 followitige consolidation of our print facilities.

Cost of Software, Maintenance and Services (Exausi Depreciation)The cost of software, maintenance and serviceqitmgeconsists
principally of the following: (i) client support ganizations (e.g., our client support call cerdecount management, etc.); (ii) various product
support organizations (e.g., product managementatigery, product maintenance, etc.); (iii)) pr&iemal services organization; (iv) faciliti
and infrastructure costs related to these orgadaizst(v) third-party software costs and/or royetrelated to certain software products; and
(vi) amortization of acquired software and acquickdnt contracts. The costs related to new prodaegelopment (including significant
enhancements to existing products and serviceshelteded in R&D expenses.
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The cost of software, maintenance and servicegijd2011 increased to $120.9 million, from $31.Rlion for 2010; and (ii) 2010 increased
to $31.2 million, from $26.3 million for 2009. Thegcreases can be entirely attributed to the lAtzuisition, and includes the amortization
expense related to the acquired Intec intangitdetaswhich had the following impact on the costaffware, maintenance and services (in
thousands, except percentages):

2011 2010 2009
% of % of % of
Amount Revenue Amount Revenue Amount Revenue
Cost of software, maintenance and services reveallegher $102,87° 49.(% $29,70( 57.6% $26,34 73.™%
Amortization expense related to acquired Intecrigifale asset 17,991 8.5% 1,46¢€ 2.8 —
Cost of software, maintenance and services reve $120,87- 57.5% $31,16¢ 60.2% $26,34« 73.7%

The increase between years can be entirely atidbtat the full year and one-month impact of Intperations under our ownership in 2011
and 2010, respectively. For 2010, the one monthtet operations contributed approximately $8 wiillof expense. Excluding the Intec
amounts in both years, cost of software maintenandeservices for 2011 and 2010 would have decddastgveen years as a result of a
reallocation of personnel and related costs asdigriernally to software maintenance and consulgirgjects to other projects.

Total cost of software, maintenance and servicesgescentage of our software, maintenance andcesrkevenues for 2011, 2010, and 2009
were 57.5%, 60.4%, and 73.7% respectively. As altre$the Intec Acquisition, our revenues fromtaare and professional services have
increased and become a larger percentage of @lirévenues. Variability in quarterly revenues apdrating results are inherent
characteristics of companies that sell softwameniées and perform professional services. Our qliareyenues for software licenses and
professional services may fluctuate, dependingasious factors, including the timing of executedttacts and revenue recognition, and the
delivery of contracted services or products. Howetree costs associated with software and profaasi&ervices revenues are not subject to
the same degree of variability (i.e., these cosigyanerally fixed in nature within a relativelyoshperiod of time), and thus, fluctuations in
our cost of software, maintenance and servicespascentage of our software, maintenance and ssrvavenues will likely occur between
periods.

R&D Expense (Exclusive of Depreciatic. R&D expense for: (i) 2011 increased 42% to $1Million, from $78.1 million for 2010; and
(i) 2010 increased 11% to $78.1 million, from $Zénillion for 2009.

e The increase in R&D expense between 2011 and 2@0almost entirely attributed to the addition dBMR&D activities.

* The increase in R&D expense between 2010 and 2@8%he result of: (i) an increase in personnelratated costs on R&D
projects, as more employees were redirected to BB&Its during 2010, reflective of our increasedus on product development
and enhancement efforts; and (ii) one month oftlaievelopment efforts being included in our 201@ants.

We did not capitalize any software developmentseatated to our client solutions in 2011, 20102@09.

Our R&D efforts are focused on the continued evofubf our solutions that enable service provideosldwide to provide a more
personalized customer experience while turningstations into revenues. This includes the contineglstment in our business support
solutions aimed at improving a providers’ time-tanket, flexibility, scalability, and total cost ofvnership. These efforts include the
integration of the recently acquired Intec prodiicts the CSG solution suite.

As a percentage of total revenues, R&D expens@ad, 2010, and 2009 was 15.1%, 14.2%, and 14 @8pectively. We expect that our
R&D investment activities in the near-term will bdatively consistent with those of 2011, with theel of R&D spend highly dependent
upon the opportunities that we see in our markets.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expense (Exetuisf Depreciation) (“SG&A”). SG&A expense for: (i) 2011 increased 55% to $328.
million, from $82.6 million; and (i) 2010 increa$&9% to $82.6 million, from $59.5 million for 2009

e The increase in SG&A between 2011 and 2010 is piiynthe result of the impact of the Intec SG&A fitions, offset to a certain
degree by the $10.2 million of Intec Acquisitiottated charges incurred in 2010, with no comparabieunts in 2011

e The increase in SG&A between 2010 and 2009 caritbeuded to 2010 amounts including $10.2 millidnimtec Acquisition-
related charges and one month of Intec operati®@&A expense. The remainder of the year-over-yseease reflects our
increased sales and marketing efforts to expamdaitter vertical market:

As a percentage of total revenues, SG&A expensgdat, 2010, and 2009 was 17.5%, 15.0%, of whi@Bolrelates to the Intec Acquisition-
related charges, and 11.9%, respectively. As gatied, our SG&A costs as a percentage of our regeimereased in 2011 as a result of the
Intec Acquisition. As is typical with many globaifsvare companies, Intec’'s SG&A expenses as a ptxge of total revenues are greater
than CSG'’s historical levels as a domestic outsliprocessing company.

Depreciation Expens. Depreciation expense for all property and equipinigereflected separately in the aggregate andtisncluded in the
cost of revenues or the other components of operatkpenses. Depreciation expense for 2011, 2602009 was $25.4 million, $22.4
million, and $20.1 million, respectively. Includedthe 2010 and 2009 amounts are $2.2 million an@ #illion, respectively, of depreciati
expense related to our data center transitiontsffdiscussed earlier. The sequential increasedspreciation expense is reflective of the
increased capital expenditures we have made ogdash several years (mainly related to statemettyztion equipment, to include our
investments in new color print technologies andefiagrint equipment, and computer hardware, softwand related equipment for our ser
offerings) and the acquired property and equipnfremb our acquisition activities.

Restructuring Charge:dn 2011, we implemented various cost reductioneffidiency initiatives that resulted in restruchgicharges of $7.9
million. These initiatives included reducing ournkifmrce across many functions and geographiesl@ddnsolidation of our print facilities
from four to three locations. We completed thedtiaiives in order to better align and allocate mesources as we continue to evolve and
invest in those areas where we have identified tr@mpportunities. As a result, the cost savingmfthese restructuring initiatives will be
reinvested back into our business in 2012. See 8ltdeour Financial Statements for additional infation regarding these restructuring
initiatives.

Operating IncomeOperating income and operating income margin H2q11 was $96.3 million, or 13.1% of total revesycompared to
$74.3 million, or 13.5% of total revenues; and 210 was $74.3 million, or 13.5% of total revenumsnpared to $74.7 million, or 14.9% of
total revenues for 2009. Operating income and dipgrancome margin in prior years were significgrithpacted by the data center transition
expenses and Intec Acquisition-related charges;siwhiad the following effect on our operating incoamgl operating income margins (in
thousands, except percentages):

2011 2010 2009
% of % of % of
Amount Revenue: Amount Revenue Amount Revenue
Operating income, all other $96,28¢ 13.1%  $107,06: 19.5%  $90,23:¢ 18.(%
Data center transition expen: — — 20,48( 3.7% 15,48¢ 3.1%
Intec Acquisitior-related charges(: — — 12,24: 2.2% — —
Operating incomi $96,28¢ 13.1% $ 74,34: 13.5%  $74,74 14.9%

(1) The Intec Acquisition-related charges includ®.8 million of costs related primarily to investnidanking, legal, accounting, and other
professional services and $2.0 million of restrtio costs related to the Intec Acquisitit
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Absent the impact of the data center transitioreegps and the Intec Acquisition costs, operatiognre margin decreased by 6.4 percentage
points between 2011 and 2010 and increased byetcemptage points between 2010 and 2009.

» This decrease between 2011 and 2010 reflecthigiimpact of the lower margin profile of our expaddoftware and services
business from the Intec Acquisition (to include @pgmately $17 million of additional acquired Intetangible asset
amortization); and (ii) the lower revenue impactha# seve-year contract extension with DIS

* The increase between 2010 and 2009 is the resyf) sfrong revenue growth; (ii) the scale bersefitat we were able to achieve
from the increased number of customer accountaiosystems; and (iii) the operational and finanbeefits that we began to
experience following our migration efforts to thewndata center locatio

At this time, we expect our operating margin fod2@vill decrease slightly to an approximate 12%gearThis anticipated margin decrease is
driven in large part by our expected increase peeses in 2012, due to our continued commitmeimviest in the longer-term opportunities
we see for our business.

Interest Expense and Amortization of Original IsBuscount fOID”). Our interest expense relates primarily to our 2004vertible Debt
Securities, our 2010 Convertible Notes, and oudiTr&greement. See Note 6 to our Financial Statesnfem additional discussion of our
long-term debt, to include the non-cash interepease related to the amortization of the convertitdbt OID.

Interest expense for: (i) 2011 increased to $17lom compared to $7.0 million for 2010; and (P10 increased to $7.0 million, from $5.7
million for 2009. These increases in both periogsdue to the interest expense related to the CAggieement, which was entered into dul
the fourth quarter of 2010 in conjunction with thé&c Acquisition.

Gain (Loss) on Repurchase of Convertible Debt SgesirDuring 2010, we repurchased $145.2 million (paugabf our 2004 Convertible
Debt Securities for a total purchase price of $a5dillion. As a result of this transaction, we rgozed a non-cash loss on the repurchase of
$12.7 million (pretax impact). During 2009, we reghased $30.0 million (par value) of our 2004 Catilske Debt Securities for a total
purchase price of $26.7 million and recognized r&-cash gain of $1.5 million (pretax impact). Th&®2onvertible Debt Securities were
fully retired in July 2011.

Loss on Foreign Currency TransactioDuring 2010, we recorded net expense of $14.0anilielated to financial instrument transactions
and the foreign currency impact of intercompanyerastablished to structure the Intec Acquisititiscussed earlier in the Intec Acquisition
section.

Income Tax ProvisiorOur effective income tax rates for 2011, 2010, 2009 were as follows:

2011(1 2010(2 200¢
44% 33% 34%

(1) Our 2011 effective income tax rate was highantour historical levels of at or below the statytJ.S. Federal income tax rate as a
result of losses in certain foreign tax jurisdiasdor the year. Under current accounting rulescamnot take a tax benefit for those
losses at this time, as we cannot carry the Idsaels to earlier tax periods or cannot assume teekwill be able to be netted against
future taxable income, which has the effect oféasing our effective income tax rate for the y

(2) During 2010, we had two unusual income tax ematimpact our effective income tax rate. Theservatters essentially offset each
other such that the net impact left the overakeff’e income tax rate for 2010 relatively in-lwéh the 2009 rate. These matters were
as follows:

» The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) completedrtiegamination of our 2006, 2007, and 2008 Feda@me tax returns in the
second quarter of 2010. Under current accountitesruve were
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required to establish a liability for unrecognizedome tax benefits (i.e., income tax reservesiteel to the uncertainty in the
realization of certain tax credits and incentivesrahe last several years. The realization unirgytavas due to the complexity of
the income tax regulations associated with thectagits and incentives, and the judgments and estsrinvolved in calculating
the tax credits and incentives claimed. The corlatf the IRS examination essentially validated ealculation methodology
and assumptions utilized in determining our cradi incentive amounts. Therefore, favorable adjasteito our income tax
reserves of approximately $4 million were necesgagccordance with our accounting polici

» During the fourth quarter, we incurred additiomadome tax expense of approximately $4 million edatb the difference in the
book and income tax treatments of certain Intecudsition-related charges and the loss on foreign currereys#ctions

Going forward into 2012, we expect that our effeetincome tax rate will increase from the currezdirydue to an anticipated increas
losses in certain foreign tax jurisdictions thatee@not benefit from at this time, and the uncetyaaround the Congressional approval
of the U.S. research and experimentation credithéynd of 2012. In addition, as we work to impdetour longer term global tax
planning strategy, we may continue to experiendatiity in our quarterly effective income tax rate

Liquidity
Cash and Liquidity As of December 31, 2011, our principal sourcelgoidity included cash, cash equivalents, andtstesm investments
of $158.8 million, compared to $215.6 million asD¥cember 31, 2010. The $56.8 million year-overylgrease can be primarily attributed
to the following payments made during 2011: (i) mpgmately $70 million of debt payments; (ii) $22rllion of capital expenditures; and
(iii) $10 million of common stock repurchases maadeler our authorized stock repurchase program, tiwithe expenditures offset by cash

generated from our operations during the year. Wrerally invest our excess cash balances in loky-stsort-term investments to limit our
exposure to market and credit risks.

As part of the Credit Agreement, we have a fivery8400 million senior secured revolving loan fagi(“Revolver”) with a syndicate of
financial institutions that expires in December 2@%ee Note 6 to our Financial Statements). Asaddnber 31, 2011, there were no
borrowings outstanding on the Revolver. The CrAditeement contains customary affirmative covenantsfinancial covenants. As of
December 31, 2011, and the date of this filing bekeve that we are in compliance with the provisiof the Credit Agreement.

Our cash, cash equivalents, and short-term invedthadances as of the end of the indicated pefiae located in the following
geographical regions (in thousands):

December 31 December 31

2011 2010
Americas (principally the U.S.) $ 132,53 $ 153,67-
Europe, Middle East and Africa (principally Euroj 21,16¢ 58,59¢
Asia Pacific 5,12¢ 3,281
Total cash, equivalents and sl-term investment $ 158,83( $ 215,55(

We generally have ready access to substantiallyf @lr cash, cash equivalents, and short-termsinvent balances, but may face limitations
on moving cash out of certain foreign jurisdicti@hge to currency controls. As of December 31, 20&lLhad approximately $5 million of
cash restricted as to use to collateralize out#tgridtters of credit.

Cash Flows From Operating Activitied/e calculate our cash flows from operating actgtbeginning with net income, adding back the
impact of non-cash items or non-operating acti(éty., depreciation, amortization, amortizatiorodb, deferred income taxes, stock-based
compensation, etc.), and then factoring in the thp&changes in operating assets and liabilities.
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Our primary source of cash is from our operatintydies. Our current business model consists sigaificant amount of recurring revenue
sources related to our long-term processing arrapgés (mostly billed monthly), and software maiatece agreements (billed monthly,
quarterly, or annually). This recurring revenueebpsovides us with a reliable and predictable smofccash. In addition, software license 1
and professional services revenues are sourcexsbf but the payment streams for these items ssepledictable.

The primary use of our cash is to fund our opegasictivities. Slightly over half of our total opérgy costs relate to labor costs (both
employees and contracted labor) for the followifilgcompensation; (ii) related fringe benefits; gii) reimbursements for travel and
entertainment expenses. The other primary cashresgents for our operating expenses consist ofiggtage; (ii) data processing and related
services and communication lines for our outsoupredessing business; (iii) paper, envelopes, aladed supplies for our statement
processing solutions; (v) hardware and softward;(@nhrent and related facility costs. These itemespurchased under a variety of both short-
term and long-term contractual commitments. A summéour material contractual obligations is pred below.

See “Cash Flows From Investing Activities” and “6d&dows From Financing Activities” below for thehet primary sources and uses of our
cash.

Our 2010 and 2011 net cash flows from operatiniyidiess, broken out between operations and chamgeperating assets and liabilities, for
the indicated periods are as follows (in thousands)

Changes ir Net Cash
Provided by
Operating
Assets anc Operating
Activities—
Operations Liabilities Totals
Cash Flows from Operating Activitie
2010:
March 31 $ 27,37¢ $ 3,94¢ $ 31,32
June 3( 25,05: (6417) 24,41
September 3 27,30¢ (8,80%) 18,50(
December 3: 32,52¢ 14,54t 47,07¢
Yeal-to-date tota $112,26:. $ 9,04i $121,30¢
2011:
March 31(1) $ 39,687 $(41,57¢) $ (1,889
June 30(2 21,75 (21,040 71z
September 30(: 34,54¢ (4,239 30,31(
December 31(3 34,34¢ (2,529 31,82¢
Year-to-date tota $130,33: $(69,37¢) $ 60,95¢

(1) The large decrease in operating assets and liabifitr the first quarter of 2011 relates primatdy (i) the change of the monthly invo
timing for DISH that had a negative $20 million iagp, as discussed above; and (ii) the timing ofhpents for several items specific to
the first quarter, including the approximately $Blion of Intec Acquisition-related expenses and #010 employee incentive
performance bonuses, both of which were accruedresgs as of December 31, 20

(2) As aresult of the payment of our 2004 ContégtDebt Securities, discussed in Note 6 to ouaféml Statements, $6 million of
deferred income tax liabilities associated with diebt became payable and were reclassified tortumeome taxes payable as of
June 30, 2011. Although this was neutral to ouraleash flows from operating activities, it prded a negative impact to our
operations portion of cash flows from operatingwviti¢s and a benefit to our changes in operatsgpts and liabilities. Additionally, the
changes in operating assets and liabilities fos#mnd quarter of 2011 were negatively impactethéyncrease in accounts receivable
in addition to decreases in deferred revenue acdied liabilities.

(3) During the third and fourth quarter of 2011, wedp®4.4 million and $1.6 million, respectively, bitdeferred tax liabilities discussec
Note 2 above, thus negatively impacting the changegerating assets and liabilities in each repecjuarter by these amoun
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Our cash flows from operating activities for theayended December 31, 2011 of $61.0 million wassually low for us, caused mainly by
the $34 million of one-time, nonrecurring itemshilighted in Note 1 and 3 in the table above, andtilations in year-end working capital
items. However, as the table above illustratespfferations portion of our cash flows from opemtctivities improved between years. The
variations in our net cash provided by operatintiyvéies are related mostly to the changes in quarating assets and liabilities related to our
operations. We expect that we will continue to same quarter end variability in our operating asaed liabilities in future quarters,
however, over longer periods of time, we do noteetphis to be a factor in our ability to contineegenerate strong cash flows. As a result,
we expect that our 2012 cash flows from operatttiyidies to return to more normalized levels.

Significant fluctuations in key operating assetd habilities between 2011 and 2010 that impactedoash flows from operating activities
as follows:

Billed Trade Accounts Receivable

Management of our billed accounts receivable isafrte primary factors in maintaining strong gedst cash flows from operating
activities. Our billed trade accounts receivabliaibee includes significant billings for several r@venue items (primarily postage,
sales tax, and deferred revenue items). As a reselevaluate our performance in collecting ouaots receivable through our
calculation of days billings outstanding (“DBO”}in@r than a typical days sales outstanding (“DSsafgulation. DBO is calculated
based on the billings for the period (including +remenue items) divided by the average monthlytnaete accounts receivable balance
for the period.

Our gross and net billed trade accounts receivafderelated allowance for doubtful accounts red#éevé'Allowance”) as of the end of
the indicated quarterly periods, and the relate@BBor the quarters then ended, are as followthfnsands, except DBOS):

Quarter Ended Gross Allowance Net Billed DBOs
2010:
March 31 $109,45¢ $(2,289) $107,16° 51
June 3( 102,52¢ (2,130 100,39 51
September 3 115,67- (2,355 113,31¢ 50
December 3: 156,84 (1,837) 155,00! 48
2011
March 31 150,59: (1,95¢) 148,63: 53
June 3( 168,97° (2,54)) 166,43t 59
September 3 159,74¢ (2,472) 157,27¢ 61
December 3: 182,22! (2,42)) 179,80: 60

The increase in gross and net accounts receivalttesifourth quarter of 2010 over historical levislgue to the Intec Acquisition. The
increase in gross and net billed accounts receaviatthe fourth quarter of 2011 can be primarilyilatited to the fluctuations in the
timing of client payments at quarter-end and teesahbilling milestones being met towards the ehthe quarter. All other changes in
our gross and net billed trade accounts receivgtidevn in the table above reflect the normal fluttues in the timing of client paymet
made at quarter-end, evidenced by our consiste@ Btric over the past several quarters.

As a result of the Intec Acquisition, a greatercpetage of our accounts receivable balance begjrwith the quarter ended
December 31, 2010, relate to clients outside ti& Bs expected, this greater diversity in the gaphic composition of our client base
is impacting our DBO (when compared to our his@rgxperience prior to the Intec Acquisition) asder billing cycles (i.e., billing
terms and cash collection cycles) are an inhefgatacteristic of international software and prof&sal services transactions. For
example, our ability to bill (i.e., send an invdi@nd collect arrangement fees may be dependent, @poong other things: (i) the
completion of various client administrative mattdogal country billing
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protocols and processes (including local cultuitfiébnces), and/or non-client administrative mtt€ii) us meeting certain contractual
invoicing milestones; or (iii) the overall projestatus in certain situations in which we act astecentractor to another vendor on a
project.

Trade Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Trade accounts payable and accrued liabilities §2edL million of cash flows from operating actieg due to decreases in: (i) accrued
employee compensation, primarily as a result oeloemployee incentive compensation being accruedsdo@f December 31, 2011
compared to December 31, 2010, as we underperfotonear financial incentive targets for 2011; aiddther current liabilities,
primarily related to the payment of approximate8yrillion of Intec Acquisition-related expenses,igthwere accrued for as of
December 31, 2010.

Deferred Revenue

Total deferred revenue (current and non-currergdl $28.5 million of cash flows from operating aitiés in 2011. This was primarily
attributed to the change in monthly invoice timfog DISH, to bring the advance payments and invgjderms in-line with the terms of
their contract renewal, which was executed in JgnR@11. This change in the DISH invoice timing leadegative ($20) million impact
to our cash flows from operating activities.

Cash Flows From Investing Activitie©ur typical investing activities consist of puases/sales of short-term investments, purchases of
property and equipment, and investments in clientracts, which are discussed below. However, oveRNter 30, 2010 we acquired Intec,
which is included in our cash flows from investiagivities.

Purchases/Sales of Shegtm Investments.

During 2011, 2010, and 2009 we purchased $37.8omjl$64.6 million, and $57.0 million, respectivend sold or had mature $43.5
million, $81.9 million, and $79.7 million, respegtly, of shortterm investments. We continually evaluate the fbssises of our exce
cash balances and will likely purchase and selitaahél short-term investments in the future.

Property and Equipment/Client Contracts.

Our annual capital expenditures for property andgent, and investments in client contracts waréobows (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009
Property and equipment $22,19’ $14,27" $40,31:
Client contract: 9,13¢ 4,797 16,42:

Our capital expenditures for these periods corigtacipally of investments in: (i) computer hahe, software, and related
equipment; (ii) statement production equipment; @iidfacilities and internal infrastructure itemadditionally, of the $14 million and
$40 million spent on property and equipment du@8d0 and 2009, approximately $2 million and $1diomil respectively, were relatt
to various network and computing equipment reléeour data center transition efforts.

Our investments in client contracts for 2011, 2G4 2009 relate primarily to: (i) cash incentipesvided to clients to convert their
customer accounts to, or retain their customert®aets on, our customer care and billing systemd;(& direct and incremental costs
incurred for conversion/set-up services relateldng-term processing or managed services arrangsmaérere we are required to defer
conversion/set-up services fees and recognize fleesaas the related processing services are pertbrFor 2011, 2010, and 2009 our:
(i) investments in client contracts related to ciaslentives were $1.7 million, $2.4 million, and1$3 million, respectively; and (i) the
deferral of costs related to conversion/set-upiseswrovided under long-term processing contraete $7.4 million, $2.4 million, and
$4.9 million, respectively.
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Cash Flows From Financing Activitie®ur financing activities typically consist of vaui® debt-related transactions and activities with
our common stock, which are discussed below.

Issuance of Common Stock.

Proceeds from the issuance of common stock for 22010, and 2009 were $1.5 million, $1.4 milliondg1.5 million, respectively,
and relates primarily to employee stock purchaaa plrchases.

Repurchase of Common Stock.

During 2011, 2010, and 2009 we repurchased 750060nillion, and 250,000 shares of our commonistower the guidelines of our
Stock Repurchase Program for $9.9 million, $29.liani and $3.8 million, respectively. In additiooytside of our Stock Repurchase
Program, during 2011, 2010, and 2009 we repurchisadour employees and then cancelled approxim&@®,000 shares, 232,000
shares, and 195,000 shares of our common sto@dfdrmillion, $4.7 million, and $2.8 million, resg#vely, in connection with
minimum tax withholding requirements resulting froime vesting of restricted stock under our stodeitive plans.

Longterm debt.

During 2011, we: (i) repaid the $35 million outsdamy balance of the Revolver; (ii) paid $25.1 noifliof 2004 Convertible Debt
Securities, primarily as a result of the holdersreising their put option; and (iii) made $10.0lmit of mandatory repayments on the
Term Loan.

In March 2010, we completed an offering of $150lioml of our 2010 Convertible Notes. In connectioitiméhe issuance of the
convertible notes, we paid deferred financing cos%5.0 million. We used a portion of the $145lioil net proceeds from the offering
to repurchase $119.9 million (par value) of our2@nvertible Debt Securities for $125.0 milliordditionally, during the remainder
of 2010, we repurchased $25.3 million (par valde)us 2004 Convertible Debt Securities for $26.0lion.

In December 2010, in conjunction with the closirighe Intec Acquisition, we fully borrowed agairtse $200 million principal five-
year term loan and borrowed $35 million of the $iilion, five-year revolving loan facility. We udehe proceeds of the Credit
Agreement, along with available corporate funds(i)dund the Intec Acquisition; (ii) pay deferrédancing costs of $10.0 million; and
(iii) pay $14.0 million for foreign currency traretéons related to the Intec Acquisition.

In 2009, we repurchased $30.0 million (par valde)ur 2004 Convertible Debt Securities for $26.Tlion.
See Note 6 to our Financial Statements for additidiscussion of our long-term debt.

Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commmi¢énts and Contingencies
We have various contractual obligations that acenged as liabilities in our Consolidated Balanbees. Other items, such as certain
purchase commitments and other executory conteaetaot recognized as liabilities in our Balance&®$, but are required to be disclosed.

The following table summarizes our significant @antual obligations and commercial commitmentsfddezember 31, 2011, and the future
periods in which such obligations are expectecetgdidtled in cash (in thousands).

Less than More than

Total 1 year Years 2-3 Years 4-5 5 Years
Long-term debt $389,50¢ $ 40,18( $ 92,927 $105,65. $150,75(
Capital and operating leas 105,89( 18,44¢ 30,17¢ 18,031 39,22¢
Purchase obligatior 205,02¢ 64,32¢ 106,43( 34,25( 23
Total $700,42° $122,95: $229,53¢ $157,93t  $189,99¢
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Our longterm debt obligations are discussed in more digtdillote 6 to our Financial Statements. The conti@adbligation amounts reflect
for our long-term debt is based upon the followasgumptions:

() our 2010 Convertible Notes are outstanding digiotheir maturity date of March 1, 2017; uponlseetent, our cash obligation will
not exceed their principal amount; and interesd plaiough their life is at a rate of 3.0% per ann

(il asitrelates to our Credit Agreement, we makeanore than the mandatory quarterly amortizgti@ayments on the term loan; there
are no mandatory prepayments required on the mamafter the $7 million to be paid in 2012; anel ititerest paid throughout t
life of the term loan is based upon the interetgt applicable as of December 31, 2011, as impdmntete interest rate swap
contracts

The operating leases are discussed in Note 11rtBinancial Statements. Our purchase obligatiomsisb primarily of our expected
minimum base fees under the Infocrossing serviceesmgent (discussed in Note 11 to our Financiak8tants), and data communication and
business continuity planning services.

Of the total contractual obligations and commerc@hmitments above, approximately $348 millioneiected in our Balance Sheet.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
None

Capital Resources

The following are the key items to consider in ass®y our sources and uses of capital resources:
Current Sources of Capital Resources.

e Cash, Cash Equivalents and SHerm InvestmentsAs of December 31, 2011, we had cash, cash equigalend short-term
investments of $158.8 million, of which over 80%ridJ.S. Dollars, and held in the U.S. We do hgwpreximately $5 million
restricted as to use to collateralize outstanditigis of credit. For the remainder of the monimsadninated in foreign currencies
and/or located outside the United States, we dantitipate any material amounts being unavail&dri@se in running our
business

* Operating Cash Flow#s described in the Liquidity section above, wadad we have the ability to consistently generéteng
cash flows to fund our operating activities andasch source of funds for our capital resource s

* Revolving Loan FacilityWe have a five-year, $100 million senior secureakeng loan facility with a syndicate of financial
institutions that expires in December 2015. Ashef date of this filing, we have $100 million of ttexvolving loan facility availab
to us.

Uses/Potential Uses of Capital Resourdgslow are the key items to consider in assessingises/potential uses of capital resources:

» Common Stock Repurchas#&8e have made significant repurchases of our comstamrk in the past under our Stock Repurchase
Program. See Note 12 to our Financial Statements sommary of such stock repurchases. During ¢lae gnded December 31,
2011, we repurchased 750,000 shares of our comtnok fr $9.9 million ($13.24 per share). As of Batber 31, 2011, we have
3.5 million shares authorized for repurchase reinginnder our Stock Repurchase Program. Our Chggiitement places certain
limitations on our ability to repurchase our comnstock. We continue to evaluate the best use otapital going forward, whic
from time-to-time, may include additional share repurchasesaa&ehand business conditions warr:

» Acquisitions.We have made five acquisitions in the last fiverge@he most recent acquisition was the Intec Agitjan in
November 2010 where we paid cash related to tinsaion of approximatel
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$378 million (or $269 million, net of cash acquiyeds part of our strategy, we are continually exaéihg potential business and
asset acquisitions and investments in market sharansion with our existing and potential new dbe

» Capital Expenditure$uring the year ended December 31, 2011, we sph2$nillion on capital expenditures. At this tinneg
expect our 2012 capital expenditures to be appratéin $30 million. As of December 31, 2011, we henade no significant
capital expenditure commitmen

* Investments in Client Contracis. the past, we have provided incentives to neexisting U.S. processing clients to convert their
customer accounts to, or retain their customerm®awts on, our customer care and billing solutiéhsjng the year ended
December 31, 2011, we made client incentive paysnei$1.7 million. Any commitments to make futui@yments of this nature
are payable by us only upon certain of our clidmisging additional customer accounts onto our essing solutions. As of
December 31, 2011, we did not have any materiahesibments for such investmen

e LongTerm Debt ServiceAs of December 31, 2011, our lotgrm debt consisted of: (i) 2010 Convertible Notéth a par value ¢
$150.0 million; and (ii) Credit Agreement term loaorrowings of $190.0 million. During the next twelmonths, there are no
scheduled conversion triggers on our 2010 Converhlotes, and therefore, our expected cash detiteat this time is only for
the $4.5 million of interest expense due annuafiyh® notes. The principal payments during 2012torCredit Agreement are
approximately $27 million, and our current scheduash interest expense for 2012 is approximai@imiflion. We have the
ability to make prepayments on our Credit Agreenvéttiout penalty

We continue to evaluate the best use of our cagitialg forward, which from time-to-time, may inckidepurchases of our 2010
Convertible Notes, and/or prepayments on our Crgglieement, as market and business conditions ntarra

In summary, we expect to continue to have mateselds for capital resources going forward, as nabede. We believe that our current
cash, cash equivalents and short-term investmasdces and our revolving loan facility, togethé@hveash expected to be generated in the
future from our current operating activities, wi sufficient to meet our anticipated capital reseuequirements for at least the next 12
months. We also believe we could obtain additimaglital through other debt sources which may béablea to us if deemed appropriate.

ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk is the potential loss arising from abeechanges in market rates and prices. As of Dieee1, 2011, we are exposed to various
market risks, including changes in interest rd@®ign currency exchange rates, and fluctuatioschanges in the market value of our cash
equivalents and short-term investments. We havéistdgrically entered into derivatives or otherdintial instruments for trading or
speculative purposes.

Interest Rate Risl
Market Risk Related to Lo-Term DebtThe interest rate on our convertible debt is fixau thus, as it relates to our convertible debt
borrowings, we are not exposed to changes in istteates.

The interest rates under the Credit Agreementasedupon an adjusted LIBOR rate plus an applicgablgin, or an alternate base rate plus
an applicable margin. Refer to Note 6 to our Fimgrtatements for further details of our long-tetabt.

In May 2011, we entered into three interest ratepseontracts with the objective of managing ourosxpe to fluctuations in interest rate
movements, thereby eliminating the variability aéb flows on certain portions of the interest paytmeelated to the Term Loan component
of our Credit Agreement. See Note 7 to our Findrigiatements for further details on the interetd savap contracts.
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As a result of entering into the interest rate sa@ptracts, as of December 31, 2011, we were expos#uctuations in interest rate
movements on $75 million of our Term Loan. We exmers exposure amount to fluctuate over the terthefinterest rate swap contracts as
the interest rate swap contracts expire and thenbaldue under the Credit Agreement is repaid tfirooandatory repayments or
prepayments.

A hypothetical adverse change of 10% in the DecerBibe2011 adjusted LIBOR rate would not have hathgerial impact upon our results
of operations.

Market Risk Related to Cash Equivalents and -term Investment©Our cash and cash equivalents as of December 21,&td 2010 were
$146.7 million and $197.9 million, respectively.r@én of our cash balances are “swept” into ovdrhigoney market accounts on a daily
basis, and at times, any excess funds are invasted-risk, somewhat longer term, cash equivalestruments and short-term investments.
Our cash equivalents are invested primarily iniftasonal money market funds, commercial paper, timé deposits held at major banks. We
have minimal market risk for our cash and cashwedents due to the relatively short maturitieshaf instruments.

Our short-term investments as of December 31, 2012010 were $12.1 million and $17.7 million, mxstpvely. Currently, we utilize short-
term investments as a means to invest our excebsordy in the U.S. The day-to-day management osbort-term investments is performed
by a large financial institution in the U.S., usistgct and formal investment guidelines approvgabr Board of Directors. Under these
guidelines, short-term investments are limitedddain acceptable investments with: (i) a maximuaturity, (i) a maximum concentration
and diversification; and (iii) a minimum acceptabtedit quality. At this time, we believe we havaimal liquidity risk associated with the
short-term investments included in our portfolio.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Ri
As the result of the Intec Acquisition on NovemB8r 2010, we are exposed to the impact of the amirgforeign currency exchange rates.

Due to foreign operations around the world, ounbeé sheet and income statement are exposed igifetgrency exchange risk due to the
fluctuations in the value of currencies in which egnduct business. While we attempt to maximizemahhedges by incurring expenses in
the same currency in which we contract revenuerdlaged expenses for that revenue could be imongore differing currencies than the
revenue stream.

During 2011, we generated approximately 88% ofreuenues in U.S. dollars. We expect that, in tledeeable future, we will continue to
generate a very large percentage of our revenugsSndollars.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the carrying amsoef our monetary assets and monetary liabil@gieshe books of our non-U.S.
subsidiaries in currencies denominated in a cuyretiter than the functional currency of those noB8-\$ubsidiaries are as follows (in
thousands, in U.S. dollar equivalents):

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Monetary Monetary Monetary Monetary

Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets

Pounds sterling $ — $ 221 $ — $ 481
Euro (23) 4,94( (41) 5,607
U.S. Dollar (140) 18,22: (472) 19,06:
Other 4 63¢€ (13 83:¢
Totals $ (167) $24,02( $ (526 $25,98:

A hypothetical adverse change of 10% in the Decer@be2011 exchange rates would not have had arialatapact upon our results of
operations.
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Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of CSG Systems International, Inc. abdidiaries (the “Company”) is responsible for bE&hing and maintaining adequate
internal control over financial reporting as defiria Rule 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) under the SecesitExchange Act of 1934, as amended. The
Company’s internal control over financial reportisglesigned to provide reasonable assurance iagdte reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements foem&l purposes in accordance with U.S. generallg@aed accounting principles. The
Company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that:

() Pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiansactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Compar

(i) Provide reasonable assurance that transactiome@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofiéiahstatements in accordar
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principées] that receipts and expenditures of the Compasmyeing made only in
accordance with authorizations of management amdtdirs of the Company; al

(iii) Provide reasonable assurance regarding ptéweor timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose or disposition of the
Compan’s assets that could have a material effect onitla@dial statement:

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadégbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies prtedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cgiapaternal control over financial reporting asi@écember 31, 2011. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria sebfotlle Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission (COSO) in
Internal Contro-Integrated Framework

Based on our assessment, management believebéhabmpany maintained effective internal contr@rdinancial reporting as of
December 31, 2011.

The Company’s independent registered public ac@ogifitm, KPMG LLP, has issued an attestation re¢porthe effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2011. That report appears inatedg following.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CSG Systems International, Inc.:

We have audited CSG Systems International, Inatermal control over financial reporting as of Dexter 31, 2011, based on criteria
established ifnternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring OrganizatidiiBe Treadway Commission
(COSO0). CSG Systems International Inc.’s management isoresple for maintaining effective internal contoser financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intezoatrol over financial reporting, included in thecompanyingManagement’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reportin. Our responsibility is to express an opinion aa @ompany’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq@nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivanalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditideld obtaining an understanding of internal cordvar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aald&ing the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestave believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttiegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over firgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (8jige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@izé statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, CSG Systems International, Inc. meined, in all material respects, effective in&montrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011, based on criteria establishédemal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of CSG Systems International, fittsabsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 20iDihee related consolidated statements
of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flowsdach of the years in the three-year period endegmber 31, 2011, and our report dated
March 14, 2012 expressed an unqualified opiniothose consolidated financial statements

/sl KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
March 14, 2012

53



Table of Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CSG Systems International, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of CSG Systems International, Inc. absidiaries as of December 31, 2011
and 2010, and the related consolidated stateméinisame, stockholders’ equity and cash flows facle of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2011. These consolidated fimlasteitements are the responsibility of the Comsamanagement. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these consolidated fimhstatements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tildasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by marnageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegreferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of CSG
Systems International, Inc. and subsidiaries d&eafember 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results afadperations and their cash flows for each
of the years in the three-year period ended Deceihe2011, in conformity with U.S. generally actpaccounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), CSG Systems
International, Inc.’s internal control over finaatreporting as of December 31, 2011, based oeriaiestablished imternal Control—
Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regated
March 14, 2012 expressed an unqualified opiniothereffectiveness of the Company’s internal contkar financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
March 14, 2012
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CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Shor-term investment
Total cash, cash equivalents and s-term investment
Trade accounts receivab
Billed, net of allowance of $2,421 and $1,¢
Unbilled and othe
Deferred income taxe
Income taxes receivah
Other current asse
Total current asse
Property and equipment, net of depreciation of $12% and $94,23
Software, net of amortization of $56,521 and $48,
Goodwill
Client contracts, net of amortization of $159,2286 $133,21¢
Deferred income taxe
Other asset
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Current maturities of lor-term debt, net of unamortized original issue distaf zero and $62
Client deposit:
Trade accounts payat
Accrued employee compensati
Deferred revenu
Income taxes payab
Other current liabilitie:
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of unamortized original issue dist@f $30,256 and $34,8¢
Deferred revenu
Income taxes payab
Deferred income taxe
Other nor-current liabilities
Total nor-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Stockholder’ equity:

Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share; 10,000s8ares authorized; zero shares issued and roditsdk
Common stock, par value $.01 per share; 100,00G6:88¢es authorized; 8,675,558 and 5,892,315 shesesved for employee stock purchase

plan and stock incentive plans; 33,822,232 and2®47B9 shares outstandi
Additional paic-in capital
Treasury stock, at cost, 30,551,519 and 29,956s8@88¢:¢
Accumulated other comprehensive income (lc
Unrealized gain on she-term investments, net of ti
Unrecognized pension plan losses and prior sengsts, net of ta
Unrecognized loss on change in fair value of irgerate swap contracts, net of
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustme
Accumulated earning
Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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December 31,

2011 2010
$ 146,73 $ 197,85¢
12,09 17,69:
158,83 215,55(
179,80 155,00
30,98: 30,80:
19,98: 13,85:
4,13¢ 9,04
16,22 17,24
409,96/ 441,49.
41,15: 52,25;
29,96¢ 31,11¢
220,01 209,16
98,40: 116,32t
1,00¢ 9,671
14,39 19,66(
$814,89 $ 879,69
$ 27,00( $ 69,52
30,52 31,89
27,19 25,38
42,00¢ 53,37:
44,82 56,18
2,33 2,02¢
23,50 32,01¢
197,38! 270,40
282,74« 305,15¢
8,631 16,10
4,114 954
28,18 33,24;
19,12 16,74¢
342,79 372,21
540,18 642,62
64t 641
449,37 439,71
(714,89) (704,96)
1 4
2,799 (897)
(61¢) —
(1,999 86¢
543,99 501,71
274,71« 237,07
$ 814,89 $ 879,691
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CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Revenues
Processing and related servii $524,66¢ $497,77! $464,97(
Software, maintenance and servi 210,06! 51,60 35,74
Total revenue 734,73 549,37 500,71
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation, sheeparately below’
Processing and related servi 244,77t 258,63t 249,33!
Software, maintenance and servi 120,87« 31,16¢ 26,34+
Total cost of revenue 365,65( 289,80« 275,67
Other operating expense
Research and developme¢ 111,14 78,05( 70,11
Selling, general and administrati 128,34t 82,58¢ 59,51(
Depreciatior 25,43¢ 22,42¢ 20,06¢
Restructuring charge 7,87% 2,16¢ 59¢
Total operating expens: 638,44 475,03 425,97(
Operating incom: 96,28t 74,34 74,74
Other income (expense
Interest expens (17,02¢) (6,97¢€) (5,660
Amortization of original issue discou (5,20€) (6,899 (8,3872)
Interest and investment income, 764 754 1,19¢
Gain (loss) on repurchase of convertible debt sees — (12,719 1,46¢
Loss on foreign currency transactic — (14,027 —
Other, ne’ 1,15¢ (817) 2
Total other (20,317 (40,669 (11,379
Income from continuing operations before incomees 75,97 33,67: 63,36¢
Income tax provisiol (33,690 (11,244 (21,507
Income from continuing operatiol 42,28 22,42¢ 41,86:
Discontinued operation
Income from discontinued operatia — — —
Income tax benefi — — 1,471
Discontinued operations, net of t — — 1,471
Net income $ 42,28: $ 22,42¢ $ 43,33¢
Basic earnings per common she
Income from continuing operatiol $  1.2¢ $ 0.6¢ $ 1.2z
Discontinued operations, net of t — — 0.04
Net income $  1.2¢ $ 0.6¢ $  1.2¢
Diluted earnings per common sha
Income from continuing operatiol $  1.2¢ $ 0.67 $ 1.2
Discontinued operations, net of t — — 0.04
Net income $ 1.2 $ 0.67 $ 1.2¢
Weighte(-average shares outstanc—Basic:
Common stocl 32,62¢ 32,537 33,22¢
Participating restricted stoc 18¢ 542 1,097
Total 32,81: 33,08( 34,32t
Weightec-average shares outstanc—Diluted:
Common stocl 32,83: 32,82: 33,35¢
Participating restricted stoc 18¢ 542 1,097
Total 33,02: 33,36¢ 34,44¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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BALANCE, January 1, 2009
Comprehensive incom
Net income
Unrealized loss on short-
term investments, net
of tax
Total comprehensive incon
Repurchase of common stock
pursuant to Board-approved
stock repurchase progre
Issuance of common stock purst
to employee stock purchase
plan
Exercise of stock optior
Tax benefit of employee stock-
based compensation pla
Issuance of restricted common
stock pursuant to employee
stock-based compensation
plans
Cancellation of restricted comma
stock issued pursuant to
employee stock-based
compensation plar
Repurchase and cancellation of

CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 200
(in thousands)

Unrealized Unrecognizec
Gain (Loss)

common stock issued pursuant

to employee stock-based
compensation plar
Repurchase of Convertible Debt
Securities
Stock-based employee
compensation expen

BALANCE, December 31, 2009
Comprehensive incom
Net income
Unrealized loss on short-
term investments, net
of tax
Unrealized pension plan
gains and prior servict
costs, net of ta
Foreign currency
translation adjustmen
Total comprehensive incon
Repurchase of common stock
pursuant to Board-approved
stock repurchase progre
Issuance of common stock purst
to employee stock purchase
plan
Exercise of stock optior
Tax benefit of employee stock-
based compensation pla
Issuance of restricted common
stock pursuant to employee
stock-based compensation
plans
Cancellation of restricted comma
stock issued pursuant to
employee stock-based
compensation plar
Repurchase and cancellation of

common stock issued pursuant

to employee stock-based
compensation plar
Repurchase of Convertible Debt
Securities
Issuance of 2010 Convertible
Notes, net of ta:
Stock-based employee

Shares of Additional Pension Plar  Interest Total
Common Common Treasury on Short- Losses and Rate Foreign Accumulated Stockholders’
Stock Paid-in Term Prior Service Swap Currency
Outstanding Stock Capital Stock Investments Costs Contracts Translation Earnings Equity
34,72( 62¢ 400,62¢ (671,84) 241 (919 — — 435,95! 164,68
— — — — — — — — 43,33:
— — — — (231) — — — —
— — — — — — — — — 43,10:
(250) — — (3,787) — — — — — (3,787)
88 — 1,14 — — — — — — 1,14¢
47 — 33z — — — — — — 332
— — (2,329 — — — — — — (2,32¢)
847 8 (8 — — — — — — —
(132) — — — — — — — — —
(195) (1) (2,779 — — — — — — (2,780)
— — (897) — — — — — — (897)
— — 12,63: — — — — — — 12,63:
35,12¢ 63€ 408,72 (675,62) 10 (919 — — 479,28: 212,11(
— — — — — — — — 22,42¢
_ _ _ _ (6) _ _ _ _
— — — — — 22 — — —
— — — — — — — 86¢ —
— — — — — — — — — 28,3l
(1,500 — — (29,340 — — — — — (29,340
70 — 1,172 — — — — — — 1,17z
19 — 232 — — — — — — 23¢
— — 627 — — — — — — 627
748 8 (8) — — — — — — —
(109) ) 2 — — — — — — —
(2393 (1) (4,689 — — — — — — (4,690)
— — (1,613) — — — — — — (1,613)
— — 22,92¢ — — — — — — 22,92¢



compensation expen — — 12,33¢ — — — — — — 12,33¢
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CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY—(Co ntinued)

(in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 200

BALANCE, December 31, 2010
Comprehensive incom
Net income
Unrealized loss on short-
term investments, net
of tax
Unrealized pension plan
gains and prior servict
costs, net of ta
Unrealized loss on change
in fair value of interest
rate swap contracts, r
of tax
Foreign currency
translation adjustmen
Total comprehensive incon
Repurchase of common stock
pursuant to Board-approved
stock repurchase progre
Issuance of common stock purst
to employee stock purchase
plan
Exercise of stock optior
Tax benefit of employee stock-
based compensation pla
Issuance of restricted common
stock pursuant to employee
stock-based compensation
plans
Cancellation of restricted common
stock issued pursuant to
employee stock-based
compensation plar
Repurchase and cancellation of
common stock issued pursua
to employee stock-based
compensation plar
Stock-based employee
compensation expen

BALANCE, December 31, 2011

Unrealized Unrecognizec
Gain (Loss)
Shares of Additional Pension Plar  Interest Total
Common Common Treasury on Short- Losses and Rate Foreign Accumulated Stockholders’
Stock Paid-in Term Prior Service Swap Currency
Outstanding Stock Capital Stock Investments Costs Contracts Translation Earnings Equity
34,127 $ 641 $ 439,71 $(704,96) $ 4 $ 897) $ — 3 86 $ 501,710 $ 237,07¢
— — — — — — — — 42,28:
_ _ _ _ 3 _ _ _ _
— — — — — (897) — — —
— — — — — — (618) — —
— — — — — — — (2,86¢€) —
— — — — — — — — — 37,89¢
(750) — — (9,930) — — — — — (9,930)
102 — 1,44: — — — — — — 1,44:
3 — 44 — — — — — — 44
— — 46¢ — — — — — — 46¢
74€ 7 ) — — — — — — —
(170 (1) 1 — — — — — — —
(231 ) (4,437) — — — — — — (4,43%)
— — 12,15: — — — — — — 12,15:
33,82 $ 645 $ 449,37t $(714,89) $ 1 3 (1,799 $ (618 $ (1,99¢) $ 543,99 $ 274,71

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 42,28. $ 22,42¢ $ 43,33¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activiti-
Depreciatior 25,43t 22,42¢ 20,06¢
Amortization 42,17: 19,43¢ 14,32¢
Amortization of original issue discou 5,20¢ 6,89: 8,38:
Gain on sho-term investments and oth (60) (129 (600)
(Gain) loss on repurchase of convertible debt sees — 12,71« (1,469
Loss on foreign currency transactic — 14,02: —
Deferred income taxe 3,97 3,27¢ 18,49
Excess tax benefit of stc-based compensation awal (82¢) (1,147 (145)
Stocl-based employee compensat 12,15: 12,33¢ 12,63:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, nactqfiired amount:
Trade accounts and other receivables (31,559 (4,295 12,55(
Other current and nwcurrent assel 3,21( (509 (1,0579)
Income taxes payable/receival 7,57: (9,977 (7,927
Trade accounts payable and accrued liabil (20,07¢) 22,28¢ 9,311
Deferred revenu (28,539 1,53¢ 25,15¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 60,95¢ 121,30¢ 153,05¢
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipm (22,199 (14,277 (40,319
Purchases of shterm investment (37,799 (64,587) (57,03¢)
Proceeds from sale/maturity of st-term investment 43,45( 81,90( 79,70(
Net proceeds from foreign currency opt — 582 —
Payments for acquisiti-related foreign currency transactic — (14,605 —
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu — (259,507 (6,739
Acquisition of and investments in client contra (9,137 (4,799 (16,427
Net cash used in investing activit| (25,67%) (275,287 (40,81()
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of common sl 1,48¢ 1,40t 1,47
Repurchase of common sta (14,365 (34,030 (6,567)
Payments on acquired equipment financ (1,587 (1,157%) (992)
Proceeds from lor-term deb — 385,00( —
Payments on lor-term debt (70,149 (150,959 (26,719
Payments of deferred financing co (20%) (14,999 —
Excess tax benefit of stc-based compensation awal 82¢ 1,14 14t
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (83,997 186,40¢ (32,646
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on c (2,419 1,93¢ —
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (51,12 34,36¢ 79,60:
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 197,85t 163,48 83,88¢
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $146,73: $ 197,85t $163,48!
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informat
Cash paid during the period -
Interest $ 13,92: $ 4,34t $ 4,71t
Income taxe: 22,83t 17,86¢ 9,46:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General

CSG Systems International, Inc. (the “Company”, @& Sor forms of the pronoun “we”), a Delaware corgtion, was formed in October
1994 and is based in Englewood, Colorado. We érgsmess support solutions provider primarily sggwhe communications industry. Our
broad suite of solutions helps our clients imprtheir business operations by creating more comrmgefiroduct offerings and an enhanced
customer experience through more relevant andteddeteractions, while at the same time, morecigffitly managing the service provider’s
cost structure. Over the years, we have focusedes@arch and development (“R&D”) and acquisitioveistments on expanding our solution
set to address the expanding needs of communisag@mwice providers to provide a differentiated)+tene, and personal experience for their
consumers. Our suite of solutions includes revenaragement, content management and monetizatistpnaar interaction management, as
well as analytics and intelligence. We are a S&RaBbap 600 company.

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statem&ritisancial Statements”) are prepared in conformitth accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (“U.S.”).

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of ConsolidatiorOur Financial Statements include all of our accswamd our subsidiaries’ accounts. All materialicdenpany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Translation of Foreign CurrencyDur foreign subsidiaries use the local currencthefcountries in which they operate as their fuomal
currency. Their assets and liabilities are trapglanto U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in effethe balance sheet date. Revenues,
expenses, and cash flows are translated at thageveates of exchange prevailing during the pefodeign currency translation adjustments
are included in comprehensive income in stockhsld=guity. Foreign currency transaction gains arssés are included in the determination
of net income.

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Our FinanciatStnentsThe preparation of our Financial Statements requitanagement to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of assets and liabilities and disclosuir@atingent assets and liabilities at the date
of our Financial Statements and the reported ansafimevenues and expenses during the reportingdekctual results could differ from
those estimates. The more critical estimates daterbassumptions that affect our financial positiad results of operations are in the areas
of: (i) revenue recognition; (ii) allowance for duttul accounts receivable; (iii) impairment assessta of goodwill and other long-lived
assets; (iv) income taxes; and (v) business cortibirand asset purchases.

Revenue RecognitioWe use various judgments and estimates in conmegfih the determination of the amount of reventodse
recognized in each accounting period. Our primawenue recognition criteria include: (i) persuagvaence of an arrangement;
(i) delivery; (iii) fixed or determinable fees; difiv) collectibility of fees.

Processing and Related Servid®sr processing and related services revenue retaitéy the outsourced, customer care and billing
processing and related services provided to outtNamerican cable and satellite clients; and (i managed services provided to clients
which utilize our software. Under managed servag®ements, we operate certain of our softwareygtedn behalf of our clients: (i) out of
a client’s data center; (ii) out of a data centerawn and operate; or (iii) out of a third-partyalaenter we contract with for such services.
Managed services can also include us providingra@bevices, such as transitional services, fulfiiy remittance processing, operational
consulting, back office, and end user billing seegi
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We contract for our processing and related servisgsy long-term agreements whose terms range tioee to ten years. The long-term
processing agreements include multiple servicasated each month, to include such things as:il{ing and data processing services;

(i) credit management and collection services; @indcustomer statement invoice printing and rimgjlservices. The fees for these
deliverables typically are billed to our clients mioly based upon actual monthly volumes and/or esdigervices (e.g., the number of client
customers processed on our systems, the numbemnsitctions processed on our systems, and/or trgityuand content of the monthly
statements and mailings processed through ourmagsier on a fixed monthly fee. We recognize proicgsand related services revenue on a
monthly basis as we provide the services.

Software, maintenance and servid@sr software, maintenance and services revenueesgbeimarily to: (i) software license sales;
(i) professional services to implement the sofeyand (iii) software maintenance services, to supe software once it has been
implemented.

The accounting for software license arrangemesfgaally when software is sold in a multiple-eletn@rangement, can be complex and
requires considerable judgment. Key factors comsiien accounting for software license and rela@uwices include the following criteria:

(i) the identification of the separate elementthefarrangement; (ii) the determination of whetlngy undelivered elements are essential tc
functionality of the delivered elements; (iii) thesessment of whether the software, if hosted |dl@uaccounted for as a services
arrangement and thus outside the scope of the a@twevenue recognition literature; (iv) the defaation of vendor specific objective
evidence (“VSOE") of fair value for the undeliverelment(s) of the arrangement; (v) the assessofevtiether the software license fees are
fixed or determinable; (vi) the determination asvtoether the fees are considered collectible; aiidtie assessment of whether services
included in the arrangement represent significandpction, customization or modification of thetsadre. The evaluation of these factors,
and the ultimate revenue recognition decision, iregtsignificant judgments to be made by us. Thigioents made in this area could have a
significant effect on revenues recognized in anyopeby changing the amount and/or the timing &f tvenue recognized. In addition,
because software licenses typically have littla@direct, incremental costs related to the redagmnof the revenue, these judgments could
also have a significant effect on our results afraions.

We acquired Intec Telecom Systems PLC (“Intec”Nmvember 30, 2010 (see Note 3). During 2011, waiobt a significant portion of our
software license, professional services and soéwaintenance revenues from the Intec softwareusted

The initial sale of the Intec software productseyatly requires significant production, modificatior customization and thus falls under the
guidelines of contract accounting. In these soféew@ense arrangements, the elements of the amags are typically a software license,
professional services, and software maintenancenMre have VSOE of fair value for the software rreiance, which we generally do, we
allocate a portion of the total arrangement fethéosoftware maintenance element based on its 8@ value, and the balance of the
arrangement fee is subject to contract accountsmputhe percentage-of-completion (“POC”) methodafounting. Under the POC method
of accounting, software license and professionalices revenues are typically recognized as théepsional services related to the software
implementation project are performed. We are ubimgrs performed on the project as the measuretéordme the percentage of the work
completed.

In certain instances, we sell software license malwpgrades, which provide our clients the righide our software to process higher
transaction volume levels. In these instance$i)ifoftware maintenance is the only undeliveremaint of the software arrangement; (ii) we
have VSOE of fair value for the software mainteraradated to the volume upgrade; and (iii) we ntieetother revenue recognition criteria,
we recognize the software license revenue on fleetefe date of the volume upgrade.

A portion of our professional services revenuesadbinclude an element of software delivery (éhgsiness consulting services, etc.), and
thus, do not fall within the scope of specific arttative accounting literature for software arrangents. In these cases, revenues from fixed-
price, professional service contracts are recoghize
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using a method consistent with the proportionafqgrerance method, which is relatively consistentwaztir POC methodology. Under a
proportional performance model, revenue is recaghlzy allocating revenue between reporting periaded on relative service provided in
each reporting period, and costs are generallygrézed as incurred. We utilize an input-based agghidi.e., hours worked) for purposes of
measuring performance on these types of contr@ctisinput measure is considered a reasonable suedgr an output measure. In instances
when the work performed on fixed price agreementsf relatively short duration, or if we are unatdenake reasonably dependable
estimates at the outset of the arrangement, wéheseompleted contract method of accounting wherebsgnue is recognized when the work
is completed.

Our use of the POC and proportional performancénatt of accounting on professional services engagentequires estimates of the total
project revenues, total project costs and the @érpdwours necessary to complete a project. Changesimates as a result of additional
information or experience on a project as work peeges are inherent characteristics of the PO@uambrtional performance methods of
accounting as we are exposed to various busirgssin completing these engagements. The estimatamess to support these methods of
accounting is more difficult for projects of grealength and/or complexity. The judgments and esté® made in this area could: (i) have a
significant effect on revenues recognized in amyopeby changing the amount and/or the timing @f tbvenue recognized; and/or (ii) impact
the expected profitability of a project, includingpiether an overall loss on an arrangement has i@xtufo mitigate the inherent risks in us
the POC and proportional performance methods adwatiing, we track our performance on projects asyaluate the appropriateness of our
estimates as part of our monthly accounting cycle.

Revenues from professional services contractsthillea time-andanaterials basis are recognized as the servicgzeafemed and as amou
due from clients are deemed collectible and cotiedly non-refundable.

Software maintenance revenues are recognized yaisabt the software maintenance service period.g0fivare maintenance consists
primarily of client and product support, technioggbates (e.g., bug fixes, etc.), and unspecifiggages or enhancements. If specified
upgrades or enhancements are offered in an arrargewhich is rare, they are accounted for as aragp element of the software
arrangement.

Deferred Revenue and Unbilled Accounts Receiv. Client payments and billed amounts due from tdiém excess of revenue recognized
are recorded as deferred revenue. Deferred revanoents expected to be recognized within the mealtve months are classified as current
liabilities. Revenue recognized prior to the schedbilling date is recorded as unbilled accouateivable.

PostageWe pass through to our processing clients theafgsbstage that is incurred on behalf of thosentsieand typically require an
advance payment on expected postage costs. Themaecadbayments are included in “client depositg¢hmaccompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets (“Balance Sheets” or “Balance Shesmttl are classified as current liabilities re¢gss of the contract period. We net the cost
of postage against the postage reimbursementsnelinde the net amount in processing and relatedcss revenues. The cost of postage
has been shown net of the postage reimbursementsdfur clients for 2011, 2010, and 2009 was $266l6on, $269.7 million, and $264.8
million, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalenisle consider all highly liquid investments with drigl maturities of three months or less at the déatgurchase t
be cash equivalents. As of December 31, 2011, ashr equivalents consist primarily of institutionaney market funds, commercial paper
and time deposits held at major banks.

As of December 31, 2011, we had $5.2 million ofrieted cash that serves to collateralize outstamtitters of credit. This restricted cash is
included in Cash and cash equivalents in our Bal&i®et.

Short-term Investments and Other Financial InstrateeOur financial instruments as of December 31, 281d 2010 include cash and cash
equivalents, short-term investments, accountsvab#s, accounts payable, interest rate swap cdataae! debt. Because of their short
maturities, the carrying amounts of cash equivaleatcounts receivable, and accounts payable appatectheir fair value.
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Certain of our short-term investments and cashvadgrits are considered “available-for-sale” andraperted at fair value in our Balance
Sheets, with unrealized gains and losses, neeafdlated income tax effect, excluded from earnang$ reported in a separate component of
stockholders’ equity. Realized and unrealized gairnglosses were not material in any period present

All short-term investments held by us as of Decen®ie 2011 and 2010 have contractual maturitidess than one year from the time of
acquisition. Our short-term investments at Decen33e2011 and 2010 consisted entirely of commepagler. Proceeds from the
sale/maturity of short-term investments were $48ilion, $81.9 million, and $79.7 million, in 2012010, and 2009, respectively.

The following table represents the fair value hielg based upon three levels of inputs, of whichdle 1 and 2 are considered observable
Level 3 is unobservable, for our financial assets leabilities measured at fair value (in thousgnds

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total

Assets:
Money market funds(1 $77,17¢  $ — $77,17¢  $91,00: $ — $ 91,00z
Commercial paper(z — 16,89¢ 16,89¢ — 26,59( 26,59(

Total $77,17:  $16,89¢ $94,06¢ $91,00: $26,59( $117,59:
Liabilities:
Interest rate swap contracts $ — $ 1,008 $1008 $ — $ — $§ —

Total $ — $1008 $1008 $ — $ — $ —

(1) As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, all of the manayket funds were classified in our Balance Shagtsash equivalent

(2) As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, of the twahmercial paper, $4.8 million and $8.9 millionspectively, were classified in our
Balance Sheets as cash equivalents, and $12.113rd &illion, respectively, were classified in ®alance Sheets as short-term
investments

(3) As of December 31, 2011, the fair value ofititerest rate swap contracts were classified inBalance Sheet as other non-current
liabilities.

Valuation inputs used to measure the fair valuesuofmoney market funds were derived from quotedkatagprices. The fair values of all
other financial instruments are based upon pripirnyided by third-party pricing services. Thesegsi were derived from observable market
inputs.

We have chosen not to measure our debt at faieyalith changes recognized in earnings each reyopgriod. As of December 31, 2011,
the estimated fair value of our Credit Agreementtdg $190 million (carrying value including curtematurities) was approximately $201

million, and was estimated using a discounted fiashmethodology. As of December 31, 2011, thenaated fair value of our $150 million
(par value) convertible debt, based upon quotedebgrices or recent sales activity, was approxafyab140 million.

Concentrations of Credit Riska the normal course of business, we are exposerktit risk. The principal concentrations of ctedk relate
to cash deposits, cash equivalents, short-ternsimants, and accounts receivable. We regularly tmoaiedit risk exposures and take steps
to mitigate the likelihood of these exposures r@rsglin a loss. We hold our cash deposits, caslvatants, and short-term investments with
financial institutions we believe to be of sounmificial condition.

We do not require collateral or other securitydpgort accounts receivable. We evaluate the cvealithiness of our clients in conjunction
with our revenue recognition processes, as weahm@aigh our ongoing collectibility
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assessment processes for accounts receivable. Witaman allowance for doubtful accounts receiedidsed upon factors surrounding the
credit risk of specific clients, historical tren@dsyd other information. We use various judgmentsesiimates in determining the adequacy of
the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable. ISet 4 for additional details of our concentratafraccounts receivable.

The activity in our allowance for doubtful accourgseivable is as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $1,837 $2,03¢ $2,99¢
Additions (reductions) to expen 844 (58 (467)
Write-offs (239 (203) (507)
Other (21) (38) 5
Balance, end of ye: $2,421 $1,83i $2,03¢

Property and Equipmel. Property and equipment are recorded at costt @stanated fair value if acquired in a businesslsimation) and ar
depreciated over their estimated useful lives ragdiiom three to ten years. Leasehold improvemargsiepreciated over the shorter of their
economic life or the lease term. Depreciation egpaa computed using the straight-line methodifarfcial reporting purposes, with the
exception of certain statement production equipmehich is depreciated using the units-of-productieethod. Depreciation expense for all
property and equipment is reflected in our accorgpanConsolidated Statements of Income (“Incomeae®t@nts” or “Income Statement”)
separately in the aggregate and is not includékdrtost of revenues or the other components abtipg expenses. Depreciation for income
tax purposes is computed using accelerated methods.

Software We expend substantial amounts on R&D, particulmynew products and services, or for enhancenwrdzisting products and
services. For development of software productsahato be licensed by us, we expense all cositerkto the development of the software
until technological feasibility is established. Fmvelopment of software to be used internally.(g@pcessing systems software), we expense
all costs prior to the application development stag

During 2011, 2010, and 2009, we expended $111 liomil$78.1 million, and $70.1 million, respectiyebn R&D projects. We did not
capitalize any R&D costs in 2011, 2010, or 200%hascosts subject to capitalization during themgopls were not material. We did not have
any capitalized R&D costs included in our Decentier2011 or 2010 Balance Sheets.

Realizability of Lon-Lived AssetsWe evaluate our lontived assets, other than goodwill, for possible amment whenever events or char
in circumstances indicate that the carrying valiihese assets may not be recoverable. A long-gset is impaired if estimated future
undiscounted cash flows associated with that assdhsufficient to recover the carrying amounthaf long-lived asset. If deemed impaired,
the long-lived asset is written down to its faitua

Goodwill. We evaluate our goodwill for impairment on an anrassis. In addition, we evaluate our goodwill omare periodic basis (e.g.,
quarterly) if events occur or circumstances chahgecould indicate a potential impairment may haweurred. Goodwill is considered
impaired if the carrying value of the reporting tuwhich includes the goodwill is greater than te&reated fair value of the reporting unit.

ContingenciesWe accrue for a loss contingency when: (i) it ishiable that an asset has been impaired, or aityahés been incurred; and
(i) the amount of the loss can be reasonably edeth The determination of accounting for loss iom@ncies is subject to various judgments
and estimates. We do not record the benefit frayaia contingency until the benefit is realized.
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Earnings Per Common Shar‘EPS”). Basic and diluted EPS amounts are presented diadbeof our Income Statements.

Under U.S. generally accepted accounting prinCifié&\AP"), unvested share-based payment awardscibwaiain nonforfeitable rights to
dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paidimpaid) are participating securities and shallioduded in the computation of EPS
pursuant to the two-class method. Unvested restristock awards under our stock incentive plarastgd prior to August 2008, contain
nonforfeitable rights to cash dividends. As a redwdsic EPS is computed by dividing net incomélakke to common stockholders and
participating securities (the numerators) by ttepeetive weighted average number of shares outstaddring the period (the denominators)
using the two-class method. Under the two-clashatetundistributed earnings are allocated amonl elass of common stock and
participating security prior to the calculationE®S. Diluted EPS is calculated similarly, except the calculation includes the effect of
potentially dilutive stock options and non-partefing restricted stock awards.

The amounts attributed to both common stock anticgzating restricted stock used as the numeratobsth the basic and diluted EPS
calculations are as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009
Income from continuing operations attributed
Common stocl $42,04( $22,06! $40,52¢
Participating restricted stoc 242 36¢€ 1,33¢
Total $42,28: $22,42¢ $41,86:
Discontinued operations, net of tax, attributec
Common stocl $ — $ — $ 1,424
Participating restricted stoc — — 47
Total $ — $ — $ 1,471
Net income attributed tc
Common stocl $42,04( $22,06! $41,94¢
Participating restricted stoc 242 36¢ 1,38t
Total $42,28: $22,42¢ $43,33:

The weighted-average shares outstanding used imasie and diluted EPS denominators related to ammstock and participating restricted
stock are as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009
Weightec-average shares outstanc—Basic:
Common stocl 32,62« 32,531 33,22¢
Participating restricted stoc 18¢ 543 1,097
Total 32,81: 33,08( 34,32¢
Weightec-average shares outstanc—Diluted:
Common stocl 32,83: 32,82: 33,35:
Participating restricted stoc 18¢ 543 1,097
Total 33,02: 33,36¢ 34,44¢
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The reconciliation of the basic and diluted EPSoueinators related to the common shares is inclirlége following table (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009

Basic weighted-average common shares 32,624 32,53} 33,22¢
Dilutive effect of common stock optiol 19 24 26
Dilutive effect of unvested restricted stc 19C 261 98
Dilutive effect of 2010 Convertible Not: — — —

Diluted weighte-average common shar 32,83: 32,82: 33,354

Potentially dilutive common shares related to stopkons and non-participating unvested sharessificted stock of 0.2 million in each of
the years 2011, 2010, and 2009, were excluded tihensomputation of diluted EPS as their effect aatidilutive.

The 2010 Convertible Notes have a dilutive effedyon those quarterly periods in which our averatek price exceeds the current effec
conversion price of $24.45 per share.

Stock-Based CompensatioStock-based compensation represents the cosddtastock-based awards granted to employeea@md
employee directors. We measure stock-based confgamsast at the grant date of the award, basdti@estimated fair value of the award
and recognize the cost (net of estimated forfeffuo@er the requisite service period. Benefitagfdeductions in excess of recognized
compensation expense, if any, are reported asading cash inflow rather than as an operating cdkiw.

Income TaxesWe account for income taxes using the asset ahilitfjamethod. Under this method, income tax exgeissrecognized for the
amount of taxes payable or refundable for the oiryear. In addition, deferred tax assets andliieds are recognized for expected future tax
consequences of temporary differences betweerirthrdial reporting and tax bases of assets andlifiie using enacted tax rates in effect
the year in which the differences are expecte@vense. The effect of a change in tax rates orreféax assets and liabilities is recognized
in income in the period that includes the enactndei.

Comprehensive Incom&he components of comprehensive income are refléontthe accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Stockholders’ Equity.

3. Intec Acquisition

Description of the AcquisitiolOn November 30, 2010, we acquired 100% of the tamel to be issued shares of Intec in an all-cash
transaction (the “Intec Acquisition”). Intec isealding provider of mediation, wholesale, and rddiflihg solutions, serving 60 of the world’s
top 100 telecom providers and over 400 clients ewide. On the date of acquisition, over 90% of ¢tgegevenues were generated from
telecommunications providers. Intec provides prodoftware, associated professional services, afte@e maintenance services to its
clients. We acquired Intec to: (i) evolve our offfgs; (ii) expand the markets we serve; and @gah greater economic scale.

Purchase PriceThe purchase price for the Intec Acquisition wagragimately £234 million, or approximately $364 haih, based upon the
average exchange rate of 1.56:1.00 between theddli@r and the pound sterling as of November 80,02 the date the total purchase price
was established under U.S. GAAP.

In September 2010, we entered into a pound stechfil).S. dollar put (the “Currency Option”) astiike price of 1.62 in conjunction with
the Intec Acquisition to limit our exposure to atsemovements in the exchange rate between theuwencies leading up to the expected
closing date. Upon the approval of the acquisibigrintec’s shareholders in November 2010, we dwddQurrency Option, and entered into a
forward contract for the
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delivery of approximately 240 million pounds stedi(which included estimated Intec Acquisition sost that time) at an exchange rate of
approximately 1.61 (the “Currency ForwardDuring December 2010, as part of the payment psofgshe pound sterling purchase price
closed out our position in the Currency Forwardraaverage rate of 1.58. Under U.S. GAAP, the astsproceeds (including gains and
losses) from financial instruments that are use@doice the risks of a change in the value of togiiaees net assets or the consideration t
issued by the acquirer before the date of acqoiisitire not part of the consideration transferoeghurchase price, and should be recorded
currently in earnings. As a result, for the yeadezhDecember 31, 2010, we recorded net expenggpodamately $14 million related to the
financial instrument transactions, and the foreigrrency impact of intercompany notes establisbestructure the Intec Acquisition, which
we reflected in Other income (expense) in our Ine@tatement.

Allocation of Purchase PricThe Intec Acquisition purchase price was $364.1ioni) or $255.2 million net of $108.9 million of sla and
cash equivalents Intec had on hand at the clodeedfansaction. The application of the acquisitiethod of accounting for business
combinations requires the use of significant essand assumptions in the determination of thevédue of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. The following table summarizes the estidhitir values of the assets acquired and liadgliissumed at the date of acquisition (in
thousands):

Trade accounts receivat $ 58,38:
Other current asse 6,17¢
Property and equipme 9,96¢
Acquired software 19,18¢
Acquired client contract 77,97¢
Acquired other intangible ass¢ 6,39
Goodwill 113,08:
Net deferred income tax ass 37,98¢
Other nor-current assel 2,552

Total assets acquire 331,70t
Trade accounts payak 3,611
Accrued employee compensati 17,517
Deferred revenu 33,36¢
Other current liabilitie: 9,39¢
Non-current liabilities 12,57

Total liabilities assume 76,46¢
Net assets acquired (excluding acquired c $255,23

The $255.2 million of net assets acquired refleetieave has not changed since December 31, 2010eWwnduring 2011 we completed our
evaluation of the fair values of the assets acduare liabilities assumed and, as a result, we h@aae certain revisions to our estimates of
the fair value of various assets acquired andliteds assumed, none of which required the revisiboomparative information for periods
presented in our Financial Statements since tleetsfre not material. In addition, we have madgicerevisions to our estimates of defer
income taxes. As a result of these changes, repatatrily to the reduction in trade accounts reable of $6.0 million and the increase in
deferred revenue of $9.6 million, during 2011, déineount allocated to goodwill has increased by $iilion.

Trade accounts receivable consists of billed ardlled accounts receivable, which are reducedflecean estimate for uncollectible
amounts. Property and equipment consists primafigomputer equipment, furniture and equipment, laadehold improvements. The
property and equipment are being depreciated orailst-line basis, over periods ranging from J tgears.
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The acquired software intangible assets repreberggtimated value of the three primary technofmgyglucts of Intec: Singleview, Total
Service Mediation (“TSM”), and Wholesale Businesarndgement (“WBM”) Solution. The acquired client trants intangible assets
represent the estimated value of the customeiigrfdtips related to three of Intec’s main sourde®gwenue: maintenance, software licenses,
and managed services. Acquired other intangibletasepresent the estimated fair value of the lttetemark and the trademarks for
Singleview, TSM, and WBM Solution. The acquiredtaafre intangible assets and the acquired clientrachintangible assets are being
amortized over 10 years based on the approximédterpan which the economic benefits of the acqlirgangible assets are expected to be
realized. The acquired other intangible assetbeirgg amortized over five years based on the ajppee pattern in which the economic
benefits of the acquired intangible assets areaggdo be realized.

Gooduwill, representing the excess of the purchaise for Intec over the net amounts assigned totifigble assets acquired and liabilities
assumed and consisting largely of the benefits tombining our operations and Intec’s operatioas, leen assigned to our one reportable
segment. The Intec goodwill and intangible asstslting from the Intec Acquisition are not dedoletifor income tax purposes. In
accordance with GAAP, we have recognized defeardiabilities of $25.1 million for the differendeetween the assigned book values and
the tax bases of the acquired intangible asset$idue not recognized deferred tax liabilitiestfoe difference between the assigned book
value and the tax basis of goodwill. Included itet’s net assets acquired are deferred income taxsaxskl 7.2 million related to Federal |
operating loss (“NOL") carryforwards of $49.1 milfi, which we believe are more likely than not taéalized. The Intec Federal NOL
carryforward begins to expire in 2019.

Accrued employee compensation represents empl@fated liabilities, which includes payroll tax, aged vacation and bonus accruals.
Deferred revenue represents the estimated faiev@lthe obligations we assumed at the acquisttaie to complete contracts related to
professional services, software maintenance, anthgel services. Non-current liabilities consisinariily of over-marketate and abandon
facility leases.

Acquisition FinancingWe financed the Intec Acquisition by borrowing atsia new credit agreement that consists of a $i#ion, five-

year term loan and a $100 million, f-year revolving loan facility that we entered imio September 24, 2010 and amended on November 2
2010 as part of this transaction; with the remajrparchase price satisfied by using our existirghc&ee Note 6 for further information
regarding our credit agreement.

Financing and Other Acquisiti-Related Expensel conjunction with our new credit agreement, weuimed debt issuance costs of
approximately $10 million. These costs are beingrized to interest expense over the lives of énmtloan and revolving loan facility
components of the new credit agreement. The un@adrtieferred financing costs balance is reflegtgdther assets in our Balance Sheet.

In addition to the loss on foreign currency tratigens of approximately $14 million discussed abalging 2010, we incurred certain direct
and incremental acquisition-related costs, totaéipgroximately $10 million, related primarily tovestment banking, legal, accounting, and
other professional services. We have reflectecetiests in Selling, general and administrative agpe in our Income Statement.

Unaudited Pro Forma Informatiofsrom December 1, 2010 through December 31, 201€c kontributed net revenues of $17.8 million and
incurred $19.6 million of operating expenses, whittludes approximately $2 million of restructuricigarges associated with the acquisit
The following supplemental unaudited pro forma swarnyrepresenting our results of operations forythers ended December 31, 2010 and
2009, assuming the acquisition of Intec had beempteted as of the beginning of each year, is ptesen the table below (in thousands,
except for per share amounts). These amounts \aérelated after conversion to U.S. GAAP, applying accounting policies, and adjusting
Intec’s results to reflect the additional amorti@atexpense that would have been charged assuhenigit value adjustments to the acquired
intangible assets had been applied as of the biegimf each year, together with the consequerdiakffects. These adjustments also reflect
the
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additional interest expense incurred on the defihtmce the purchase. This supplemental pro fanfmemation has been prepared for
comparative purposes and does not purport to beatiek of what would have occurred had the Integuisition been completed on
January 1, 2009 or January 1, 2010, nor are thdigative of any future results.

(Unaudited)
Year Ended
December 31,
2010 2009
Total revenues $751,17¢ $760,61°
Net income 19,37: 80,93:
Diluted net income per common she
Income from continuing operatiol $ 058 $ 2.3¢
Weighted average common sha 33,36¢ 34,44¢

The pro forma information for the year ended Decendi, 2010, combines our results for the year @mrkrember 31, 2010 (without the «
month impact of Intec), and Intec’s results for ylear ended September 30, 2010 (with Septembeeid@ lthe last day of Intec’s fiscal year).
The pro forma information for the year ended Decendi, 2009, combines our results for the year @mkrember 31, 2009, and Intec’s
results for its fiscal year ended September 309200

The Intec acquisitiomelated expenses of approximately $10 million drelbss on foreign currency transactions of appnakely $14 millior
discussed above have been excluded from the pmafoesults. The pro forma adjustments relateddone tax expense have been recorded
for the impact of the pro forma adjustments atsfadutory rates in effect during the periods presn

4. Segment Reporting and Significant Concentration

Segment InformatioWe have evaluated how our chief operating decisiaker has organized our company for purposes ofngalperatin
decisions and assessing performance, and haveudeakcthat as of December 31, 2011, we have onetad® segment.

Products and ServiceOur products and services help companies with cexipansaction-centric business models manageppertunities
and challenges associated with accurately captumagaging, generating, and optimizing the reveaaseciated with the immense volumes
of customer interactions and then manage the ai&inature of those customer relationships. Owr bifiing and customer care and business
optimization platform, Advanced Convergent Platfdt®CP”), is a pre-integrated platform, delivereddn outsourced service bureau
environment. We generate a substantial percentagar eevenues by providing our ACP processing @adtomer Interaction Management
solutions, and related software products (e.g., RO8orkforce Express, etc.) to the North Americahle and satellite markets. Additiona
we license certain software products (e.g., WBMuSoh, TSM, and Singleview) and provide our profesal services to implement these
software products, increase the efficiency and petdity of our clients’ operations, and allow diis to effectively roll out new products as
well as attract and retain customers.
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Geographic Regiong:or 2011, 85% of our revenues were attributableutooperations in the Americas. We use the locaifahe client as
the basis of attributing revenues to individualioeg. Financial information relating to our opeoas by geographic region is as follows (in
thousands):

2011 2010 2009
Total Revenues:
Americas (principally the U.S $627,23: $540,37° $500,71°
Europe, Middle East and Africa (principally Euroj 75,93¢ 7,482 —
Asia Pacific 31,56: 1,52( —
Total revenue $734,73: $549,37¢ $500,71°
As of December 31,
2011 2010
Property and Equipment:
Americas (principally the U.S $ 36,14¢ $ 46,95!
Europe, Middle East and Africa (principally Euroj 2,15¢ 2,88¢
Asia Pacific 2,84¢ 2,41¢
Total lon¢-lived asset: $ 41,15/ $ 52,25]

Significant Clients and Industry ConcentratioA large percentage of our historical revenueshaeen generated from our four largest
clients, which are Comcast Corporation (“ComcaddlsH Network Corporation (“DISH”), Time Warner In¢Time Warner”), and Charter
Communications, Inc. (“Charter”). Revenues fronsthelients represented the following percentagesiofotal revenues for the following

years:

2011 201C 2009
Comcast 19% 24% 24%
DISH 13% 18% 18%
Time Warnel 10% 12% 13%
Charter <1C% 10% <10%

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the percentagetddilled accounts receivable balances attridetabthese clients were as follows:

As of December 31,

2011 2010
Comcast 19% 20%
DISH 12% 15%
Time Warnel 11% <10%
Charter <1C% <10%

We expect to continue to generate a significantgr@age of our future revenues from a limited nundbelients, including Comcast, DISH,
Time Warner, and Charter. There are inherent rigksnever a large percentage of total revenuesomeeatrated with a limited number of
clients. Should a significant client: (i) terminatefail to renew their contracts with us, in wholein part for any reason; (ii) significantly
reduce the number of customer accounts processedraolutions, the price paid for our servicestharscope of services that we provide; or
(iii) experience significant financial or operatiddficulties, it could have a material adverseeeffon our financial position and results of

operations.
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5. Long-Lived Assets
Property and EquipmenProperty and equipment at December 31 consistdtedbllowing (in thousands, except years):

Useful Lives (years 2011 2010

Computer equipment 3-5 $ 63,10: $ 55,59;
Leasehold improvemen 5-1C 17,31¢ 16,24(
Operating equipmet 3-1C 60,23 60,13¢
Furniture and equipme 3-8 14,24 13,93(
Capital projects in proce: — 2,38¢ 58€
157,27¢ 146,49:

Les—accumulated depreciatic (116,129 (94,236)
Property and equipment, r $ 41,15¢ $ 52,257

Goodwill. We do not have any intangible assets with indefiltes other than goodwill. A rollforward of goodwin 2011 and 2010 is as
follows (in thousands):

January 1, 2010 balan $107,05:
Goodwill acquired during peric 101,09!
Revisions related to prior acquisitio 1,94(

Effects of changes in foreign currency exchanges (929)
December 31, 2010 balan 209,16«

Revisions related to prior acquisitio 11,92¢

Effects of changes in foreign currency exchanges (1,080)
December 31, 2011 balan $220,01:

The goodwill acquired in 2010 is related to theetnAcquisition discussed in Note 3. The revisiaated to prior acquisitions made in 2011
relate to the finalization of our purchase accaumfor the Intec Acquisition. The revisions relategrior acquisitions made in 2010 are
mainly due to the recording of contingent purchasee payments of $2.0 million related to the Quoaszquisition.

Other Intangible Asset®ur intangible assets subject to ongoing amortimatonsist of client contracts and software.

Client Contracts

Client contracts consist of the following: (i) irstenents in client contracts; (ii) direct and incemtal costs that we have capitalized related to
contractual arrangements where we have deferrethues to convert or set-up client customers ontamotsourced solutions; and (iii) client
contracts acquired in business combinations. ABexfember 31, 2011 and 2010, the carrying valudisesie assets were as follows (in
thousands):

2011 2010
Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Carrying Net Carrying Net
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Investments in client contracts(1) $135,85! $(122,89) $12,95¢ $134,17¢ $(115,74) $ 18,43:
Capitalized costs(z 22,38¢ (10,527  11,86: 16,58( (8,54¢6) 8,032
Acquired client contracts(: 99,38¢ (25,807) 73,58: 98,78¢ (8,925 89,86:
Total client contract $257,62¢ $(159,22Y) $98,40: $249,54¢ $(133,21) $116,32¢
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The aggregate amortization related to client catdrancluded in our operations for 2011, 2010, 20d9, was as follows (in thousands):

1)

(2)

(3)

2011 2010 2009
Investments in client contracts(1) $ 7,521 $ 6,71°¢ $4,52¢
Capitalized costs(z 3,29¢ 2,66( 1,07
Acquired client contracts(: 17,12¢ 3,92( 4,08
Total client contract $27,94: $13,29¢ $9,68¢

Investments in client contracts consist priatipof incentives provided to new or existing alig to convert their customer accounts to,
or retain their customer’s accounts on, our custarage and billing systems. Investments in clianttcacts related to client incentives
are amortized ratably over the lives of the regpedlient contracts, which as of December 31, 2bibiie termination dates that range
from 2012 through 2016. Amortization of the investits in client contracts related to client inceedivs reflected as a reduction in
processing and related services revenues in oonlacStatement:

Capitalized costs related to the deferral afvavsion/set-up services costs are amortized ptiopately over the same period that the
deferred conversion/set-up services revenues aeogmeed, and are primarily reflected in cost afgassing and related services in our
Income Statement

Acquired client contracts represent assetsieadjin the Intec, Quaero, DataProse, Prairie,@oichTec business acquisitions. Acquired
client contracts are being amortized over theinesed useful lives ranging from two to fifteen y&ehased on the approximate pattern
in which the economic benefits of the intangibleeds are expected to be realized. Classificatidgheomortization of acquired client
contracts generally follows where the acquired e’ cost of revenues are categorized in our IncomeStts

The weighted-average remaining amortization pesiodient contracts as of December 31, 2011 wasaqpately 84 months. Based on the
December 31, 2011 net carrying value of these gitda assets, the estimated amortization for efitheofive succeeding fiscal years ending
December 31 will be: 2012—$26.5 million; 2013—$16n#lion; 2014—$15.0 million; 2015—%$9.6 million; dr2016—$7.7 million.

Software

Software consists of: (i) software and similar lietetual property rights from various business corabons; and (ii) internal use software. As
of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the carrying vabfidisese assets were as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010
Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Carrying Net Carrying Net
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Acquired software(4) $63,12¢ $ (45,98f)  $17,13¢ $63,10: $ (40,53)  $22,56¢
Internal use software(* 23,36 (10,539 12,827 13,59¢ (5,046 8,54¢
Total software $86,48 $ (56,52) $29,96¢ $76,69; $ (45,579 $31,11¢

The aggregate amortization related to softwareuged in our operations for 2011, 2010, and 2009, agafollows (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009

Acquired software(4) $ 5,59¢ $2,28¢ $2,01%

Internal use software(* 5,63 3,101 1,89¢
Total software $11,23: $5,387 $3,911
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(4) Acquired software represents the software mitae assets acquired in the Intec, Quaero, DassRPrairie, ComTec, and Telution
business acquisitions, which are being amortizest their estimated useful lives ranging from figeen years

(5) Internal use software represents: (i) thirdgpaoftware licenses; and (ii) the internal anceexal costs related to the implementation of
the thirc-party software licenses. Internal use softwarerisréized over its estimated useful life rangingiirowelve months to ten yea

The weighted-average remaining amortization peoiithe software intangible assets as of Decembg2@®l1 was approximately 71 months.
Based on the December 31, 2011 net carrying vdltieese intangible assets, the estimated amodiz&bir each of the five succeeding fiscal
years ending December 31 will be: 2—$10.8 million; 2013—$7.3 million; 2014—$4.7 millip 2015—%$2.6 million; and 2016—%$1.9
million.

6. Debt
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, our long-ternt deis as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010
Credit Agreementi
Term loan, due December 2015, interest at adjud@OR plus 3.75% (combined rate of 4.30% and
4.06% at December 31, 2011 and 2C $190,00( $200,00(
$100 million revolving loan facility, due Decemi2015, interest at adjusted LIBOR plus applicable
margin (rate of 4.06% at December 31, 2C — 35,00(
Convertible Debt Securitie:
2010 Convertible Notes—senior subordinated convertiotes; due March 1, 2017; cash interest at 3
net of unamortized OID of $30,256 and $34,841, eetpely 119,74. 115,15¢
2004 Convertible Debt Securitiesenior subordinated convertible contingent debtisées; due June 1
2024; cash interest at 2.5%; net of unamortized @flEero and $621, respective — 24,52¢
309,74« 374,68
Current portion of lon-term debt, ne (27,000 (69,52¢)
Total lon¢-term debt, ne $282,74- $305,15¢

Credit Agreementn 2010 and in conjunction with the Intec Acquisitj we entered into an amended and restated $300mairedit
agreement with several financial institutions (t6eedit Agreement”).

The Credit Agreement provided borrowings by ushimform of: (i) a $200 million aggregate princifigk-year term loan (the “Term Loan”);
and (ii) a $100 million aggregate principal fiveayeevolving loan facility (the “Revolver”). Uporasing of the Intec Acquisition, all of the
$200 million aggregate principal Term Loan and $8Bion of the Revolver were drawn down. In Januaéi 1, we repaid the $35 million
outstanding balance of the Revolver. During 2014 made $10.0 million of mandatory repayments orirémen Loan.

The interest rates under the Credit Agreementasedupon an adjusted LIBOR rate plus an applicgablgin, or an alternate base rate plus
an applicable margin. The applicable margin forTteem Loan is 3.75% throughout the term of the @r&dreement and the applicable
margin for the Revolver is based on our then-curererage ratio. We have the option of selectireglength of time (ranging from one to six
months) that we lock in the LIBOR contract rate.ch®ecember 31, 2011, our combined interest 1a@@R plus applicable margin) for the
Term Loan is 4.30% per annum effective through Mdr8, 2012. In May 2011, we entered into threer@serate swap contracts with the
objective of managing our exposure to fluctuationimterest rate movements. See Note 7 for additidiscussion of our interest rate swap
contracts.
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We pay a commitment fee on the average daily unasealint of the Revolver, with the annual commitnfertranging from 0.50% to
0.75% per annum, based upon our then-current Igeawio. At December 31, 2011, we had no borrowinigtanding on our Revolver and
had the entire $100 million available to us.

The Credit Agreement includes mandatory repaymafise aggregate principal amount of the Term Lgmyable quarterly) for the first,
second, third, fourth, and fifth years, with theneéning principal balance due at maturity. The @radreement has no prepayment penalties
and requires mandatory repayments under certainrostances, including: (i) as a result of defineckss cash flow; (ii) asset sales or
casualty proceeds; or (iii) proceeds of debt issaanBased upon our 2011 results of operatiortbgifirst quarter of 2012 we expect to pay
$7.0 million in principal related to the mandatoepayments as a result of defined excess cash flow.

The Credit Agreement contains customary affirmatiweenants such as: (i) filing of quarterly andwadrreports and (ii) maintenance of
credit ratings. In addition, the Credit Agreemeas lcustomary negative covenants that places lonisur ability to: (i) incur additional
indebtedness; (ii) create liens on our property;riake investments; (iv) enter into mergers aodsolidations; (v) sell assets; (vi) declare
dividends or repurchase shares; (vii) engage iaicetransactions with affiliates; (viii) prepayrtan indebtedness, including our 2010
Convertible Notes; and (ix) issue capital stockubsidiaries. We must also meet certain finan@aenants to include: (i) a maximum total
leverage ratio; (ii) a maximum secured leverageyéii) a minimum interest coverage ratio; and) (@ limitation on capital expenditures. As
of December 31, 2011, we were in compliance withfthancial ratios and other covenants relateti¢oGredit Agreement.

In 2010, we also entered into a security agreetnefatvor of a financial institution as collatergent (the “Security Agreement”). Under the
Security Agreement and Credit Agreement, all of GS@mestic subsidiaries have guaranteed our oldligatand CSG and such subsidia
have pledged substantially all of our assets tarsethe obligations under the Credit Agreementsuah guarantees.

In conjunction with the closing of the Credit Agneent, we incurred financing costs totaling $10.8iom, which are being amortized to
interest expense using the effective interest nietwer the related term of the Credit Agreement.

2010 Convertible Note©n March 1, 2010, we completed an offering of $bllion of 3.0% senior subordinated convertibleamtiue

March 1, 2017 (the “2010 Convertible Notes”) to kified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule 144Ader the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended. The 2010 Convertible Notes are unsecinleghtions, subordinated to any future senior inddbess and senior to any future jul
subordinated debt. The 2010 Convertible Notes wgsiged at a price of 100% of their par value arat beerest at a rate of 3.0% per annum,
which is payable semiannually in arrears on Mareimd September 1 of each year.

The net proceeds from the sale of the 2010 Corbleriotes were approximately $145 million, aftefedeed financing costs. We used the
proceeds, along with available cash, cash equitsabard short-term investments, to: (i) repurchaSeniillion shares of our common stock for
$29.3 million ($19.56 per share) under our existgck Repurchase Program; and (ii) repurchase.$XBlion (par value) of our 2004
Convertible Debt Securities for a total purchasegoof $125.8 million, which included accrued imstrof $0.8 million.

The 2010 Convertible Notes are convertible into@mmon stock, under the specified conditions &tdesnent terms outlined below, at an
initial conversion rate of 40.8998 shares of ounomn stock per $1,000 par value of the 2010 CoiblerNotes, which is equivalent to an
initial conversion price of approximately $24.45 phare. The Indenture related to the 2010 Corblerhotes (“Notes Indenture”) includes
anti-dilution provisions for the holders such tha conversion rate (and thus the initial convergince) can be adjusted in the future for
certain events, to include stock dividends, theasse of rights, options or warrants to purchagsecommon stock at a price below the then-
current market price, and certain distributions@inmon stock, property or rights, options or watsda acquire our common stock to all or
substantially all holders of our common stock. Aubdially, the conversion rate may be adjusted puahe maturity date in connection with
the occurrence of specified corporate transacfiona “make-whole” premium as set forth in the Nobedenture. As of December 31, 2011,
the conversion rate has not been adjusted.
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Prior to September 1, 2016, holders of the 2010v€udible Notes can convert their securities: (iqay time the price of our common stock
trades over $31.79 per share (130% of the $24itl&liconversion price) for a specified period wh¢; (ii) at any time the trading price of the
2010 Convertible Notes falls below 98% of the ageraonversion value for the 2010 Convertible Nébes specified period of time; and

(iii) at any time upon the occurrence of specifiedporate transactions, to include a change ofrab(es defined in the Notes Indenture). On
or after September 1, 2016, the holders of the ZDdvertible Notes can elect to convert their séiesrat any time, with the settlement
occurring on March 1, 2017. As of December 31, 2@bhe of the contingent conversion features haenlachieved, and thus, the 2010
Convertible Notes are not convertible by the hadder

Upon conversion of the 2010 Convertible Notes, \ilesgttle our conversion obligation as follows) \lie will pay cash for 100% of the par
value of the 2010 Convertible Notes that are carderand (ii) to the extent the value of our cosi@r obligation exceeds the par value, we
will satisfy the remaining conversion obligationdar common stock, cash or any combination of @anrmon stock and cash. As of
December 31, 2011, the value of our conversiorgakitin did not exceed the par value of the 2010v€dible Notes.

The OID related to the 2010 Convertible Notes &.83nillion, as a result of an effective interesterof the liability component of 7.75%
compared to the cash interest rate of 3.0%, isgo@mortized to interest expense through March 172the maturity date of the 2010
Convertible Notes.

2004 Convertible Debt Securitid3uring 2010, we repurchased $145.2 million (pauggbf our 2004 Convertible Debt Securities footalt
purchase price of $151.0 million and recognizedss lon the repurchase of $12.7 million. In Junel2btlders of $24.1 million par value of
our 2004 Convertible Debt Securities exercised thei option and we paid the par value and accintedest to extinguish the securities. In
June 2011, we exercised our option to call the neimz$1.0 million par value of our 2004 Converétibebt Securities, and extinguished the
debt in July 2011. See Note 9 for discussion ofitiygact on our deferred income tax liabilities asated with the repurchases and
extinguishment of the 2004 Convertible Debt Semsit

Estimated Maturities on Lo-Term Debt The estimated maturities of our long-term debsdad upon: (1) the mandatory repayment schedule
the 2012 estimated mandatory prepayment, and witgsiimating any future mandatory prepaymentstiferTerm Loan; and (2) the expec
remaining life of the Convertible Debt Securitiessas follows (in thousands):

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter

Term Loan $27,00C $30,00C $40,00C $93,00C $— $ —
2010 Convertible Note — — — — — 150,00(
Total lon¢-term debi $27,00C  $30,00C $40,00C $93,000 $— $150,00(

Deferred Financing CostiAs of December 31, 2011, net deferred financingscadated to the Credit Agreement were $7.6 nmijliand are
being amortized to interest expense over the itkaten of the Credit Agreement (December 2015)ofABecember 31, 2011, net deferred
financing costs related to the 2010 Convertibleddatere $2.9 million, and are being amortized terest expense through maturity (March
2017). The net deferred financing costs are raftbat Other Assets in our Balance Sheets. Intesgstnse for 2011, 2010, and 2009 includes
amortization of deferred financing costs of $3.Uiom, $0.8 million, and $0.7 million, respectivelyhe weighted-average interest rate on our
debt borrowings, including amortization of OID, aimation of deferred financing costs, and commititrfees on a revolving loan facility, 1
2011, 2010, and 2009, was approximately 7%, 8% 88fadrespectively.
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7. Derivatives

Interest Rate Swap Contracln May 2011, we entered into three interest ratapseontracts with the objective of managing ourosxpe to
fluctuations in interest rate movements, therebyiahting the variability of cash flows on certgiortions of the interest payments related to
the Term Loan component of our Credit Agreement.

A summary of the three interest rate swap contiadas follows (dollars in thousands):

Weighted-
Average
Notional
Beginning of Amount Fixed
Term End of Term Over Term Rate
2011 Swap May 16, 2011 March 13, 201: $118,00( 0.451%
2012 Sway March 13, 201: March 13, 201: 78,00( 1.085%
2013 Sway March 13, 201 March 13, 201« 51,00( 2.181%

We have designated our interest rate swap conimaatash flow hedges. Swaps designated as cashéldges involve the receipt of variable-
rate amounts from a counterparty over the livethefcontracts in exchange for us making fixed-patgments to the counterparty over the
lives of the contracts without exchange of the ulyiteg notional amount.

Changes in the fair value of these interest ragpsvontracts, designated as hedging instrumerttgeofariability of cash flows associated
with floating-rate, long-term debt obligations, aeported in accumulated other comprehensive indgA®@CI”") in the stockholders’ equity
section of our Balance Sheet. These amounts substyare reclassified into interest expense asld ndjustment of the hedged debt
obligation in the same period in which the relatadrest on the floating-rate debt obligations efeearnings. The amount of losses
reclassified from AOCI to income/loss (effectiverfians) in 2011 were not material. The estimatedosses on the interest rate swap
contracts that will be reclassified into earningthim the next twelve months are not expected tolagerial. Our interest rate swap contracts
qualify as effective relationships, and as a resigtige ineffectiveness was not material duringl201

As of December 31, 2011, the fair value of therigderate swap contracts, reflected in other naneat liabilities in our Balance Sheet, was
$1.0 million, with the loss, net of tax, reflectasl a reduction in other comprehensive income.

We are exposed to credit-related losses in thetefaron-performance by the counterparty to therigdt rate swap contracts. The
counterparty to the interest rate swap contracisnijor institution with investment grade crediings. We evaluated the counterparty credit
risk before entering into the interest rate swaptraats and will continue to closely monitor thedincial markets and the risk that the
counterparty will default on its obligations. Thisedit risk is generally limited to the unrealizgains in such contracts, should the
counterparty fail to perform as contracted.

We do not use derivative financial instrumentssjpeculative purposes.

8. Restructuring Charges
The following are the key restructuring activitigs incurred over the last two years that have irgghour results from operations:

» As aresult of the Intec Acquisition (see Noted®)ring the fourth quarter of 2010, we recorded $Rillon of restructuring
expenses primarily related to changes in senioragement of Intec after the closing of the transac

* Beginning in the second quarter of 2011, we impletee various cost reduction and efficiency initiati, resulting in restructurir
charges of $3.0 million, primarily in the followirtbree areas

. We reduced our resources in account services terbdeverage our enhanced and expanded professenates talent
across the global organizatic
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. We reduced our resources in certain developmensdeeensure we are focusing a greater portiomioéfforts on our next
generation solutions like ACP, Singleview, and WBglution.

. We consolidated our print facilities from four tu¢e locations as we took advantage of the advagrtesnmade in print
technologies and the capabilities of our staff. €ffeciencies and added speed resulting from oevipus investments
allowed us to significantly increase our productibroughput

» During the fourth quarter of 2011, we reduced oarkforce by approximately 100 employees across nfiangtions and
geographies of our business. We did this in ordéxetter align and allocate our resources as wegnmento evolve and invest in
those areas where we have identified growth oppii®s. As a result, we incurred restructuring gearrelated to these
involuntary terminations of $4.9 milliol

The restructuring activities discussed above redut restructuring charges for 2011 and 2010 dd $7llion and $2.2 million, respectively,
which have been reflected as a separate line itewnri Income Statements.

The activity in the business restructuring reseredsted to continuing operations during 2011 adtiiZis as follows (in thousands):

Termination
Facilities

Benefits Abandonmenti Other Total

January 1, 2010, balance $ — $ — $— $ —
Charged to expense during yt 1,98( — 18¢ 2,16¢
Cash payment (81¢€) — (189 (1,00%)

Other — — — —
December 31, 2010, balan 1,16¢ — — 1,16¢
Charged to expense during yt 7,04¢ 567 26C 7,87:
Cash payment (4,439 — (19¢) (4,637%)
Other — (79 (62 (140
December 31, 2011, balan $ 3,771 $ 48¢ $— $ 4,26(

Primarily all of the business restructuring resserae of December 31, 2011 were included in culigpitities.

9. Income Taxes
Income Tax Provision/(BenefiThe components of net income from continuing openatbefore income taxes are as follows (in thodspan

2011 2010 2009

Domestic $ 89,79: $35,86: $63,36¢

Foreign (13,819 (2,18¢) —
Total $ 75,97: $33,67: $63,36¢
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The income tax provision related to continuing agiens consists of the following (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009
Current:
Federal $25,09¢ $ 5,984 $ 1,74¢
State 111 1,80z 94C
Foreign 3,554 21C —
28,76 7,99¢ 2,68t
Deferred:
Federal 3,19( 1,51« 16,25:
State 384 1,92¢ 2,56¢
Foreign 1,35¢ (192) —
4,92¢ 3,24¢ 18,82:
Total income tax provisio $33,69( $11,24¢ $21,507

The difference between our income tax provision goted at the statutory Federal income tax ratecamdinancial statement income tax
related to continuing operations is summarizedHtsvis (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009
Provision at Federal rate of 35% $26,59( $11,78¢ $22,17¢
State income taxes, net of Federal imj 322 2,42: 2,281
Research and experimentation cre (3,03€) (2,830 (2,157)
Resolution of certain tax uncertaint — (4,199 (46%)
Section 199 manufacturing deducti (972) (1,24¢) (349
Impact of foreign operatior 10,42¢ 784 —
Loss on foreign currency transactic — 1,77¢ —
Acquisition costs — 2,45( —
Other 357 29¢ 8

Total income tax provisio $33,69( $11,24¢ $21,50'

We have undistributed earnings of approximately ®#2on from certain foreign subsidiaries. We inteto indefinitely reinvest these foreign
earnings, therefore, a provision has not been fadacome taxes that might be payable upon remittaof such earnings. Determination of
the amount of unrecognized deferred tax liabilityumremitted foreign earnings is not practicable.
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Deferred Income TaxeNet deferred income tax liabilities as of DecemBEr2011 and 2010 are as follows:

2011 2010
Deferred income tax assets $ 73,13¢ $ 75,50¢
Deferred income tax liabilitie (61,607) (62,119
Valuation allowanct (18,729 (23,109
Net deferred income tax liabilitie $ (7,199 $ (9,719

The components of our net deferred income tax sigiabilities) as of December 31, 2011 and 20H)ea follows (in thousands):

2011 2010
Net current deferred income tax ass
Accrued expenses and reserves $ $
Convertible debt securities 18,04 17,18(
— (5,777)
Stocl-based compensatic 3,728 3,97¢
Total current deferred income tax as: 21,76¢ 15,38:
Less: valuation allowanc (1,787%) (1,529)
Net current deferred income tax as $ 19,98 $ 13,85:
Net nor-current deferred income tax assi
Client contracts and related intangib $ (9360 $ (1,189
NOL carryforwards 4,77¢ 6,352
Property and equipme 5,16¢ 4,12¢
Deferred revenu 55¢ 571
Facility abandonmer 92€ 90¢€
Other 138 28€
Total nor-current deferred income tax ass 10,62 11,05:
Less: valuation allowanc (9,616) (1,37%)
Net nor-current deferred income tax ass $ 1,00¢ $ 9,671
Net nor-current deferred income tax liabilitie
Purchased research and developn $ 1,811 $ 4,53¢
Software (13%) (659
Client contracts and related intangib (7,047 (2,029
Goodwill (3,50¢) (2,48))
NOL carryforwards 31,98! 28,81«
Property and equipme (8,127) (6,797%)
Convertible debt securitie (41,867 (43,199
Deferred revenu 1,90z 5,93:
Contingent paymen 897 891
Facility abandonmer 1,16(C 1,33
Other 2,05¢ 60C
Total nor-current deferred income tax liabiliti (20,85¢) (13,046
Less: valuation allowanc (7,330 (20,207)
Net nor-current deferred income tax liabiliti $(28,189) $(33,24Y)

We regularly assess the likelihood of the futuidiration of our deferred income tax assets. Tcetttent we believe that it is more likely tr
not that a deferred income tax asset will not ladized, a valuation allowance is established. ABeéember 31, 2011, we believe that
between: (i) carryback opportunities to past period
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with taxable income; and (i) sufficient taxable@ame to be generated in the future, we will reali28% of the benefit of our U.S. Federal
deferred income tax assets, thus no valuation athme has been established. As of December 31, 2@1iave deferred income tax assets
related to state and foreign income tax jurisdiggiof approximately $3 million and $33 million, pestively, and have established valuation
allowances against those deferred income tax agbatgproximately $2 million and $17 million, respieely.

As of December 31, 2011 we have an acquired U.&maéNOL carryforward of approximately $51 milliomhich will begin to expire in
2019 and can be utilized through 2030. The acquir& Federal NOL carryforward is attributabletie pre-acquisition periods of acquired
subsidiaries. The annual utilization of this U.8dEral NOL carryforward is limited pursuant to $&tt382 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended. In addition, as of December@lll,2ve have: (i) state NOL carryforwards of apjmmately $67 million, which will

expire beginning in 2012 and ending in 2030; apddreign subsidiary NOL carryforwards of approxtaly $57 million, which will expire
beginning in 2015, with a portion of the lossesilatde over an indefinite period of time.

Our 2004 Convertible Debt Securities, which weyfktinguished in 2011, were subject to special. Ur8asury regulations governing
contingent payment debt instruments. These reguistillowed us to take a tax deduction for inteegpense on our U.S. Federal income tax
return at a constant rate of 9.09% (subject taageddjustments), compounded semi-annually, whegheasented the estimated yield on
comparable non-contingent, non-convertible, fixatbdebt instruments with terms and conditionsretise similar to the 2004 Convertible
Debt Securities. This interest expense tax deduet@s greater than the interest expense reflentdtbiaccompanying Income Statements,
thus creating a deferred income tax liability. Exéinguishment of the 2004 Convertible Debt Semsgitesulted in: (i) the holders of the 2(
Convertible Debt Securities not having the abiliyachieve the 9.09% target yield, and (ii) a regmient for us to pay an amount equal to the
cumulative deferred income tax liability to the Ut& authorities (without interest or penaltid3)iring the third and fourth quarters of 2011,
we paid cash of approximately $6 million relatedhite deferred income tax liabilities associatedlie 2004 Convertible Debt Securities
repurchased in June and July of 2011. Beginnirpit¥, we will pay cash of approximately $31 milli@iably over five years related to the
deferred income tax liabilities associated with 2004 Convertible Debt Securities repurchased G926hd 2010.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income TaxWe are required to estimate our income tax ligbifiteach jurisdiction in which we operate,
including U.S. Federal, state and foreign incomxguasdictions. Various judgments and estimatesraguired in evaluating our tax positions
and determining our provisions for income taxesrifiyuthe ordinary course of business, there ar@iretransactions and calculations for
which the ultimate income tax determination maybeertain. In addition, we may be subject to exatidm of our income tax returns by
various tax authorities, which could result in agdeecoutcomes. For these reasons, we establishilityiassociated with unrecognized tax
benefits based on estimates of whether additi@xaistand interest may be due. This liability isiatljd based upon changing facts and
circumstances, such as the closing of a tax athditexpiration of a statute of limitations or teémement of an estimate.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending baksof our liability for unrecognized tax beneftsais follows (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009

Balance, beginning of year $ 954 $ 4,131 $ 4,672
Additions based on tax positions related to curyesatr — — 1,28¢
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 3,24¢ 954 365
Reductions for tax positions of prior yei (89) (4,137 —

Lapse of statute of limitatior — — 2,195
Balance, end of ye: $4,11¢ $ 954 $ 4,131
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We recognize interest and penalty expense assdaiatie our liability for unrecognized tax benefds a component of income tax expense in
our Income Statements. In addition to the $4.liomi)l$1.0 million and $4.1 million of liability founrecognized tax benefits as of

December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 respectively,asle$.1 million, $0.1 million and $0.4 million resgively, of income tax-related
accrued interest. If recognized, the $4.1 millidmorecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2@blild favorably impact our effective

tax rate in future periods.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. Federalgdigtion, various U.S. state and local jurisdicipand many foreign jurisdictions. The U.S.,
U.K., and Ireland are the main taxing jurisdictiamsvhich we operate. The years open for audit wiyending on the taxing jurisdiction. As
of December 31, 2011, the U.S. Internal Revenuei@ehad completed audits, closing years 2006 tiitd®008, and the statute of limitations
has expired in our major state jurisdictions of Nelia, Colorado and Florida for years prior to 2007, and 2008, respectively. We are
currently under audit in the U.K. for the accougtperiods beginning October 1, 2005 and endinge®eper 30, 2010. We have not been
audited in Ireland and are subject to record regamrequirements back to 2006.

10. Employee Retirement Benefit Plans

Defined Contributio-Type PlansWe sponsor defined contribution plans covering s&uti&lly all our U.S.-based employees. Participant
may contribute up to 100% of their annual wagebjesl to certain limitations, as pretax, salaryedefl contributions. We make certain
matching, and at our discretion, service-basedritanions to the plan. The expense related to niagcand service-related contributions for
2011, 2010, and 2009 was $8.9 million, $7.4 milliand $6.4 million, respectively. We also have niedi contribution-type plans for certain
of our non-U.S.-based employees. The total cortioha made to these plans in 2011 were $3.2 million

11. Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies

Operating LeasedNe lease certain office and production facilitiesler operating leases that run through 2024. Tés=kegenerally are
renewable and provide for the payment of real estates and certain other occupancy expensesdlticar we lease certain operating
equipment under operating leases that run thro0dA.2Future aggregate minimum lease payments uhese facilities and operating
equipment agreements are as follows: 2012—$18 libmi2013—$16.8 million; 2014—%$13.4 million; 20155%1.0 million; 2016—$7.0
million and thereafter—$39.2 million. Total rentgense for 2011, 2010, and 2009 was $17.3 millid2, Fmillion, and $12.5 million,
respectively.

Service Agreementin December 2008, we entered into an agreementlafiticrossing LLC (“Infocrossing”), a Wipro Limitedompany, to
transition our outsourced data center services ffost Data Corporation (“FDC”) to Infocrossing. &term of the Infocrossing agreement
runs through May 2015. We changed data center geowito partner with a global provider that focuseslata center operations in greater
scale, and as their core business focus. This atlave to further improve the delivery of our sauas while benefiting from an improved cost
structure.

We outsource the data processing and related cemgenvices required for the operation of our outsed ACP processing services. Our
ACP proprietary software and other software apfibcs are run in an outsourced data center enviemtiin order to obtain the necessary
enterprise server computer capacity and other ctengupport services without us having to makesthestantial capital and infrastructure
investments that would be necessary for us to geothiese services internally. Our clients are cotaukto the outsourced data center
environment through a combination of private ancheeercially-provided networks. The total amount paidier our outsourced data center
services agreements during 2011, 2010, and 200%4&8 million, $49.6 million, and $53.9 milliorespectively.
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Warranties. We generally warrant that our solutions and relatiéerings will conform to published specificatiorms to specifications
provided in an individual client arrangement, apla@able. The typical warranty period is 90 daysifirdelivery of the solution or offering. F
certain service offerings we provide a limited veauty for the duration of the services provided. §éaerally warrant that services will be
performed in a professional and workmanlike manmbe typical remedy for breach of warranty is toreot or replace any defective
deliverable, and if not possible or practical, wi#t accept the return of the defective deliveradhel refund the amount paid under the client
arrangement that is allocable to the defectivevdedible. Our contracts also generally contain ktioh of damages provisions in an effort to
reduce our exposure to monetary damages arisinglireach of warranty claims. Historically, we hawveurred minimal warranty costs, and
as a result, do not maintain a warranty reserve.

Product and Services IndemnificatioOur arrangements with our clients generally incladéndemnification provision that will indemnify
and defend a client in actions brought againstlieat that claim our products and/or servicesiirgfe upon a copyright, trade secret, or valid
patent. Historically, we have not incurred any ffigant costs related to such indemnification clgjrand as a result, do not maintain a reserve
for such exposure.

Claims for Company Non-performane@ur arrangements with our clients typically cap lalility for breach to a specified amount of the
direct damages incurred by the client resultingnfitbe breach. From time-to-time, these arrangenmaaisalso include provisions for
possible liquidated damages or other financial diesefor our non-performance, or in the case abaeiof our outsourced customer care and
billing solutions, provisions for damages relatedgérvice level performance requirements. The serevel performance requirements
typically relate to system availability and timelss of service delivery. As of December 31, 2014 pelieve we have adequate reserves,
based on our historical experience, to cover aagaeably anticipated exposure as a result of ooperdormance for any past or current
arrangements with our clients.

Indemnifications Related to Officers and the BoafrDirectors.We have agreed to indemnify certain of our officamsl members of our
Board of Directors if they are named or threatetoglde named as a party to any proceeding by reafsiie fact that they acted in such
capacity. We maintain directors’ and officers’ (D&{@surance coverage to protect against such logéesdave not historically incurred any
losses related to these types of indemnificatiand,are not aware of any pending or threatenedrectir claims against any officer or
member of our Board of Directors. As a result, vagennot recorded any liabilities related to suakeimnifications as of December 31, 2011.
In addition, as a result of the insurance policyazage, we believe these indemnification agreemametsiot significant to our results of
operations.

Legal ProceedingsFrom time-to-time, we are involved in litigationlagng to claims arising out of our operationstie hormal course of
business. In addition, we have received an admatige subpoena from the U.S. Department of th@duey, Office of Foreign Assets Con
(“OFAC") dated February 27, 2012. OFAC has requtitat we provide documents and information relatetthe possibility of direct or
indirect transactions with or to a jurisdiction gdi to various restrictions and/or prohibitionse Wave initiated an internal review to identify
transactions by us involving the subject mattathefsubpoena. The business dealings of our fosibsidiaries in the jurisdiction that is the
subject of the OFAC subpoena represent an insggmfiamount of our consolidated revenues and incantbthe business dealings generally
consist of software licenses and related servidgscannot predict the ultimate outcome of this erathe total costs to be incurred in
response to this subpoena, or to what extentafiatve could be subject to fines, sanctions beopenalties. Thus, no reasonable estimate of
the potential loss is possible. Other than desdridi®ve, we are not presently a party to any nadteeinding or threatened legal proceedings.

12. Stockholders’ Equity

Stock Repurchase PrograkVe currently have a stock repurchase program, &pgrby our Board of Directors, authorizing us tpuehase
shares of our common stock from time-to-time asketasind business conditions warrant (the “StockuRease Program”).
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As of December 31, 2011, a summary of the shapgchased under the Stock Repurchase Progranfafiasgs (in thousands, except per
share amounts):

2011 2010 2009 2008 1999-2007 Total
Shares repurchased 75C 1,50(C 25C 25C 28,79¢ 31,54¢
Total amount pai $9,93( $29,34( $3,78z $3,98: $696,45  $743,49.
Weightec-average price per she $13.2¢ $ 19.5¢ $15.1: $159¢ $ 24.1¢ $ 23.57

As of December 31, 2011, the total remaining nunabehares available for repurchase under the S®egurchase Program totaled
approximately 3.5 million shares.

In addition to the above mentioned stock repurchasering 2011, 2010, and 2009, we repurchasedhemdcancelled approximately 232,000
shares, 232,000 shares, and 195,000 shares fonfiifiah, $4.7 million, and $2.8 million, respecglly, of common stock from our employees
in connection with minimum tax withholding requirents resulting from the vesting of restricted stanker our stock incentive plans.

Convertible Debt Securitieslnder GAAP, convertible debt securities that magéitied in cash upon conversion (including padéh
settlement) must be separated into their liabditg equity components at initial recognition byrécording the liability component at the f
value of a similar liability that does not haveassociated equity component; and (ii) attributimg temaining proceeds from the issuance to
the equity component. The carrying amount of thgitgggcomponent related to our convertible debt sées outstanding, included within
additional paid-in capital, net of tax, as of Det®@m31, 2011 and 2010, was $22.9 million and $6iilllon, respectively.

13. Equity Compensation Plans
Stock Incentive Plans
Summary of Stock Incentive Plan&s of December 31, 2011, we have three stockninge plans, as summarized below:

Shares
Shares Available For
Reserved For

Plan Issuance Issuance
1997 Director Plan(1) — —
2005 Plan(2 15,800,00 7,681,171
Total stockholder approve 15,800,00 7,681,17!
2001 Plan(3 — —
Total 15,800,00 7,681,171

(1) The Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Diresttihe “1997 Director Planiyas adopted upon stockholder approval. No furtinant
may be made under the 1997 Director Plan, but togk®wards outstanding under the 1997 Directon Réanain in effect in accordar
with their respective term

(2) The 2005 Stock Incentive Plan was adopted @hackholder approval. In 2011, our stockholdersapgd the amended and restated
2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2005 Plan”), whietluded an increase in the number of shares thgthe issued under the plan from
12,400,000 shares to 15,800,000 shares. The shaiable under the 2005 Plan have been reservesisigance to officers and other
key employees of our company and its subsidiamesta non-employee directors of our company inftimen of stock options, stock
appreciation rights, performance unit awards, i&stl stock awards, or stock bonus awards. Shasedegl under the 2005 Plan in the
form of a performance unit award, restricted staalard or stock bonus award are counted towardgbeegate number of shares of
common stock available for issuance under the 2086 as two shares for every one share grantessoed in payment of such aws
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(3) The 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2001 Plamds adopted without stockholder approval. No ®rrrants may be made under the
2001 Plan, but any stock awards outstanding utde2®01 Plan remain in effect in accordance widir tespective term:

Restricted Stoc. We generally issue new shares (versus treasangshto fulfill restricted stock award grants. tReted stock awards are
granted at no cost to the recipient. Historicadlyr restricted stock awards have vested annuaby four years with no restrictions other than
the passage of time (i.e., the shares are relegg®dcalendar vesting with no further restrictiofi$jme-Based Awards”). Unvested Time-
Based Awards are typically forfeited and cancellpdn termination of employment with our companyrt@ie Time-Based Awards become
fully vested upon a change in control, as defiran] the subsequent involuntary termination of egplent. The fair value of the TimBasec
Awards (determined by using the closing marketgpatour common stock on the grant date) is chatgecpense on a straight-line basis
over the requisite service period for the entirely

We also issue restricted stock shares to key mendfenanagement that vest in equal installments tiwee years upon meeting either pre-
established financial performance objectives orgat@blished stock price objectives (“Performanese® Awards”). The structure of the
performance goals for the Performance-Based Awaaddeen approved by our stockholders. The PerfameiBased Awards become fully
vested upon a change in control, as defined, amdubhsequent involuntary termination of employme&he fair value of the Performance-
Based Awards (determined by using the closing ntgkiee of our common stock on the grant dateharged to expense on a straight-line
basis over the requisite service period for eaplausgely vesting portion of the award as if the @nig, in-substance, multiple awards.

A summary of our unvested restricted stock actiditying 2011 is as follows:

2011
Weighted-

Average Grant

Shares Date Fair Value

Unvested awards, January 1, 2011 1,803,97. $ 17.1¢

Awards grantet 722,07: 18.8i

Awards forfeited/cancelle (191,019 17.4:2

Awards vestel (714,63) 17.2¢

Unvested awards, December 31, 2 1,620,39 $ 17.8i

The weighted-average grant date fair value peresbrestricted stock shares granted during 200102and 2009, was $18.87, $19.73, and
$14.48, respectively. The total market value ofrieted stock shares vesting during 2011, 2010,2009 was $13.5 million, $14.4 million,
and $8.5 million, respectively.

Stock Optionsin 2003, we began primarily granting restricteccktawards instead of stock options to employeeshandemployee directors
under our equity compensation plans. Historicatgck option awards were granted with an exerdise gqual to the fair value of our

common stock as of the date of grant and typiocadted over four years, with a maximum term ofytears. No stock options were awarded
during 2011, 2010, or 2009.

1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

As of December 31, 2011, we had an employee stogthpse plan whereby shares of our common stook hxeen reserved for sale to our
employees through payroll deductions. In 2011,stackholders approved the amended and restatedBEr@pyee Stock Purchase Plan,
which included an increase in the number of shaassrved for sales to our employees from 958,048sho 1,708,043 shares. The price for
shares purchased under the plan is 85% of market wa the last day of the purchase period. Pueshase made at the end of
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each month. During 2011, 2010, and 2009, 102,1@,595, and 88,368 shares, respectively, were psechander the plan for $1.4 million
($10.74 to $18.05 per share), $1.2 million ($18&%819.31 per share), and $1.1 million, ($11.2516.46 per share), respectively. As of
December 31, 2011, 723,338 shares remain eligiblpdrchase under the plan.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

We recorded stock-based compensation expense df fition, $12.3 million, and $12.6 million, resg#vely, for 2011, 2010, and 2009. As
of December 31, 2011, there was $19.4 million tdltoompensation cost related to unvested awartgat@ecognized. That cost, excluding
the impact of forfeitures, is expected to be reioephover a weighted-average period of 2.5 years.

We recorded a deferred income tax benefit relaiesidck-based compensation expense during 2010, 208 2009, of $4.4 million, $4.6
million, and $4.9 million, respectively. The actitome tax benefit realized for the tax deductifsom stock option exercises and vesting of
restricted stock for 2011, 2010, and 2009, tot&&d million, $5.5 million, and $3.4 million, resgevely.

14. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 3l December 3
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

2011:
Total revenues(1 $183,09:. $181,31. $ 182,75: $ 187,57-
Total cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciat 90,76« 90,87¢ 92,98t¢ 91,02:
Operating income(1)(z 24,10« 22,37: 22,76 27,04
Income before income taxes 18,24¢ 15,81¢ 19,77: 22,14
Income tax provision(3 (6,757 (6,807 (9,292 (10,84¢)
Net income(2, 11,49: 9,01¢ 10,47¢ 11,29
Basic earnings per common share $ 0.3¢ $ 0.27 $ 0.3z $ 0.3t
Diluted earnings per common share 0.3t 0.27 0.32 0.3t

2010:
Total revenues(1 $130,26: $131,34¢ $ 133,69: $ 154,07
Total cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciat 72,97 74,831 67,79: 74,20(
Operating income(1)(4 16,40: 14,757 22,52: 20,66
Income before income taxes(1)(4)(5) 1,71¢€ 11,70( 17,98t 2,27:
Income tax provision(7 (652) (239) (6,29%) (4,067)
Net income (loss)(1)(4)(5)(6)( 1,06¢ 11,46¢ 11,69( (1,797
Basic earnings (loss) per common share(1)(4)(5 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.3t $ 0.3¢ $ (0.0%)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share(1)(4){%7¥{¢ 0.0: 0.3t 0.3t (0.05)

(1) During the fourth quarter of 2010, we completteel Intec Acquisition, and as a result, one marfitlntec operations are included in the
fourth quarter 2010 results (see Note 3) and alfse months of Intec operations are includedarhequarter in 2011. Additionally, in
conjunction with the Intec Acquisition, during ttferd and fourth quarters of 2010, we incurred $Riion and $9.6 million,
respectively, or $0.05 and $0.20 per diluted sirapact, of Intec Acquisitic-related charge:

(2) During the second, third, and fourth quartdrg@l 1, we incurred restructuring expenses of $iilBon, $1.7 million, and $4.9 million,
respectively, or $0.02, $0.03, and $0.08 per dilgieare (see Note ¢

(3) Our effective income tax rates for the firgt¢cend, third, and fourth quarters of 2011 were 3%38p, 47% and 49%, respectively. The
increasing rates in the second, third, and founttrigrs of 2011 were a result
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(4)

()

(6)
(7)

increased anticipated losses in certain foreigrjuasgdictions for the year, for which we could nake benefit on at that time, which
increased our overall effective income tax forykar.

In 2010, we completed the transition of ouradatocessing and related computer services from 0@afocrossing (see Note 11). As a
result, during the first, second, third, and fougttarters of 2010, we incurred expenses of $7.lfomjl$10.6 million, $1.8 million, and
$0.3 million, respectively, or $0.14, $0.20, $0.84d $0.01 per diluted share impact, related teettiansition efforts

The first, third, and fourth quarters of 2088ults of operations included losses of $11.0 om|l1.7 million, and $0.1 million,
respectively, or $0.20, $0.03, and $0.00 per diligieare impact, related to the repurchase of $1hlién, $23.2 million and $2.1
million of our 2004 Convertible Debt Securitieséd¢ote 6).

During the fourth quarter of 2010, we incureetbss of $14.0 million, or $0.30 per diluted shianpact, related to foreign currency
transactions in conjunction with the Intec Acqudsit(see Note 3’

Our income tax provision for 2010 was impadbgdhe following items: (i) during the second geanf 2010, the IRS completed an
examination with respect to our 2006, 2007, andBZB€deral income tax returns, which resulted imfakle adjustments to our liability
for unrecognized income tax benefits of approxirtyed million; and (ii) differences in book and texeatment of approximately $4
million, for certain expenses incurred during tharth quarter in conjunction with the Intec Acqtiai (see Note 9). These two matters
essentially offset each othi
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Aounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedwe

As required by Rule 13a-15(b), our managementudiob the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQO”) and Chigihancial Officer (“CFQ"),
conducted an evaluation as of the end of the pedwéred by this report of the effectiveness ofdiaclosure controls and procedures as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e). Based on that evaluatltm CEO and CFO concluded that our disclosuréralsnand procedures were effective as
of the end of the period covered by this report.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Contralver Financial Reporting

As required by Rule 13a-15(d), our managementudinp the CEO and CFO, also conducted an evaluafionr internal control over
financial reporting, as defined by Rule 13a-19¢fanagement’s Report on Internal Control over FimariReporting is located at the front of
Part Il, Item 8 of this report.

(c) Attestation Report of the Independent Registkfublic Accounting Firm

Our independent registered public accounting fssuéed an attestation report on the effectivenesarihternal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2011. KPMG LLP’s rémlocated immediately following Management’s Reon Internal Control over
Financial Reporting at the front of Part Il, Iteno®Bthis report.

(d) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repiing

There were no changes in our internal control dwancial reporting identified in connection withet evaluation required by paragraph (d) of
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15 that occurtethg the fourth quarter of 2011 that have matbriaffected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over finaaaeporting.

Item 9B.  Other Information
None.

PART 1l

Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace

See the Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual Meadfrfgtockholders, from which information regarduigectors is incorporated herein by
reference. Information regarding our executivecafifs will be omitted from such proxy statement mnfdirnished in a separate item captioned
“Executive Officers of the Registrant” includedtlé end of Part | of this Form 10-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

See the Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual Meadifrfgtockholders, from which information in resperte this Item is incorporated herein
by reference.
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ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andMlanagement and Related Stockholder Matter:

See the Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual Meadfrfgtockholders, from which information requiregthis Item is incorporated herein by
reference, with the exception of the equity compéns plan information which is presented in ItepiMarket for Registrant’'s Common
Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer lPages of Equity Securities”, and is incorporatemineby reference.

ltem 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence

See the Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual Meaifrfgtockholders, from which information in respers this Item is incorporated herein
by reference.

Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Service

See the Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual Meadifrfgtockholders, from which information in resperte this Item is incorporated herein
by reference.

PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule
(@) Financial Statements, Financial Statement SchedaesExhibits
(1) Financial Statemen
The financial statements filed as part of this repee listed on the Index to Consolidated Findrigtatements on page 51.
(2) Financial Statement Schedul:

None. Any information required in the Financial t8taent Schedules is provided in sufficient detabir Financial
Statements and notes thereto.

(3)  Exhibits
Exhibits are listed in the Exhibit Index on page 90

The Exhibits include management contracts, comgensplans and arrangements required to be filegkagits to the
Form 10-K by Item 601 of Regulation S-K.

(b) Exhibits
The Exhibits filed or incorporated by referencedwéth are as specified in the Exhibit Index.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(djf the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigrig thereunto duly authorized.

CSG SYSTEMSI| NTERNATIONAL , | NC.

By: /s| PeTERE. K ALAN

Peter E. Kalan
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 14, 2012

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Examge Act of 1934, this report has been signed beldw the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in capacities and onhte dates indicated.

Signature Title. Date
/s/ DoNALD B. REED Chairman of the Board of Directors March 14, 2012

Donald B. Reed

/s| PeETERE. KALAN Director, Chief Executive Officer, and Presid March 14, 2012

Peter E. Kalan

(Principal Executive Officer

/s/ RanDY R. WIESE Executive Vice President, Chief Financial March 14, 2012
Randy R. Wiese Officer, and Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)

/s/ RoNALD H. C 0OPER Director March 14, 2012

Ronald Cooper

/s/ JoHnNL. M. H uGHS Director March 14, 2012
John L. M. Hughs

/s/ EpwaARrD C. N AFUS Director March 14, 2012
Edward C. Nafus

/s/ JaNICE |. O BUCHOWSKI Director March 14, 2012
Janice |. Obuchowski

/s/ BERNARDW. R EZNICEK Director March 14, 2012
Bernard W. Reznicek
Is/  FRANK V. SIcA Director March 14, 2012
Frank V. Sica
/s DONALD V. SMITH Director March 14, 2012

Donald V. Smith

/sl JamES A. U NRUH Director March 14, 2012

James A. Unruh
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Exhibit
Number

2.10(21)
3.01(1)
3.02(7)
3.03(2)

4.01(1)
4.10(5)

4.20(5)

4.25(17)
4.30(18)
4.40(18)

4.50(22)

10.02(24)
10.04(24)
10.05(24)
10.06(11)
10.15(19)
10.16(8)

10.21*(13)

10.21A%(22,

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description
Implementation Agreement between CSG Systems latiermal, Inc. and Inte
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Comp
Revised Bylaws of CSG Systems International,

Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificaténmiorporation of CSG Systems International,
Inc.

Form of Common Stock Certifica

Indenture dated as of June 2, 2004 between thesiRagi and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americasimgl to the
CODES

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of Jun@®@4 detween the Registrant and Lehman Brother:

Letter agreement dated March 18, 2010 by and bei@&G Systems International, Inc. and Quantum Besrtiotd.
regarding $119,896,000 aggregate principal amolu@S85's 2.5% Senior Subordinated Convertible Caygitt Debt
Securities due 202

Purchase Agreement dated February 24, 2010, bpetmten CSG Systems International, Inc., and Bgsclapital
Inc., J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., and UBS SeasitiLC

Indenture dated March 1, 2010 between CSG Systetemhtional, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellbrust
Company, N.A., as truste

$300,000,000 Amended and Restated Credit Agreedstat! as of September 24, 2010, as Amended andt&&sis
of November 24, 2010, among CSG Systems Interratitmc., as Borrower, The Guarantors Party HerEhe,
Lenders Party Hereto, UBS Securities LLC and RB@itahMarkets as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint
Bookmanagers, RBS Capital Markets, as Syndicatigendy UBS Securities LLC, as Documentation Age@SLAG,
Stamford Branch, as Issuing Bank, AdministrativeeAgand Collateral Agent, and UBS Loan Finance LAE,
Swingline Lende

Second Amended and Restated 1996 Employee Stockddar Plan, as adopted on May 17, z

CSG Systems International, Inc. 2005 Stock Incenfilan, as adopted on May 17, 2(

CSG Systems International, Inc. Performance BomagrBm, as adopted on May 17, 2(

CSG Systems International, Inc. 2001 Stock Incenfilan, as amended August 14, 2

Form of Indemnification Agreement between CSG Systinternational, Inc. and Directors and Execu@fficers

Indemnification Agreement between CSG Systemsnaténal, Inc. and Mr. Ronald Cooper, dated Novemniite
2006

CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreementegn CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, L1

Fifth Amendment to the Restated and Amended CSQ@avi&ubscriber Management System Agreement Between
CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable Communicatiamagement, LL(
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Exhibit
Number
10.21B*(23
10.21C*(25
10.21D*(26
10.21E*(26'
10.21F*

10.21G*

10.23*(16)
10.23A%(19,

10.23B*(22,
10.23C*(23
10.23D*(25
10.23E*(25,
10.23F*(25)
10.23G*(25
10.23H*(26
10.23*
10.24*(15)

10.24A%(15,
10.24B*(15,

10.24C*(22

10.24*D(25

Description

Sixth Amendment to the Restated and Amended CSGev&sibscriber Management System Agreement Between
CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast CcCommunications Management, LL

Seventh Amendment to the Restated and Amended C&EeMSubscriber Management System Agreement betwee
CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable Communicatiamsagement, LLC

Eighth Amendment to the Restated and Amended CS&aviSubscriber Management System Agreement between
CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable Communicatiamagement, LLC

Ninth Amendment to the Restated and Amended CSGdvi&sibscriber Management System Agreement bet
CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable Communicatiamagement, LL(

Tenth Amendment to the Restated and Amended CS®@Masbscriber Management System Agreement between
CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable Communicatiamsagement, LLC

Eleventh Amendment to the Restated and Amended I@8&&er Subscriber Management System Agreement batwe
CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable Communicatiamsagement, LLC

CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreemsénebn CSG Systems, Inc. and Dish Network L.|

Third Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Mamage System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Dish Network, L.L.C.

Fourth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Mamagt System Agreement between CSG Systems, ldc. an
Dish Network, L.L.C.

Tenth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber ManageSystem Agreement Between CSG Systems, Inc. and
DISH Network, L.L.C.

Eleventh Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriberadgament System Agreement Between CSG Systemsirid
Dish Network L.L.C.

Twelfth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Manzent System Agreement Between CSG Systems,ridc. a
Dish Network L.L.C.

Thirteenth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscrib@ndgement System Agreement Between CSG Systems, Inc
and Dish Network L.L.C

Fourteenth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscril@rdgement System Agreement Between CSG Systems, Inc
and Dish Network L.L.C

Fifteenth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscribenddament System Agreement Between CSG Systemsnd
Dish Network L.L.C.

Sixteenth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriberdgament System Agreement Between CSG Systemsiric
Dish Network L.L.C.

CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreenetnebn CSG Systems, Inc. and Time Warner Cabl& date
March 13, 200!

ComTec Processing and Production Services Agree

Second Amendment to the Processing and Producéinncgs Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and Tim
Warner Cable Inc

Forty-ninth Amendment of the CSG Master Subscridanagement System Agreement between CSG Systems, In
and Time Warner Cable In

Third Amendment to the Processing and Productioni&ess Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and Time
Warner Cable Inc

91



Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number

10.24E*(25

10.24F*(25

10.24G*

10.39(13)
10.44(3)
10.47(12)
10.47A(13)
10.48(12)
10.48A(13)
10.49(12)
10.49A(13)
10.50(4)
10.51(14)
10.52(23)
10.80(6)
10.80A(10)
10.80B(9)
10.80C(11)
10.81(13)
10.82(23)
21.01
23.01
31.01
31.02
32.01

101.INS**
101.SCH**
101.CAL**

Description

Fifty-First Amendment of the CSG Master Subscrildanagement System Agreement between CSG Systems, In

and Time Warner Cable In

Fifty-Third Amendment of the CSG Master Subscriblemagement System Agreement between CSG Systems, In

and Time Warner Cable In

Fifty-Seventh Amendment of the CSG Master Subscriber lemant System Agreement between CSG System:

and Time Warner Cable In

CSG Systems, Inc. Wealth Accumulation Plan, as aee@ugust 15, 200

CSG Systems International, Inc. Stock Option PtarNfor-Employee Director

Restated Employment Agreement with Randy R. Widaied May 29, 200

First Amendment to Restated Employment Agreemettt Randy R. Wiese, dated August 19, 2!
Restated Employment Agreement with Peter E. Kalated May 29, 200

First Amendment to Restated Employment Agreemettt Reéter E. Kalan, dated August 19, 2I
Restated Employment Agreement with Joseph T. Rdlaked May 29, 200

First Amendment to Restated Employment Agreemettt yoseph T. Ruble, dated August 19, 2
CSG Systems International, Inc. 2001 Stock Incenfilan

Employment Agreement with Bret C. Griess dated &atyr 19, 200¢

Restated Employment Agreement with Michael J. Hesale dated March 16, 20:

Forms of Agreement for Equity Compensat

Forms of Agreement for Equity Compensat

Forms of Agreement for Equity Compensat

Forms of Agreement for Equity Compensat

Forms of Agreement for Equity Compensat

Forms of Agreement for Equity Compensat

Subsidiaries of the Registre

Consent of KPMG LLF

Certifications Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sagk-Oxley Act of 200z

Certifications Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sagk-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbamésy@ct of
2002

XBRL Instance Documet
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
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Exhibit
Number Description
101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkba:

101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

(1) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the saumber to the Registration Statement No-244 on Form -1.

(2 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of $aee number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repofarm 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 1997

3) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of taene number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repofarm 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2001

4) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of taene number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repofarm 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 200z

(5) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the saumber to the Registri’s Registration Statement No. -117427 on Form-3.

(6) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of $aee number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repofarm 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 200

(7 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of taene number to the Registrant’s Current RepoRam 8K for the event dated May 2
2005.

(8) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of staene number to the Registrant’s Current RepoRam 8-K for the event dated
November 16, 200¢

9) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of $aee number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repofarm 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2007

(10) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit @& $ame number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RegoRorm 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2007

(11) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoRorm 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 200

(12) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit @& $ame number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RegoRorm 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 200¢

(13) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit @& same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepgoRorm 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 200

(14) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoRorm 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2009

(15) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Annual RepoRaym 10-K/A for the year ended
December 31, 2008, filed on September 8, 2

(16) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & $ame number to the Registrant’s Annual RepoRaym 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 200!

(17) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & $ame number to the Registrant’s Current RepoRoom 8-K for the event dated
March 18, 2010

(18) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Current RepoFoom 8-K for the event dated
February 24, 201(

(19) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit @& $ame number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepgoRorm 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2010

(20) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit @& $ame number to the Registrant’s Current RepoRoom 8K for the event dated July 1
2010.

(21) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoRorm 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 201

(22) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & sme number to the Registrant’'s Annual RepoRam 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 201!
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(23)
(24)
(25)

(26)

*%

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & $ame number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoFRorm 10-Q for the period ended

March 31, 2011
Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Current Repofoom 8K for the event dated May 1

2011.
Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoRorm 10-Q for the period ended

June 30, 2011
Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & $ame number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoFRorm 10-Q for the period ended

September 30, 201

Portions of the exhibit have been omitted purguaran application for confidential treatment, dhe omitted portions have been filed

separately with the Commissic

XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) imfation is furnished and not filed or a part of gistration statement or prospec
for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securhigtsof 1933, as amended, is deemed not filed wppses of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, drahwise is not subject to liability under thesetioss.

94



Pages where confidential treatment has been request are stampec* Confidential Treatment Requested and the Redacted kterial
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EXHIBIT 10.21F

TENTH AMENDMENT
TO THE
RESTATED AND AMENDED
CSG MASTER SUBSCRIBER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
CSG SYSTEMS, INC.
AND
COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT, LLC

THIS TENTH AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) is made by and betwde8G Systems, Inc (“CSG”) andComcast Cable
Communications Management, LLC(“Customer”). The Effective Date of this Amendménthe date last signed below. CSG and Customel
entered into a certain Restated and Amended CS@Masbscriber Management System Agreement (CSGnaert #2296663) dated

July 1, 2008 (the “Agreement”) and now desire teacththe Agreement in accordance with the termscanditions set forth in this
Amendment. If the terms and conditions set fortthis Amendment shall be in conflict with the Agmeent, the terms and conditions of this
Amendment shall control. Any terms in initial cagpitetters or all capital letters used as a defteeh but not defined in this Amendment s
have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. Up@tw@tion of this Amendment by the parties, any sgbsnt reference to the Agreement
between the parties shall mean the Agreement asdeddy this Amendment. Except as amended by timisr&iment, the terms and
conditions set forth in the Agreement shall corgimufull force and effect according to their terms

CSG and Customer agree to the following as of fifiecEve Date:

1. Customer desires to utilize the services of CS&Professional Services Group to design, develomdaiimplement a custom
solution that will allow Customer’s Customer Servie Representatives (CSRs) to complete orders withdtier accuracy. CSG will
design, develop and implement its Order Account Auitl Tool (OAAT) to accomplish this solution by providing a series of edits
during the order creation process by CSRs that nofy the CSR if the order has violated an order auditule. Consequently,
Schedule Fof the Agreement is amended to include the followmfees for the CSG services to be performed in coaction with the
design, development and implementation of its OAAT:

Fhkkdkdokdok ok dekokek [k Kk ekkkdekk *kkFkkkKk *kk

kkhk kkkkk kkkhkkkk kkkkk kkkk khhhkhhk hhkkkx *x

* ** * *kk *kkk * K%k * *% kkk *%k k% *kkkkk *kk kkk k%
) .
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K*kkkkkkkk *k *’***
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Amendment éxéeuted by their duly authorized representatives.

COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS CSG SYSTEMS, INC. (“CSG”)
MANAGEMENT, LLC (“CUSTOMER")

By: /s/ Andrew J. Bae By: /s/ Joseph T. Rub

Name: Andrew J. Bae Name: Joseph T. Rubl

Title: SVP & CIO Title: EVP, CAO & General Couns

Date: 11/16/11 Date: 11-29-11
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EXHIBIT 10.21G

ELEVENTH AMENDMENT
TO THE
RESTATED AND AMENDED
CSG MASTER SUBSCRIBER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
CSG SYSTEMS, INC.
AND
COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT, LLC

This ELEVENTH AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) is made by and betw&e8G Systems, Inc (“CSG”) andComcast Cable
Communications Management, LLC(“Customer”). The Effective Date of this Amendménthe date last signed below. CSG and Customel
entered into a certain Restated and Amended CS@Masbscriber Management System Agreement (CSGnaert #2296663) dated

July 1, 2008 (the “Agreement”) and now desire teachthe Agreement in accordance with the termscanditions set forth in this
Amendment. If the terms and conditions set fortthis Amendment shall be in conflict with the Agmeent, the terms and conditions of this
Amendment shall control. Any terms in initial cagpitetters or all capital letters used as a defteeh but not defined in this Amendment s
have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. Up@tw@tion of this Amendment by the parties, any sgbsnt reference to the Agreement
between the parties shall mean the Agreement asdeddy this Amendment. Except as amended by timisr&iment, the terms and
conditions set forth in the Agreement shall corgimufull force and effect according to their terms

CSG and Customer agree to the following:

1. Customer desires to utilize, and CSG agrees teliver CSG’s Event Management Service, which allowsustom business rules to
be developed to enhance the Precision eMail.

2. Therefore, Schedule Cof the Agreement, entitled* RECURRING SERVICES,” shall be amended to add the following to the lis
of Recurring Services:

CSG’s Event Management

3.  Schedule Gshall be further amended by adding the Service dedption for CSG’s Event Management as Exhibit C-17 which is
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this redrence.

2. Schedule F, Fees, CSG Recurring Services, of the Agreementahbe amended to add a new Section VIl entitle¢ CSG's Event
Management,” as follows:

CSG RECURRING SERVICES
VIIl. CSG’s Event Management
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4.  Customer will use commercially reasonable effostto keep its hardware and software in conformanceith the Designated
Environment specifications that CSG may provide fran time to time. If the Customer is not utilizing the product in a certified
Designated Environment or Customer has added thirgbarty applications, Customer shall be responsibledr making all necessan
modifications to such third party applications to easure they function properly with any updates or ugrades to the Service.
Custom software modifications are not included intis Agreement, but may be added to the Agreement drpriced by mutual
agreement of the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Amendment éxdxeuted by their duly authorized representatives.

COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS CSG SYSTEMS, INC. “CSG")
MANAGEMENT, LLC (“CUSTOMER”)

By: /s/ Andrew J. Bae By: /sl Joseph T. Rub

Name: Andrew J. Bae Name: Joseph T. Rubl

Title: SVP & CIO Title: EVP, CAO & General Couns

Date: 11/28/11 Date: 12-12-11
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Exhibit C-17

CSG's Event Management

CSG's Event ManagementCSG's Event Management is comprised of CSG Interaetiwdttich provides the basis for custom workflows
business rules to be developed as part of the m@iéation project or follow-on projects to enhaneessaging capabilities.
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EXHIBIT 10.23I
SIXTEENTH AMENDMENT
TO THE
CSG MaSTER SUBSCRIBER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
CSG SYSTEMS, INC.
AND

DISH NETWORK, L.L.C.

This SIXTEENTH AMENDMENT (this “ Amendment”) is made by and between CSG Systems, Inc., avizegacorporation (CSG"),

and DISH Network L.L.C., a Colorado limited lialiylicompany (“Customer™). This Amendment shall be effective as of theedast signed
below (the “Effective Date”). CSG and Customer entered into a certain CSGéd&ubscriber Management System Agreement (Documen
#2301656) effective as of January 1, 2010 (thgreement”), and now desire to further amend the Agreemericicordance with the terms
and conditions set forth in this Amendment. If ttems and conditions set forth in this Amendmeuiidbe in conflict with the Agreement,

the terms and conditions of this Amendment shaitrad. Any terms in initial capital letters or @hpital letters used as a defined term but not
defined in this Amendment shall have the meanindosth in the Agreement. Upon execution of this @mdment by the parties, any
subsequent reference to the Agreement betweerattiepshall mean the Agreement as amended bythendment. Except as amended by
this Amendment, the terms and conditions set forthe Agreement shall continue in full force affféet according to their terms.

As of the Effective Date CSG and Customer agresrtend the Agreement as follows:

1. In connection with Customer’s migration to CS@dvanced Convergent Platform ACP "), CSG agrees to provide Customer with
daily cycles for the ACP environmentRfe-migration Cycle D) while in the pre-conversion state to supportrieszeptance testing
efforts. CSG agrees to provide the Pre-migrationl€p environment daily from *:** * * x xokk s % - dkkotkkok ek with an
implementation date of ******* * *+xx gnd g compleéion date of ***** * **** CSG agrees to providelte daily cycles for Pre-
migration Cycle D subject to the following conditg

(a) Execution of processing in Cycle E shall receiverny over Pr-migration Cycle D processin

(b) Fkdkkkkkkok kokk skkkkkk % * Fkdkkkk ok *x xkkk ok kkxkkkkx This estimate of additional **  ** may increase o
decrease during the period which -migration Cycle D is availabl

(c) Customer may adjust the quantity Of **x* ** sexkk Sk *xxxkk \wijth the understanding that any *** * #¥* skkkkkiok otokk sk
** Fkkkx Kk kkkkkkk kkkgs a result, the run time for Pre-migration Cycle D may be extended Imgly* *, **xxxxk*

*kkk

(d) Customer W|” prOVIde CSG W|th kkkkk_kkkkk kkkk  hhkkkk? ertten notlce Of *kkk kkhkkkkkkkk and a *kkk *k_kkkk kkkk kkkkk!
written notice of **** *xxkkkxx [if CSG has the *** * ¥x*kx+rx |n the event that CSG must order an atitional engine, it may
take up to * **** for the **** **xxxkx* tg gccur. C ustomer may not adjust **xx *kkkkxk sk fix xxkkkx  mqgore frequently than

kkk kkk kkkk kkk kkkk

(e) Vantage and Vantage Plus daily loads shall be gealin Pr-migration Cycle D
(H Vantage tables will be available at approximatetfyys** ik kkk sokekk

(g) Statement generation is excluded (with the ptiae of statements generated related directifiéoproduction test conversion
cycles).



***  Confidental Treatment Requested and the Reactednaterial has been separately filed with the Commsson.

(h) Ifissues are encountered in Cycle E, QT04, B0 QTO07 environments, the resolution of thesaas will take priority over Pre-
migration Cycle D

(I) *% *%k%x k% *% *%k% k% *%k kkk _kkkkkkkkk kkkkk Xk

() The existing, agreed upon conversion test scheshdk remain in place unless both parties mutuadiiee to date change

(k) Customer will be unable to access Pre-migra@ignle D during production test conversions. Iniaod, in the event that
production test conversions last more than *** *€SG will not update missed cycles in the-migration Cycle D

()  Cycle E will no longer cycle after migration &CP and will be kept only in a static state for## **+* *x** o rsuant to the
Statement of Work entered into between the pagfilestive as of October 10, 2011, CSG documen2Bd0213

2.  The following fees shall apply for CSG to providslg cycles for Pr-migration Cycle D
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Amendment éxéeuted by their duly authorized representatives.

DISH Network L.L.C. CSG SYSTEMS, INC.

By: /sl Michael K. McClaske By: /sl Peter E. Kala

Name: Michael K. McClaskey Name: Peter E. Kalal

Title:  Senior Vice President and Chief Information Title:  President, CEO
Officer

Date: 12/22/11 Date: 12/23/11
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EXHIBIT 10.24G

FIFTY-SEVENTH AMENDMENT
TO THE
CSG MASTER SUBSCRIBER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
CSG SYSTEMS, INC.
AND
TIME WARNER CABLE INC.

This Fifty-seventh Amendment(the “Amendment”) is made by and betwde8G Systems, Inc, a Delaware corporation (“CSG”), and

Time Warner Cable Inc. (“TWC”). CSG and TWC entered into a certain CSG MaSubscriber Management System Agreement executed
March 13, 2003, and effective as of April 1, 2088 ,amended (the “Agreement”), and now desire thiénramend the Agreement in
accordance with the terms and conditions set farthis Amendment. If the terms and conditionsfegh in this Amendment shall be in
conflict with the Agreement, the terms and condisiof this Amendment shall control. Any terms iiti@h capital letters or all capital letters
used as a defined term but not defined in this Adnmamt, shall have the meaning set forth in the Agrent. Upon execution of this
Amendment by the parties, any subsequent refettertte Agreement between the parties shall meaAdneement as amended by this
Amendment. Except as amended by this Amendmentethes and conditions set forth in the Agreemeatl gontinue in full force and effe
according to their terms.

CSG and TWC agree to the following as of the Effeite Date (as defined below):

1. TWC hereby requests and CSG agrees to provide itsr@er Account Audit Tool (“ OAAT ") that will include a series of edits
during the order creation process by TWC's CustomeiService Representatives (“CSRs”) that will notifythe CSR if an order has
violated an order audit rule. OAAT will allow CSRsto complete orders with higher accuracy.

a) As a result, Schedule,CBasic Services and Additional Services and Agged Exhibits,” of the Agreement is modified bydaty
the following to the Section entitled “Additionaé&ices”:

Order Account Audit Tool (OAAT)

b) As a result, Schedule CBasic Services and Additional Services and Aigged Exhibits,” of the Agreement is modified bydaty
the following to the Section entitled “Services Drjstion”:

OAAT Services.The OAAT will allow Customer Service RepresentadiVeCSRs”) to complete orders with a higher degree
accuracy by providing a series of edits duringdtder creation process that will notify CSRs if tirder has violated a rule. CSG
shall develop and provide a hosted database, whitnclude all Customer audit rules created astmer’s request in
connection with the OAAT Service. The hosted OAAGn&ces architecture will provide for productiondamot backup for failove
protection.

c) As a result, Schedule,FFees,” of the Agreement shall be amended taigelthe following fees for the Services to be penfed in
connection with the development, implementation sungport of the OAAT. For avoidance of doubt, ¥ sk otk _soxkok fees fo
the OAAT Service set forth below, includes usagabyarticipating Affiliates that desire, from tinto time, to use and receive the
OAAT Service (subject to the support limitation edtelow):
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2. Participating Affiliates may use and receive the OAT Services without any requirement that such Additonal Service be se
forth in any such Participating Affiliate’s Affilia te Addendum. Subject to Note 4 of Schedule F-ees, relating to the ******xxxx
*rxxxk in addition to TWC's termination rights set  forth in Article 6 of the Agreement, TWC shall alo have the right to
terminate any Customer’s use or receipt of the OAATServices, if applicable, for convenience, withoutotice to CSG, and TWC
may terminate the OAAT Services in their entirety ypon written notice to CSG upon which all OAAT Recuring Monthly Fees

shall cease.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Amendment éxéeuted by their duly authorized representatigtfsctive
as of the day and year last signed below (“Effeciate”).

TIME WARNER CABLE INC. (“TWC") CSG SYSTEMS, INC. (“CSG”)
By: /s/ Frank Bonciminc By: /sl Peter E. Kala
Name: Frank Boncimino Name: Peter E. Kalan

Title:  SVP, Chief Information Officer Title:  President, CEO

Date: December 15, 201 Date: 12/21/2011



CSG Systems International, Inc.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant
As of December 31, 2011

Subsidiary

Billing Intec Uruguay S.A

Comtecnet Incorporate

CSG Interactive Messaging, Ir

CSG International Australia Pty Limite

CSG International Holdings, LL'

CSG International Pty Limite

CSG Media LLC

CSG Services, Inc

CSG Systems International, Ir

CSG Systems U.K. Limite

CSG Systems U.S. Holding Limite

CSG Systems, In

Dataphone (Holdings) Limite

DataProse, Inc

Digiquant Malaysia Sdn. Br

Inception to Implementation (M) Sd. Bl
Independent Technology Billing Solutions S de RLQYé
Independent Technology Systems (India) Pvt.
Independent Technology Systems Limi
Independent Technology Systems Scandinavie
Independent Technology Systems SL Unipers
Intec (Guernsey) 1 Limite

Intec (Guernsey) 2 Limite

Intec Billing (Holding) Canada Lt

Intec Billing Canada Ltc

Intec Billing Ireland

Intec Billing Nigeria Limited

Intec Billing, Inc.

Intec Outsourcing Services (Midwest), i

Intec Systems (Asia) Sdn Bl

Intec Systems Vietnam Co, L

CSG International Pty Limite

Intec Telecom Systems (France) SA

Intec Telecom Systems (Revenue Assurance Dividionited
Intec Telecom Systems (Singapore) Pte

Intec Telecom Systems Denmark /

Intec Telecom Systems Deutschland Gn

Intec Telecom Systems do Brasil Limite

Intec Telecom Systems ltalia S}

Intec Telecom Systems Limite

Intec Telecom Systems Pty L

Intec Telecom Systems South Africa (Pty) Limi
Intec USA, Inc.

Telution, Inc.

State or Country
of Organization

Uruguay

New Jerse
Delaware
Australia
Delaware
Australia
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Delaware
United Kingdom
California
Malaysia
Malaysia
Mexico

India

United Kingdom
Sweder

Spain

Guernsey
Guernsey
Canade

Canads

Ireland

Nigeria
Delaware
Delaware
Malaysia
Vietnam
Australia
France

United Kingdom
Singapore
Denmark
Germany

Brazil

Italy

United Kingdom
Australia

South Africa
Delaware
Delaware

EXHIBIT 21.01



EXHIBIT 23.01
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
CSG Systems International, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrdlggstration statements on Form S-8 (File Nos-B3315, 333-32951, 333-48451, 333-
83715, 333-42202, 333-81656, 333-104206, 333-11,7328-125584, 333-176579 and 3BB6580) of CSG Systems International, Inc. of
reports dated March 14, 2012, with respect to thesclidated balance sheets of CSG Systems Intenadtinc. as of December 31, 2011 and
2010, and the related consolidated statementscofne, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for eaicthe years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2011, and the effectivenesgerhil control over financial reporting as of Dexdter 31, 2011, which reports appear in
the December 31, 2011 annual report on Form 10-B% Systems International, Inc.

/sIKPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
March 14, 2012



EXHIBIT 31.01

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Peter E. Kalan, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of CSG Systems International, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoriny untrue statement of a material fact or don#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being preszh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentgilsi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent

functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refptahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 14, 2012 /s/ Peter E. Kala

Peter E. Kalal
Chief Executive Officer and Preside



EXHIBIT 31.02

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Randy R. Wiese, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of CSG Systems International, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoriny untrue statement of a material fact or don#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being preszh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentgilsi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent

functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refptahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 14, 2012 /s/ Randy R. Wies

Randy R. Wiesi
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi



EXHIBIT 32.01

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The certification set forth below is being submitte connection with the Annual Report on Form 1Qtie “Report”) for the purpose of
complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b}lvé Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchafig&) and Section 1350 of Chapter
63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.

Peter E. Kalan, the Chief Executive Officer and ®8aR. Wiese, the Chief Financial Officer of CSG t8yss International, Inc., each certifies
that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act;
(2) the information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of
CSG Systems International, Ir

March 14, 201:

/sl Peter E. Kalan
Peter E. Kalal
Chief Executive Officer and Preside

March 14, 201:

/s Randy R. Wiese
Randy R. Wiesi
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




